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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle
business in 1992, and expanded into the instant food business
and beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group further
expanded its beverage business by forming a strategic alliance
with PepsiCo for the beverage business in the PRC. The Company
exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages, distributes and sells
PepsiCo non-alcoholic drinks in the PRC. The Group's main business
segments have established leading market shares in the PRC's food
industry. According to AC Nielsen December 2019 data, based on
sales volume, in 2019, the Group was the market leader in instant
noodles and ready-to-drink teas (incl. milktea), having gained 43.3%
and 45.7% market shares respectively. In the overall juice drink
market, the Group gained 15.9% market share, ranked No.2 in the
market. According to GlobalData December 2019 data, based on
sales volume, Pepsi carbonated drinks had 32.9% market share and
held a second position. After years of hard work and accumulation,
“Master Kong"” has become one of the best known brands among
consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management
system, implements entire control over food safety and ensures
product quality and safety. We will constantly strive for product
quality and food safety, as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty
and healthy food.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 371 sales offices and 182
warehouses serving 36,186 wholesalers and 185,789 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2019. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables
the Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December
2019 was US$9.6 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang
Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and circulation business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in
the PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese
Instant Food & Beverage in the World”.
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Financial Summary
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For the years ended 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ANRBYETFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
(fg=E5)) (=5
(Restated)  (Restated)
g Revenue 61,978,158 60,685,645 58,953,788 55,578,849 57,277,611
B L AT Profit before taxation 5,411,596 3,979,334 3,392,736 2,433,516 2,966,807
1A Taxation (1,693,374) (1,250,565) (1,137,368) (1,051,453) (1,195,625)
AE Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182

JFE(R35 F Profit attributable to:
PIN/NET 32 Owners of the Company 3,330,981 2,463,321 1,819,077 1,161,699 1,612,968
DI R Non-controlling interests 387,241 265,448 436,291 220,364 158,214
REFHF Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063 1,771,182
%8 Dividends 3,330,981 2,463,321 909,539 580,849 806,485
AR%7 ARED ARED ARED ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents

sy b eingl Earnings per share
K Basic 59.25 43.85 32.45 20.73 28.78
#E Diluted 59.20 43.77 32.42 20.73 28.75
EeEER 03
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®12A318
As at 31 December

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

AE¥Fr ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

RMB’ 000  RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB’ 000 RMB' 000

(i E5) (sE7))
(Restated) (Restated)

BERFmE Investment properties 1,771,500 1,119,000 1,106,000 1,060,000 1,003,200
ERR P& Property, plant and equipment 23,013,991 24,927,630 28,014,779 32,556,784 35,041,574
EREEE Right-of-use assets 4,025,124 — — — —
TiBAEE Prepaid lease payments — 3570367 3,730,767 3,932,435 3,946,771
BENRER Interest in an associate 139,537 127,725 120,568 160,538 190,948
AENFER Interest in joint venture 889,065 698,743 660,691 676,408 555,405
EVEE Intangible assets 183,409 186,458 162,936 179,179 172,404
HibemedeE Other non-current assets 2,499,236 1,465,275 1,362,410 917,910 1,016,348
FRBEE (BF) Net current asset (liabilities) (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)  (5,038,644)  (6,670,267)  (6,360,668)
FRBERE Non-current liabilities (6,606,132)  (5505,703)  (7,825,463)  (8,712,408) (10,390,286)
FEE Net assets 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696
BATIRAR Issued capital 235,401 235,204 235,053 234,767 234,710
it Reserves 19,343,173 19418272 18,177,026 17,888,773 18,477,329
LYRR R Non-controlling interests 3,467,533 3,958,955 3,881,965 5,977,039 6,463,657
RRERBE Total equity 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579 25,175,696

04 EGHEERERAT
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BERLAUBENED L
PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUE BY SEGMENT
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Sales Network

&S Shenyang
B Zhengzhou
e

EEEM KE M &M &k BE HiE iy Hit &t
Production Centre Tianjin Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging  Wuhan Xian Other Centres  Total
w W W W w '
ah O oAy > > > S
e & 08 0 € € € € -
Beverage

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

HqE HE e gE HE

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of

B E T Sales Office 606 598 369 369 371
& & Warehouse 73 69 92 108 182
#R 484/ Wholesale 30,095 33,653 35,163 28,415 36,186
BT/ Direct Retailer 116,036 116,222 129,449 140,779 185,789
BIAY Employee 69,425 65,182 56,995 54,210 58,182
4 E# Production Line 711 719 676 613 604
4 EEM Production Centre 132 126 118 103 88
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In the past year, the Group has continued its business strategy of
“Consolidate, Reform and Develop”. With the joint efforts to all
colleagues in the company, the Group was able to have a smooth
transition of generation handover and orderly promote the corporate
transformation and upgrading, laying a solid foundation for future
development.

We are now in a rapidly changing environment. Social changing
and technology advancing are gradually affecting and shaping the
traditional form of food and beverage industry, and then evolved a new
ecosystem. Master Kong also constantly thinking about its own position
in the new era. Motivated by the original intention of “Promoting
Chinese Food & Beverage Culture”, we will continue to take consumer
preferences as our ultimate purpose, and to meet public demand for
a better life with delicious and innovative products. The “complying-
industry-development-trend” innovation ensures that we maintain our
advantages in fierce competition. The Group actively embraces new
technologies, conducts digital transforms and builds agile management,
and also accelerates internationalization. With the mission of “fulfill
corporate social responsibility”, we strive for excellence in the fields of
environment, society and corporate governance and contribute to the
society as much as we can.

We hope that together with all our customers, employees, partners
and shareholders, we will, seize the day and live it to the full, became
a leading food and beverage company with international influence and
pass Master Kong as a Chinese ethical brand for years to come.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to all fellow members of the Board, the management, employees and
customers for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 March 2020
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In 2019, the overall economic situation in China was deemed stable,
with GDP growth of 6.1% and CPI increase of 2.9%, with higher CPI
in the second half of the year. Urbanisation rate continued to climb,
residents’ income and consumption maintained high growth rate with
upward pattern. The instant noodle industry we operate has showed
steady and encouraging development; and packaged beverage industry
delighted with signs of growth. Amid such backdrop, new generation
of urban consumers, middle-class groups, and consumption demand
for high performance-price ratio products have evolved into pivotal
potential markets. While changes in consumer habits have resulted rapid
growth in online retail platforms, catering channels, and convenience
stores, such changes also brought along mixed blessing of both
opportunities and challenges in the Group’s business development.

In 2019, guided by the strategic directive theme, “Consolidate, Reform
and Develop”, the Group planned to develop high-end markets,
while continued to focus on mass consumer markets. The Group
continued to refine and improve on its product-mix, and to such end,
to optimise production layout footprint, to develop diversified market
channels, as well as to reduce organizational layers, and to introduce
digital transformation. During the year, the instant noodle segment
experienced steady growth. Due to the structural change introduced
earlier, the performance of beverage segment was lifted with
encouraging growth momentum in the second half of the year.

In 2019, the Group's revenue increased by 2.13% to RMB61.978
billion, year-on-year. Revenue from instant noodle and beverage
segment increased by 5.79% and 0.81%, year-on-year, respectively.
The gross profit margin for the year increased by 1.02 percentage
points to 31.88%. The ratio of distribution costs to revenues increased
by 1.92 percentage points to 21.39%, year-on-year. EBITDA increased
by 15.80% to RMB8.542 billion, year-on-year; benefited by growth in
gross profit margin, increase of other revenue and other net income,
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plus other operating expenses decrease, the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company increased by 35.22% to RMB3.331 billion
and basic earnings per share increased by RMB15.40 cents to RMB59.25
cents.

During the year, in order to best meet the needs of different demand
spaces, the Group applied the strategy of multi serving sizes and multi-
flavour products. The Group continued to focus on its core products and
apply multi serving sizes and multi-flavour products to appeal to general
consumers. The Group actively developed potential new categories
and launched multi price-tier products that allowed the flexibility to
attract new generation in lower tier cities, working and middle-class
income groups. Besides, the Group carefully planned and step by step
to increase brand investment and strengthen brand building. To boost
brand positioning and product category image, the Group entered
into cooperative partnership with the China Space Foundation and
the Winter Training Center for the General Administration of Sport. In
order to draw attention of young consumers and young households,
the Group invested in sports marketing, omni-media marketing and IP
collaboration to enhance brand exposure.

To respond to the overall trend of channel fragmentation, the Group
continues to conduct channel optimization initiative in its pursuit of an
optimised allocation of distributor and retailor profitability, along with
seeking win-win solution with channel partners. Besides leveraging the
competitive strength in traditional channels, the Group pushes forward
to seek for diversified sales channels, to strengthen the collaboration
with new retail format and e-commerce operators. The Group has
completed the changeover from three-tier distribution to direct
management of second-tier distributors in most core cities, as well as
to upgrade our services to retail outlets. In lower tier cities, the Group
continues to engage with excellent third tier distributors, as well as to
opt for a collaborative partnership with channel partners. Meanwhile,
the Group steps up investment on high growth channels, founded new
divisions in e-commerce and vending machines, intensively cooperated
with new retail format operators. With all such endeavors, the Group
intends to increase its product penetration ratio at retail outlets.

To facilitate modification in product-mix, along with optimised capital
expenditure, the Group maintains its rationalization initiative in supply-
chain, applies OEM and idle asset disposals, optimizes production
footprint, and adopts smart manufacturing process.

To aid the recent efforts in channels, the Group proceeds to optimise
its organisational structure, via various initiatives that serve to reduce
members of management-level, enable direct contact with markets,
and ramp up customer service staff at retail level. All such exercises
ultimately serve to provide channel customers and partners with better
services.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥
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In its effort to improve overall operation efficiency, the Group applies
digital solutions to innovate every aspect in its production and operation
workflow. The Group continues to promote the construction of shared
service centre, where digital technology is adopted to facilitate process
optimization, system simplification, and information enhancement,
while digital tools are used to digitize production, channel operations
and decision-making process.

Instant Noodle Business

According to statistics from Nielsen, in 2019, the overall sales volume
of the instant noodle market grew by 1.5% year-on-year, while sales
value increased by 7.2% year-on-year. During the year, market shares
of Master Kong in terms of sales volume and value were 43.3% and
46.6%, respectively, and ranked first in the market.

In 2019, the Group's revenue from the instant noodle segment recorded
RMB25.30 billion, grew by 5.79%, year-on-year, accounting for 40.82%
of the Group's total revenue. During the year, due to price surge for
some raw materials, gross profit margin of instant noodles segment
decreased by 1.22 percentage points to 29.01%, year-on-year. In 2019,
backed by gain in revenue, increase in other revenue and other net
income, and cut-down on other operation expenses, profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company in the instant noodle segment as a
whole increased by 28.74% to RMB2.20 billion.

The instant noodle business focuses on high-price and premium
markets, and at the same time, develops into super-premium markets,
with prime concern to achieve sales growth. The segment applies multi
serving sizes and multi-flavor products strategy to fit in with different
consumption scenarios and provide for diversified consumer needs, and
by initiating multimedia marketing and IP cooperation, the segment
aims to gain young consumers and young families. During the year, the
segment entered into cooperative partnership with the Winter Sports
Center of the State General Administration of Sport and the China
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Space Foundation to promote food safety awareness, strictly control
food safety standards, and improved product-mix and brand image. By
all such exercises, instant noodle business has assumed a leading role in
the overall development in the industry. During the year, the segment
continued sports promotion, working with Jane Lang and Zhu Ting to
promote women'’s volleyball, marathon race, with the prime aim to
boost the healthy image associated with our brand.

To cope with changes brought about by the ongoing urbanisation and
channel fragmentation, the segment extends the network coverage
of its retail services in core cities, and joined-in a win-win partnership
with distributors in lower tier regions. Moreover, the Group strikes to
reinforce operation efficiency via modern channels and e-commerce
channels to generate double-digit growth in sales.

In 2019, the Group continued to roll out supply chain reforms, with the
ultimate aim to improve operation efficiency along the supply chain, via
measures such as optimizing allocation plan for production facilities,
rejuvenation of phase-out factories, and upgrade to automation
technologies. To support national policies, Instant Noodle Business
adheres to energy conservation and emission reduction measures, so as
to boost production profitability.

High-priced and Premium Noodles

The high-priced and premium noodles are Master Kong's targeted
core markets. The segment calls on consumers with multi serving sizes
and multi-flavour products that promote sales growth. To tap into the
trend of bulk-packaging in the market, the segment introduces bulk-
packaging products and vigorously promoted it, which has contributed
to the growth in market share. To feed the needs of diversified
consumption scenarios, the segment introduced “twin-taste in one”,
“mini-cup”, “stirred dry-noodle” and other serving sizes to meet the
calls from diversified consumption scenarios. To add to varieties of taste,
fresh-new seasonings, “Shallots Rib” and “millet pepper and pickled
pepper mix” were brought to satisfy consumers’ appetite for new

flavours.

In addition, to win over young households, working and middle-class
groups, the segment joined hands with China Space Foundation to
undertake collaborative projects, carried forth sports marketing, IP
collaboration, multi-media marketing to lift brand image. During the
year, the segment continued to partner with China Space Foundation
to undertake collaborative projects, and through such endeavours, the
Group aims to create a outstanding brand image of safe and high-
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quality. The segment continues to work with Jane Lang and Zhu Ting
to promote women's volleyball, marathon and other sports marketing,
as well as to create a healthy brand image. The segment is enabled to
rejuvenate its brand image with the aid of IP cooperation, including

T

“Kung Fu Panda”, “Douro Mainland”, and “Game for Peace”, whereas,
via social media channels such as Douyin and Weibo, the segment has

enticed young customers.

Super-premium Noodles

To capitalize on the tidal trend of consumption upgrade, the Group
launched the “Express Chef’'s Noodle” series into the market. Over
the past year, Master Kong prioritised on modern channels, including
e-commerce platforms, convenience stores, and special channels such
as long-distance passenger travel, which has contributed to the rapid
growth in sales. Based on such fundamentals, Master Kong launched
“Express cooked noodles” and “Express self-heating Noodles” in the
second half of the year to satisfy the demand from various consumption
scenarios. The signature “Express Chef’s Noodle” series anchors at
online marketing, with online exposure added up to 200 million hit
rate on Double Eleven Shopping Festival. Through sports marketing,
the segment popularised its brand image. The Group seized the unique
occasion offered by Winter Olympics, partnered with Winter Sports
Management Centre of the General Administration of Sport of China
and acted as its sole instant nutrient food provider, to serve with its
customized “Express Chef's Noodle Specialty for Chinese Winter Sports
Athletes”.
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

The segment is convinced of the pre-dominant trend of consumption
segmentation and adapts to the cost-effective consumption pattern
among consumers in lower tier cities and rural areas with mid-priced
noodles. During the year, the segment promoted size-up noodle-block
sales, "50% plus Hunger-feed”, that strategically seized the stratified
markets with large portion needs, and, ultimately, achieve sales growth.
Due to IP cooperation includes “Kung Fu Panda”, as well as the debut
addition of new flavours, “cheese corn” and “spicy crayfish”, the snack
noodle “flavoured and crunchy” has conjured up a unique brand image
of "yummy” plus “fun”, that charms young consumer groups.

Beverage Business

According to the data from Nielsen, in 2019, the sales volume and value
in the beverage industry grew by 3.9% and 5.1%, respectively. During
the year, the ready-to-drink (RTD) tea segment (including milk tea)
accounted for 45.7% of the market share in terms of sales volume and
maintained a firm hold onto top position in the market; sales volume of
the Group's juice section accounted for 15.9% of the market, ranked
second in the market; bottled water represented 5.4% in the market.
Sales value of RTD coffee accounted for 17.6% in the market, ranked
second in the market. According to the monitoring data provided by
third-party research firms, the overall market share of Pepsi carbonated
soft drinks, in terms of sales volume, was 32.9% in 2019, ranked
second in the market.

In 2019, the overall revenue of the beverage business recorded
RMB35.60 billion, increased by 0.81%, year-on-year, representing
57.44% of the Group's total revenue. During the year, gross margin of
the beverage business increased by 2.43 percentage points to 33.69%,
mainly due to improvement in product-mix, product upgrade, along
with price drop in some raw materials. Due to improvement in gross
margin and cut-down of other operation expenses, profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company for beverage business in 2019 amounted
to RMBO0.946 billion, climbed by 72.39%, year-on-year.

For beverage business, benefited from the continued improvement in
product mix during the year, sales resumed to positive growth in the
second half of the year. The segment took steps to launch high-end
products to reap benefits from the trend of consumption upgrade,
while still focusing on core product-mix to meet mass consumption
demands. The segment endeavours to reinforce brand-building by
increasing advertisement investment, IP collaboration, sports marketing
and scenario marketing with the ultimate aim to gain young households
and young consumers. The segment also actively promoted multi-
channel development, to explore both indoor and outdoor channels,
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and establish e-commerce and new retailing platforms. On the other
hand, the segment expands the retail-shop network in core cities,
improve channel profitability via reinforced services, and seeks for win-
win partnerships with distributors. The segment continues to press
for asset-activation, opt for asset-light, optimise capacity allocation,
fittingly introduce new products and to scale up capital expenditures
for refrigerators and heating cabinets; the segment is poised to apply
the latest smart manufacturing and logistics system, so as to achieve an
overall improvement in supply chain efficiency.

RTD Tea

RTD tea segment gains popularity in the mass market via its core
products. Based on its unique multi serving sizes, multi-flavours
products strategies, the segment is well poised to meet diversed
consumption scenarios; along the way, the segment launched “Master
Kong Chacanting”, the high-end products, to seize its high-end market
share, and, thereby, succeeds to at the helm of the RTD tea market.
During the year, the Group keeps up with investment in brand, as
well as to draw young consumer groups and household consumption
groups with the aid of IP collaboration, sports marketing, and scenario
marketing. “Master Kong Ice Tea” selection joined hands with “Sina
3X3 Golden League” and “ Tencent | Want Play Basketball” to clone
a sports scenario; collaborated with “Tencent Produce 2019” for re-
making musical scenarios, while Tencent Smart Retail adopted to link
up online and offline sales channels to bolster sales growth. “Jasmine
Tea” selection has an alluringly fresh jasmine-scented flavours as
hailed in its brand image and young consumers are invited through IP
cooperation. “Green Tea"” selection continues to strenghen its brand
image of freshness and vitality, and attracts young consumer groups
through its popular IP. “Master Kong Milk Tea” selection worked
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with “Rocket Girls 101" on IP cooperation to unlock the purchasing
power and propaganda influence of fans, and use new serving size
and new packaging design to attract consumers. During the year,
the newly launched products, “Oolong” selection fittingly fed the
thirst for refreshing fruit tea discerned in the new generation of
urban consumers. The high-end lemon tea selection, “Master Kong
Chacanting” painstakingly exploited the surge in demand brought by
consumption upgrades, and to this end, seized market share in core
cities via expanded package options, with rapid growth in sales.

Carbonated Soft Drinks

Pepsi carbonated bottled beverage segment trades on consumption
upgrade trend via multi-flavour, multi-serving sizes, boutique packaging
design, and reduced sugar content, to fit in with consumers’ needs in
diversed consumption scenarios. The segment continues to pursue a
duel-pronged approach, “brand promotion plus marketing activities”,
to reinforce brand communication and spur consumption impulse.
“Pepsi Cola” continues to roll out new flavors, the first in the country
to release its debut limited edition of “Pepsi Cola Salted Caramel”
nationwide, followed by the launch of Pepsi zero-sugar series with
added raspberry flavour in key regions, with the latter promptly covers a
nationwide sales network. It becomes more evident that brand exposure
volume is boosted. Besides, prompted by the themed marketing event,
“Pepsi Concept Store” young consumer groups are drawn to the
products, leading to a steady growth in sales. The classic “Pepsi zero-
sugar” is succeeded by a variety of serving sizes. As the overall product
line is optimised, sales growth sustains. “Mirinda”, marked by its high-
dose fruit flavor hallmark, has answered the the distinctive brand'’s call
for “Explosive Fruity Fun”. Due to further endeavor to optimize and
upgrade the medium-sized packaging bottles, the novel fruit bottles hit
the shelves. Focused on flavor varieties and choices, the debut banana
flavour was released, and, thereby, product-mix improved. Meanwhile,
the segment undertook title sponsorship for online variety show, “Our
Family Concert” and closely collaborated with animation IP “The King's
Avatar”, together with the aid of co-branded products, added animation
elements, to enhance brand awareness and popularity, with high-quality
contents such as co-branded products and animation implantation. “7
up” launches the themed, “Feels good to be you”, annual marketing
product campaign, to give publicity for the first appearance of FIDO
DIDO, new packaging design and new flavors, “7 up Low Sugar” and
“7up Moji7o Grapefruit Flavor”, all served for product differentiation
and seeking after young consumers.
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Fruit Juice Drinks

The segment continued to carry out with product upgrade and brand
investment, along with optimization of channel profitability, and
highlighted the leading position of Chinese juice drinks, as well as to
facilitate the sale of Western fruit juice drinks, and ultimately, to achieve
the overall growth in both products. Backed by IP collaboration and
media marketing, the segment managed to acquire young consumer
groups, through the marketing strategy of multi serving sizes and multi-
flavours, the segment succeeds to expand into catering and festive
consumption scenarios. For instance, in tune with traditional Chinese
diet culture, “Rock Candy Pear”, highlighted the therapeutic brand
image of the pear juice to moisturise, and curb dehydration during
autumn and winter seasons; and, through collaborative effort with well-
liked variety show series, the segment has reinforced its brand image.
“Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” joined hands with hot seller
IP, “Going Fighting!” to meet the consumption needs in catering
channels via propaganda promotion of Chinese classic drinks to go
along with hot pot dinning; with such initiatives, sales growth achieved.
In the second half of the year, Western-style juice “Master Kong Juices”
sustained sales growth as the product stepped-up brand marketing
and increased sales of multi serving sizes, through leveraging on festive
gathering scenarios. “NutriLight Fruits”, still focuses on “honey and
citron” as its main flavour, collaborates with new media channels to
draw young consumer groups. “Tropicana” and “Tropicana 100%"
continue to roll out new flavours, and new sizes, and are well poised to
meet the diverse scenario demands.
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Bottled Water

In 2019, the bottled water segment continued to meet diversed
consumer needs through “multi-sizing plus multi-pricing” marketing
strategy, and it was set to expand into low and high-priced markets.
With the prime aim to boost sales, the segment actively promotes
brand building and IP cooperation to acquire urban and middle-class
consumers as well as young households. The economical product,
“Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water” commenced IP collaboration
with “The Inn Season 3", which aimed to popularise and convince the
overall brand image as the “Trusted Choice for the Whole Family”.
The product cloned the sports scenarios through offline marketing
activities for marathon race and launch of new serving size, 1 liter-
bottle. On account of high price-performance ratio and multi-sizing,
the segment targets to be a national brand, offered at an affordable
budget-friendly price. The mid-priced “Aquafina” is enabled to establish
brand popularity through online and offline interactive sales activities.
The high-end water “Han Yang Quan”, not only fulfils the middle
class’'s demand for natural mineral water, but also be purposely selected
as a social and functional drinking water, served in the Xinhua News
Agency’s National China’s Annual “Two Sessions” meeting and the
World Internet Summit. The product focuses on market penetration into
core business districts and scenic spots, amusement parks, and vending
machines, as well as to spawn a high-end brand image.

Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

In the RTD coffee market, the Group, well-established in the medium
to high-priced sector, joined hands with international strategic partner
“Starbucks” to develop into the high-end market, and promoted its
“Bernachon coffee” into the stable medium to high-priced segment
with sustainable sales growth achieved. “Bernachon Coffee” focuses on
the market development at Yangtze River Delta/Pearl River Delta/Beijing
and other core cities. Due to increased investment on online and offline
activities, the product rapidly establishes its brand popularity and high-
speed sales growth was achieved.

The functional drink “Gatorade”, established as a leading sports drink
brand, focuses on market development into key sports scenarios,
including football, basketball, track running, gymnasium exercise, etc.
The product’s online sales involves themed marketing events with
the aid of vertical media, delivered to the China’s sports sectors; its
offline sales involves exposure associated with relevant sports events,
with prime focus on creating sports events for grass-root sectors, and
oriented to “sweat-spot” market coverage. This sector has worked with
KOL in sports, to step-up product education, enhance brand influence,
actively build the brand image as the first-tier sports drink, and steadily
grew in sales.
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“Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” consolidates its market footprint
in the Yangtze River Deltra. The product addresses to the consumers’
call for nutrition and healthy lifestyle. With the aid of packaging
upgrade, IP collaboration with “LINE FRIENDS”, a mirror reflection of
young and vibrant public image, the product has appealed to young
consumers, with its boosted brand popularity and sales growth.

The Group duly commited to the overall strategy of “Cash Is King”,
applied sound control on capital expenditures and effectively promoted
asset-light and asset activation. All these measures are expected to
generate stable cash inflows. During the year, the Group’s net cash
inflow from operating activities amounted to RMB7.831 billion, and net
cash outflow in investment activities amounted to RMB1.405 billion.
During the year, the Group disposed entire or partial equity interests of
six subsidiaries to three independent third parties, with net cash inflow
of RMBO0.837 billion; acquired approximately 5% of KSF Beverage's
shares from Ting Hsin (J&%7) for a consideration of USD 203 million.
In the future, the Group will continue to gradually reduce the level of
interest-bearing borrowings with internal resource so as to achieve
a more flexible and healthier financial structure and further improve
operating basis.

The Group continued to maintain a stable and healthy financial
structure through effective controls on the balances of trade receivables,
trade payables, bank balances and cash, as well as inventories. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances totaled RMB17.43
billion, increased by RMB3.590 billion, compared with 31 December
2018. Sufficient amount of cash in hand was still maintained. As at 31
December 2019, the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings amounted
to RMB 12.374 billion, increased by RMB 1.540 billion, compared with
31 December 2018. Net borrowings amounted to RMB -5.056 billion,
decreased by RMB 2.050 billion, compared with 31 December 2018.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's proportion of the total
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi were 76%
and 24% respectively, compared with 72% and 28%, as at the end
of the previous year. The proportion between the Group's long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings was 40% and 60%, respectively,
compared with 40% and 60% as at the end of previous year.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total assets and total liabilities
amounted to RMB57.960 billion and RMB34.914 billion respectively,
representing an increase of RMB4.957 billion and an increase of
RMB5.523 billion, when compared with 31 December 2018. The
Group's debt ratio increased by 4.79 percentage points to 60.24%,

compared with 31 December 2018. The gearing ratio decreased from
-15.29% as at 31 December 2018 to -25.82% in the current period.

During the year, US dollars appreciated against Renminbi by 1.75%.

Due to the fluctuation of exchange rate, realized and unrealized

exchange gain in aggregate of RMB15.511 million has been recognized

in the Group's income statement.

Bt = Financial Ratio

2019 F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
EPK on A Finished goods turnover 16.61 Days /B  12.42 Days /H
JRE W BR R B 45 R Trade receivables turnover 9.97 Days/H  10.08 Days,/H
BN R Current ratio 0.90 Times /fZ  0.88 Times /&
BELLXR(EBERENEEE) Debt ratio (Total liabilities to total assets) 60.24% 55.45%

FEEEEARLERCEESHEYE  Gearing ratio (Net debt to equity
RARRIR RS K) attributable to owners of the Company) -25.82% -15.29%
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As of 31 December 2019, the Group had 58,182 employees. In 2019,
guided by the directive, “down-sized headquarters and bigger operating
units” the Group continued to improve the organization, optimize the
labor structure, speed up the process of recruitment of local talents,
taking steps to materialise the rejuvenation of management team, and
steadily promote diversity on talent recruitment. Meanwhile, a “Career
Planning and Talent Management” system was introduced to maximize
the effectiveness of talent allocation and management at work.

The Group continues to optimise the echelon construction of talents
and reserves and delivers talents of all levels, so as to enable the Group
to materialize strategic plans and sustainable development. The Group
continues to recruit and reserve outstanding talents via YMP (Young
Master Program), and grassroots talents through the joint initiative of
“integration of enterprises with educations” with 36 colleges and 42
vocational schools nationwide.

The Group actively implies strategic cooperation with top universities
domestically and abroad, reinforces the joint industry-university-research
collaborative initiative, and undertakes research in leading sectors,
including big data in healthcare, emerging new retail society, and
urbanization development, which can duly contribute to high-quality
development of the Group and future talent recruitment.

Corporate culture is the soul of the enterprise’s development. During
the year, the Group encourages the combination of corporate culture
to corporate management, so as to facilitate the effective landing of
corporate culture. Adhered to the guiding culture, “to serve the front-
line”, we set up corporate CIS (Corporate Identity System) promotion
committee in the headquarters; selected cultural ambassadors in each
business sectors, set up CIS commissioners in local sales companies and
factories, and created a top down atmosphere of “All employees to
know the strategy, to participate in performance competition and skill
improvement”.
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Macroeconomic uncertainties will increase in 2020. The sudden
outbreak of novel coronavirus at the beginning of the year is expected
to have an impact on both GDP and consumption in the first quarter
of 2020. In particular, tourism, catering, retail industries will be under
large impact in short-term. The subsequent impact could be limited
as the epidemic gets controlled in China. The Chinese government is
implementing strong measures to control the epidemic and resume
work. The epidemic crisis is expected to ease quickly. At the same time,
considering the scale, resilience and potential, Chinese economy is
expected to recover quickly after the epidemic.

The instant noodle and beverage business of the Group will also be
affected by the epidemic situation due to the characteristics of different
categories. Instant noodles, served as a strategic article for the people’s
daily lives, that symbolizes the stability of livelihood, will do its best to
fulfill corporate social responsibility and try to meet the surging demand
during the epidemic. Although beverage sales are affected due to the
decline in number of retail stores during the epidemic, it is expected to
resume for a rebound consumption. Overall, the instant noodle business
is expected to grow well in 2020, and the beverage business is expected
to have a short-term pressure on revenue and shipments due to the
epidemic, but it is expected to rebound at a high speed in the second
half of the year.

During the epidemic: The Group actively safeguarded normal production
and operation activities in special periods, and adopted measures
such as “stabilizing production, stabilizing prevention and control and
stabilizing supply” to facilitate the early resumption of the supply chain
and the safe and orderly launch of sales. At the same time, in response
to the state’s call for “controlled price, quality and supply”, we will fully
ensure the supply of materials and provide reliable logistical support for
all “anti-epidemic” initiatives.

After the epidemic: The Group will continue to adhere to the concept
of “focusing on the mass consumer market and steadily expand to
high-end market”. On the basis of consolidating the mass consumer
market and ensuring a consolidate fundamentals for sales growth, the
Group will continue to promote the upgrading of its product-mix and
layout into high-end and potential markets, based on consolidating
the mass consumer market. In terms of brand building, the Group will
continue brand investment and brand building, and create consumption
scenarios, implement all-media marketing to enhance brand image
through aerospace collaborative endeavours, sports marketing, and
IP cooperation through variety of channels, including culture, science,
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and public welfare. The Group will also cooperate with professional
institutions to apply big data technology to accurately understand
customers and their needs via accurate consumer profiles, and conduct
targeted marketing. In response to the trend of channel fragmentation
and channel sinking, the Group will continue to adhere to the channel
delayering strategy and actively develop diversified channels. In the
core area of cities, we will implement full direct coverage, and use
data tools to strengthen the management and service of retail stores;
in other regions, we will work with business partners to achieve a win-
win situation, and further develop the market; at the same time, we will
increase investment in e-commerce, vending machines and other high
growth channels, and closely cooperate with new retail operators such
as Ali, JD.com, and ELe.me to comprehensively increase the terminal
penetration coverage of the Group's products.

The Group will continue to advance its supply chain rationalization
strategy, further promote asset-light and asset activation, and promote
smart manufacturing. At the same time, increase environmental
protection investment for energy conservation and emission reduction,
and achieve both economic and environmental benefits.

In addition, the Group will firmly promote its “digital transformation”,
increase investment in digital infrastructure, and continue to build
shared service center, initiate production process digitizing and channel
digitizing. At the same time, we will continue to integrate and connect
data, and build a closed data loop. In the future, we also hope to
explore for emerging business opportunities, flexible production
technology, and empowered operations through the application of big
data and Al technologies.

The Group plans ahead to adequately prepare for future consumer
trends, established a Food Service Division, and actively explore the B2B
market.
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The Group also responds to the country’s call for the “Belt and Road”
initiative, launches various forms of cooperation with international
partners in areas such as raw materials and marketing, and establishes
an “Overseas Division” to actively explore and study overseas markets.

The Group aims to anchor in Chinese food and beverage market. Food
safety has always been top concern of the Group. Today, the Group
has established a complete product traceability system and a domestic
first-class technology research and development center. In the future,
the Group will continue to invest in food safety field to maintain its
leading edge; meanwhile, the Group has always maintained a stable
operation and will continue to adhere to the concept of “Cash Is King"”.
Wish to improve people’s life is our mission, to serving the middle-class
consumer demands is our long-term development goal, and building a
win-win relationship with business partners and serving our customers
are our values, the Group will continue to push forward on the current
success, continue to lead the industry healthy development and make
the company a “Chinese Ethical Brand” of food and beverage.

James Chun-Hsien Wei
Chief Executive Officer
23 March 2020
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AR EETEMERNESE ZAMIME This report aims to formulate the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
B & AR B R A Al (DA T R F8[ R AD Islands) Holding Corp. (“Tingyi”, "the Company" or “We") in
B [AaIsk[FH M ])2019F & environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) in 2019 for
% -+t & & & J8(TEnvironmental, readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
Social and Governance * ESGJ) A H refer to the Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in this
Z2RE BHEEANSINANTESR annual report.
HAFHRAE(REE ARE)— I

R HERERER ESG Concept
FRENE AT AR ERBR XL IR Master Kong shoulders the mission of “Promoting Chinese
wmERIKARESENEEIND Food & Beverage Culture”, embraces the corporate vision of
XFES  IRRFAKELE BB “Being the Most Respected Food & Beverage Company” and
e B BANEEES Y has always committed to the principle of “sustainable operation,
BEE BRBEOHSEMT  THIR contribution to society”. Master Kong maintains close and
RIBEBRERE B RER mutual communications with stakeholders, actively fulfills its
(AT RSMEIESG ) B MA MK - social responsibilities, and continues to explore and improves its
MAORKBEHXEEEANZHET performance in ESG. The Company dedicates to sharing corporate
FHARBRRAGATE  BAL values with stakeholders, achieving a life plus delicacy together,
BAEAL and enhancing social welfare.
BiR HEREREMETH ESG Strategies and Operations
REMETHREHENERTE Master Kong increasingly searched for the actual needs of the
% ) %5 48 %ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁuﬁi?@ BHE society, deeply integrated the essential appeals of stakeholders
XEBARAELES URTER E with the characteristics of the industry. Adhering to the five core
mMET HERR  BHEARED strategies of food safety development, product responsibility,
XBRBESGRRNZLER - ER energy conservation, environmental protection and win-
BEEXED  TEHMNARKRA MU win partnerships, it continued to exploit its advantages in the
HTIRE B EEBEED industry, to increase investment, aiming to sustain its innovative
BIFTERL contributions in ESG.
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Organizational Framework and Operation of Corporate
Social Responsibility

The Board of Directors of our Company is generally responsible
for the overall performance and information disclosure in relation
to ESG. In 2019, Master Kong CSR Committee (the “Committee”)
maintained its good operation. On the basis of clear CSR
strategies and development directions, the Committee guided
work implementation and performance evaluation, and regularly
conducted reviews and decision-making on work goals, reports
and disclosures, major relevant events, and reported ESG work
progress to the Board of Directors. Meanwhile, the Company
gradually promoted the CSR management model of “business
independence”, further leveraged the advantages of different
businesses, promoted pertinence and implementation in CSR
management, continued its efforts to enforce the concept of
“sustainable operation, contribution to society”.

Stakeholder Communication and Assessment of Importance
of Key Issues

The Company actively identifies the stakeholders’ expectations and
requirements on Master Kong through various communication
channels, and strives to fulfill the needs of stakeholders’ needs
while fulfilling social responsibilities.
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BIREEE
Communication Channels
and Responses

BREREREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

BEE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

HrEm
Suppliers

B REEHE
Government
and

Agencies

HEERAR
Communities
and the Public

ER R E
Universities
and Research
Institutions
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HEMEBETESERE BFRENBER
IMRE A

Domestic and overseas legitimate equity
and debt investors to Master Kong

HEMBRITERSHaRAREFRER
REVEEBOAR

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who
serve the Company in a regular basis

BEKRERMBEBE TS REERBE
EERAEE =

Companies, stores or individual
businesses that legally distributing various
branded products of Master Kong

mEMESEAEEEEDR - B EHAQ
HRmMmENEE  EEsEREP
Companies, stores or individual
businesses that legally supplying
production materials, accessories and
office supplies to Master Kong

Bm - B RIE - Z2FHP - A
[T BESEEEWE

Food, taxation, environmental protection,
safety and other authorities; local
governments; the SFC and other
regulatory agencies

HEMBREYAEAIEBERERNRL - 1]
B B LR R EMARENHE
Newspapers, TV stations, Internet
companies and other media agencies that
have established legal partnerships with
Master Kong

BEMAEMER e AR - EIFLFAE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

HERAEREY S ERERMNKRE
RATEHE

Universities, colleges and research
institutes partnering with Master Kong

25 - 6

REREAE  BHEFR - RERE  BES
General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, results announcements,
roadshows, etc.

BEIEY BRg 8IHEI-
fit - EAIBHYZE

Staff activities, staff congress, staff
training, staff manuals, corporate
publications, etc.

ERMRE - TEAM  BERBERREE
HES

Product exhibitions, industry survies,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

ARRREGE WA ERY  IRE
R

Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

8T F

BEER - AXAER - BERHIT
BEE

Field visits, official correspondences,
policy implementation, information
disclosure, etc.

=¥t

TELETH  XMLEFE  FEEREY
3
Business interviews, cultural promotion,

featured activities, etc.

ftE)EE - BETEREEE - AmEH -
HEEEXHS

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

ERESE BTEE Mg
RmEEHAEERE &
Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

iy
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Expectations and Feedbacks from stakeholders

Based on the communication with stakeholders, Master Kong
identified and evaluated the materiality assessments on ESG
substantive issues and hot topics in the industry, and presented
the evaluation results in the form of material topics assessment
matrix, and made responses in this report based on the results.

WESRHE (HEBHOTE) =

Internal assessment (impact on the business)

“Remain True to Our Original Aspiration”, Actively Take on
Social Responsibility

We never forget favours received and remain true to our original
aspiration. As a leader in the food industry, along with our own
business development, Master Kong actively contributes to the
development of the country by improving its CSR performance,
and firmly adheres to initiatives of sustainable development. The
Company is committed to the provision of "A Life Plus Delicacy"
for individuals, families, and communities across the country.
In 2019, Master Kong won wide recognition in the society and
among industry peers, due to its excellent efforts and performance
in CSR. During the period, the Company was honoured with
“China Food Enterprises Social Responsibility Golden Tripod

FRAT AR
2019 Annual Report £

31



(2019 Bl R M FEIRFRERE] -

(2019 Bt BEFARTEPEE] -
[2019 & 1} ?ﬂ% FEETERITL
R |SETHIA -

BEREEEE

FEEB AR ERR N
hEFEGm MERTERDPELS
A HERRRE  ERELE
ERIREBZMNE]2019FE
AlaEBRET(PEARANER
mMEEE) (RFEAREMBEER
BEXSHEBERER THERM
ZERMBEREAFERE B
HTREBIZERNERENEY

R

EmEZrERHEFEEXR

100%
i RS

EmTrEEREBEER

100%

32 EGEERERAF
Master Kong (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

IRIE - & REARE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Award 2019" “China Food Enterprises Environmental Protection
Award 2019”, "Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in CSR 2019"
and “The List of Responsible Practice 2019 - Annual Corporate
Responsibility Practice Award”.

Food Safety Management

Master Kong is committed to its mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture” and took food safety as the foundation
of the Company. It made food safety 'the most important thing'
with aerospace standards. In 2019, the company continued to
strictly abide by laws and regulations, such as the Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and continued to make
improvement in food safety and quality control, so that the
Company has achieved a full-cycle traceability management
approach, extending from farmlands to dinning tables.

Investment in Food Safety and Quality Control

Over RMB94 million

Suppliers Signing Rate of Food Safety Management
Agreement

100%

Suppliers Food Safety Management Inspection
Coverage

100%
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Served as the core driver for Master Kong's food safety
management, the Food Safety Centre of the Central Research
Institute (“Food Safety Centre”) keeps on good operation. The
Food Safety Centre has been accredited by the China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), and
annually performed more than 1,500 food safety indicator tests,
conducted more than 3.5 million quality indicator tests, and
carried out strict control over pesticide residues, heavy metals, food
additives, allergens, microorganisms and genetic modifications.
This year, the Food Safety Centre invested a total of more than
RMB25 million to increase the frequency of inspection on product
quality indicators, enhanced the professional knowledge and skills
of R&D personnel, further improved the authority of data derived
from the food safety laboratory, and actively engaged external
consultants to increase the diversity of talent composition and
eventually established “Food Safety Centre, Quality Assurance
Plus Factory” product sampling inspection system. Leveraged on
the world-leading scientific research and technology level, Master
Kong’s Innovation R & D Centre (IRD) successfully passed the
assessment of high-tech enterprises of Shanghai municipality, and
was successfully enlisted into the “National Food Safety Standard
Collaboration Group” to join in the revision of national food safety
standards in 2019. At the same time, the Food Safety Centre
actively participated in the formulation of various standards issued
by the State Food and Drug Administration, the National Health
and Family Planning Commission, the National Risk Assessment
Centre and the China Food and Beverage Industry Association.

We believe that to ensure the quality of oils used in our products
is the key to guarantee food safety. As such, Master Kong
and Jiangnan University entered into a two-year collaborative
partnership to develop “TGP Detection Application and Frying
Control Technology”. Oxidized Triacylglycerol Polymers (TGP)
indicators are mainly applied to monitor the freshness and quality
safety of edible oils and fats. When the TGP content in fats
and oils is above 2%, quality risk is likely to exist. Based on the
TGP indicator control, Master Kong established the full-chained
“Quality Control System for Instant Noodle Processing Oil” to
prevent any infusion of inferior oils into the production process
and ensure the freshness and safety of edible oils. Based on this
quality control system, Master Kong has also developed a dynamic
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control system for instant noodle frying, which enables the polar
compounds in edible oil and fat during frying process outperforms
30% of the national standards. The Company has announced
that it is willing to share the patent rights of TGP oil system with
industry peers and the society at no cost, and jointly improve the
overall industry food safety level.

FEEME R L

Master Kong's Food Safety Centre

Master Kong's dedication in food safety management has gained
wide recognition from the society. At the 17th Annual Food
Safety Conference hosted by authoritative departments including
the State Administration for Market Regulation and the China
Food Industry Association, Master Kong was awarded with the
title of “Top Ten Enterprises in Safety Management at China Food
Safety Annual Conference”. At the “2019 Boao Forum for China
Entrepreneurs - Food Development Conference”, Master Kong
was awarded the “2019 China Food Enterprise Benchmarking
Golden Chopstick Award”, which is the Company's fifth
consecutive year of this award since 2015.
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Construction of Food Safety Management System

In 2019, Master Kong continued to improve the food safety
management system for its various business segments. For
instant noodle with the smooth running of FSSC22000 (Food
Safety Certification System) at all normal operating factories, the
Company continues to promote “Quality System Management
on Processing Oil for Instant Noodles”, to safeguard food safety
in processing oil, Master Kong applied for accredited product
review from Standard Global Services (SGS) and China Quality
Certification Center (CQC). In addition, subject to internal audit
clauses “AIB +" of American Institute of Baking (AIB), the instant
noodle business continues to ensure high-quality of products.

For Master Kong beverage business and Pepsi beverage business,
all normal operating factories have secured 1SO22000/Food Safety
System Certification (FSSC) 22000 and Hazard Analysis and Critical
and Control Point (HACCP) system certifications, among which,
all bottled water factories have obtained the National Sanitation
Foundation (NSF) international certification, and all Pepsi beverage
factories and nearly 70% of Master Kong beverage factories have
participated in the AIB food safety audit and successfully passed.
All factories for instant food business also obtained 1ISO9001
(quality management system) and 1SO22000 certifications, and
passed the 2019 annual system inspection and audit.

Note: (D The normal operating factories refers to those continued to
operate for more than 6 months in 2019 and are not in a state of
shutdown or suspension.
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Food Safety Trackability Management

Master Kong managed to safeguard product quality and food
safety through procedures including supplier management, raw
material inspection at procurement, production process control,
and finished product inspection prior to delivery. The food raw
material traceability system we built can achieve the track-and-
trace of three distinctive dimensions: from raw material tracing
to the finished product shipment flow, finished product tracing
to relevant raw material information, and finished product flow
tracing. Based on relevant traceability and recall management
measures, the Company arranges for multiple product traceability
and recall drills each year to achieve forward traceability, reverse
traceability, process controllability, and accountability information
concerned with food safety.

In 2019, the Company completed the establishment of
demonstration plant, equipped with Material Requirement
Planning (MRP) traceability system, and intends to launch the
system online at all facilitates for the instant noodle business by
March 2020 to achieve the digitalised processing of the traceability
system. This system enabled a real-time query of the flow of
finished products and raw materials, which greatly improves the
efficiency of traceability operations. Meanwhile, the system also
enabled the systematic data processing of the inventory reception,
dispatching, batch processing, stock-taking batches of inventory,
and thus effectively improved the management capacity.

Cross-regional Partnership on Food Safety

Master Kong always insists on food safety as a non-competitive
field. As a leading Company in the China food industry, we are on
the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” and
we will join with cross-regional partners to promote food safety
and well-being of the society. In 2019, Master Kong collaborated
with several cross-regional partners in food safety to jointly
improve overall food safety management.
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Partner with the British Standards Institution (BSI) to conduct a two-party audit on the food
safety system targeted on pickled vegetable supply to mitigate risk at source ;
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Partner with Thermo Fisher to develop near-infrared spectroscopy detection technology to

ensure the quality of oil for instant noodles :
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Join hands with Ecolab to undertake professional consultation and services on pest control to

11 facilities to eliminate potential pest risks :
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Join hands with the sensory evaluation company, Flavoractiv of UK in conducting sensory

evaluation project to ensure the consistency of product taste and quality :
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Partner with UK Laboratory of the Government Chemist (LGC) and Creative Lifescience in
Taiwan to Launch a capability improvement project on microbiological inspection to further

ensure product safety.

EEmETMHR

RAMBEERERBEELAIGRE
FEXE BHERESMRE - 2K
EHR MR £ZREF - 5
ERRFEFE] - ERPERM

BITEMNEELE  RAFRAE

HE B A ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁa/iéuué’m
ERE LHRBEETES -
FE-OKRMEBELE A RAElHE
2 e (B R 2 &5 81(2017-
2030 F DERNMBEREEEE R
BRIBUSR - NETHE T F A & B K
WAFER MEMRBESZ  OK
BORBILT - BB BRMBEREEMN
RBE mRHEEBEHESLENS
Ko RRIAPIEEBHELERNNEE

HRRETHRER  HHTA
HiEFERl | RHECREN A

M| BFET 0K Express iR iEHE

Research and Development for Nutrition Products

The nutrition and health strategy as endorsed by Master Kong
is the themed, “
constant effort to improve product quality, consistently provide

Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture,

a diversed range of high-quality food and beverage, embrace
healthy, modern and endearing lifestyle”. As a leading company
in China's food and beverage industry, Master Kong is certainly
aware that convenience of product is not the only concern of
consumers, they are also care about nutrition, health impact, taste
and health preservation. Therefore, the company actively responds
to various national nutrition and health policies, including the
National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030), and continuously launches
innovative products. In terms of high nutrition content and
delicious taste, wider product choice, added with variety of
flavours, seasoning package stressed on nutrition and healthy diet,
all such improvements meet the consumers’ high standard needs
for quality. The Company provides customized meals for consumer
group's including athletes. The Company also launched “vegetable
noodles” featuring vitality and healthy, the ready-to-cook “self-
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heating noodles”, the appetizing “Express Noodle”, and the
nutrient-rich, bone soup series. Master Kong are prepared and will
spare no effort to promote research and development standards
in nutrition and health to the society, as well as to nurture a high-
quality talent pool.

Co-construction of Nutritional Quality

Master Kong constantly endeavours to improve product quality
and match up to the prevailing nutritional requirements. The
company is willing to work with all sectors of society to create a
new definition of nutritional quality. In June 2019, Master Kong,
Peking University and other institutions formally signed a tripartite
cooperation framework agreement to commence and promote in-
depth research projects on cutting-edge topics in food nutrition,
health big data, artificial intelligence, preventive medicine, and
sports medicine through industry-academia collaboration. Master
Kong promotes the nutritional improvement and health of all
citizens with related product development and science education,
and help with people's pursuit of a better life.

38 EHEERERAT
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Master Kong signs industry-academic cooperation agreement with

Peking University and other institutions

Master Kong (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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In August 2019, Master Kong jointed hands with Shenzhen
SPACEnter Space Science and Technology Institute to jointly
establish the “Aerospace Instant Food Laboratory”. This means
that two-parties will carry out in-depth cooperation in research
and development on aerospace instant food. This is another solid
step for Master Kong in docking with aerospace standards, and
carries profound significance to enable product upgrade for the
Company.
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Opening Ceremony for Aerospace Laboratory for Instant Food
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Food Safety and Charitable Activities on Nutrition and
Healthy Diet

In 2019, the Company launched food safety promotion
month activity themed as “Protecting Food Safety, We Are In
Action”, CIS Cloud Academy’s “Challenge Games for Food
Safety Connoisseurs”, “Speak for Food Safety”, the short video
contest, “Ethical and Law-abiding”food safety theme season
and other activities. Master Kong's affiliated factories also joined
in the effort and hosted food safety training and knowledge
contests, undertook self-inspection initiatives on food safety, and
commenced flight Inspections on suppliers and retroactive drills.
The facilities also invited government authorities, media, schools
and enterprises for on-site visits. Meanwhile, Master Kong also
visited schools and communities to promote food safety, as well as
nutritious and healthy diet concepts. In March 2019, at the 2018
to 2019 annual meeting of National Food and Nutrition Advisory
Committee, Master Kong was selected as the second batch of
national food and nutrition education demonstration bases and
we accepted the respected appointment at the event. We will
take this opportunity to promote our conviction on nutritious and
healthy.
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Master Kong adheres to the vision of “Becoming a Respected
Enterprise”, and shoulders the mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture”. Based on the principle of honest
business practice, the Company persists in exploration and
innovation, to explore new consumption scenarios for its products
and enhances brand influence. We will work closely with
upstream and downstream companies in the value chain, so as to
deliver “safe, convenient, delicious” products, meanwhile achieve
sustainable development.

Efficient Supplier Management Drives the Sustainable
Development of the Value Chain

Based on the extensive collection and study of laws and
regulations as well as international industry standards, Master
Kong, after thoroughly considering of its own operating
attributes and supplier management model, gradually expands
the coverage for “Suppliers’ Environmental and Social Risk
Compliance Basic Agreement”. Master Kong's suppliers are
required to make a commitment to comply with the requirements
of local environmental and social laws and regulations, and
to actively promote the construction of green supply chains
in various business practices. This year, the instant noodle
business incorporated plant environmental management, waste
management and employee heath and safety management into
the contents of annual suppliers assessment. All paper packaging
suppliers for Master Kong's beverage business and Pepsi beverage
business have received forest certification issued by the Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC). The instant food business specifically
requires upstream suppliers to dispose waste properly, to collect
waste separately, and to clean up waste promptly. As an anchor
in the value chain, Master Kong is prepared to press forward with
more like-minded partners, and jointly promote the sustainable
development of the value chain.
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This year, various business units within Master Kong joined in to
promote and adopt the Supplier Relationship Management (SRM)
system. As the supplier master data shared centre coordinated
the management of suppliers’ information, redundant data in the
system has been reduced. Meanwhile, all business units can share
the data of qualified suppliers, which saved their management
costs. Due to digitalised bidding process of suppliers, paper
documents such as base price files and suppliers' bidding
documents are no longer needed, which makes paperless work
flow come true. Also, since price inputting by manual labour is
changed, Master Kong increased work efficiency and accuracy,
and reduced resource consumption in the workflow.

Mainwhile, the Material Requirement Planning (MRP) for the
supply chain centres was adopted in 2019. On one hand, SAP
system is used to perform automated calculation on raw material
requirements, generate procurement requsets and purchase
orders, hence labour cost was reduced on processing raw material
requirements, and work accuracy and efficiency have been
improved. The automated raw materials purchase orders placing
helps to improve the transparency of procurement, production,
delivery and warehouse processing, and changes the previous
multi-level communication method among departments. Backed
by system information sharing, production plans can be executed
more efficiently. On the other hand, MRP helps rationalize the
work assignment of different production lines, make them run
smoothly without overloading or idling. Meanwhile, the system
helps to balance capacity allocation among suppliers, effectively
adjusts the inventory level of suppliers during the low and peak
seasons, reduces procurement costs, improves flexibility of
production scheduling, and further improves service quality and
customer satisfaction.

EmEEr 41

2019 Annual Report ¥



7R W 2
HRERFEmBRED

ERMEETEHRABSMEBEBED
B - BB A e MBI T PR 5%
ERARGRBNNE - AFE -
KERIERCEE TRE - EM
18 4 2018 4F 3,530,100,000 F (2 18
ILIEF)NTEELERET
EEM AL BEETRHERT
B RERREABEREPERX
LB fF & Bt R d, - (A2t FER
BRETBERENBEEY  BTE
RBRECEEENLEREER -
EEARERERROR U ER
Z £ ERENELEE TERME T

CEMNRKBERE  HEF
WAREZ L AESBHBPEXRRK
WIX2EIEER  AFERX
LR R BRI RFE R R R BE
AN - BRGSO E R 5E
B RMBAMRRNTEEERTE
i RENE % - ZRAVEREF
B E MR E IER - X
R RAMESTERABE S REE
B BEKEZHHEEEERI S
BIZ S b B R S o

42 EEMEZERERAA
Master Kong (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

IRIE - 12 REIATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Brand Breakthrough
World Records Strengthen Brand Leadership

While continuing to uplift its brand value, Master Kong is
resolute to prove its national brand influence on the global stage
through its culture and innovative capacity. This year, Master
Kong, officially certified by the Guinness World Records, won
the “World Record of Retail Volume for Ready To Drink Tea”
with retail volume of 3,530,100,000 liters (more than 3.53
billion liters) in 2018. Promoted by Guinness’s authoritative
platform, Master Kong's beverage, acted as the ambassador to
promote Chinese tea culture, spreaded message of the unique
and fineness of Chinese tea, and practiced the cultural mission
and responsibility as a national enterprise. Based on China’s
long-existing tea culture, Master Kong has created diversed tea
beverage product lines with advanced technology and ingenuity.
To fit in with the preferences of young people, Master Kong has
launched “Chacanting”, lemon tea with distinctive Hong Kong
style. The jasmine honey tea and jasmine tea series, blended with
Chinese tea culture, has spread Chinese culture to the world
once again. Behind its certified retail volume of its RTD tea by the
Guinness World Records, Master Kong has made one big leap
forward, to promote from “Chinese King of Tea” to a “Worldwide
Champion”. In the future, Master Kong will continue to improve
its brand value so that more consumers worldwide could enjoy the
exquisite charisma of Chinese tea culture.
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Integrated Marketing Honours and Awards

Leveraged on its proprietary brand advantages, Master Kong has
continued to explore creativity themes for its unique branded
products, and has successfully exerted its positive brand influence
both domestically and abroad. Our brand creativity are people-
centric, use big data to locate consumption hotspots, make use
of various channels to communicate with consumers, hence to
cultivate intimate relationships with consumers, and enable the
sustainable growth of brands. This year, Master Kong's Han
Yang Quan branded products won the Media 360 Marketing
Communication Golden Award with the theme of “2018 Han
Yang Quan plus Tmall’s “National Tidal Action” Cross-boundary
Campaign”, while Master Kong's beverage branded products
won the Bronze prize at 2019 Roi Festival Awards (media Group,
integrated marketing) with the theme of “Enjoy Happier Spring
Festival with Master Kong”.

BEENVERm [IEINER] mEEE

Master Kong “Enjoy Happier Spring Festival with Master Kong” Brand Theme

Improve Brand Impact by Supporting Beijing Marathon
Event

Founded in 2010, the Golden Flag Award is an acclaimed award
to elect the most excellent branded communication entities
that facilitate good public relations. For years, the award has
attracted many Fortune 500 companies to participate due to its
high profile of professionalism and authority. This year, with the
background of Beijing Marathon, Master Kong won the “Brand
Communication Golden Award of 2019 Golden Flag Award"” with
the case of “Join Beijing Marathon with Master Kong Noodles”,
which stood out from numerous award winning cases for its
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unique sport marketing strategy and brand communication
method. Served as suppliers for sports nutrition diet and based
on the characteristics of instant noodles for speedy replenishment
of carbohydrates, Master Kong satisfied the needs of marathon
athletes for carbohydrates supplement before and after the game.
Master Kong provided sufficient scenario experiences for nearly
30,000 participants of Beijing Marathon, the popular event,
and spread the topic of “Join Beijing Marathon with Master
Kong Noodles”, making “running marathon and eating Master
Kong instant noodles” a tacit understanding, and improved the
credibility the nutritious diet concept of Master Kong instant
noodles. In the future, Master Kong will continue to seek after
further breakthroughs in brand influence and to meet the diverse
needs of consumers.

Focus on Value Enhancement and Break Through
Traditional Cognition

Instant noodles have been regarded as “meal replacement” for
a long time. After three years of in-depth research, Master Kong
launched "Express Noodles”, a revolutionary innovation that
makes instant noodles to turn into “proper meal”. " Express
Noodles” regards middle class as the expected consumption
group. This product strives for innovation in the direction of
healthy and nutrition, while keeping easy and convenient at the
same time, which gained wide acceptance once it launched. In
2019, Master Kong's “Express Noodles” series won the “2018 to
2019 China’s Best Instant Food Innovation Award” at the 19th
China Instant Food Conference.
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Master Kong's “Express Noodles” won “2018 to 2019 China’s Best Instant Food Innovation Award”
at the 19th China Instant Food Conference
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Customer Services

Master Kong attaches great importance to customers demands,
by setting up 400 consumer service hotline, along with official
Weibo, WeChat and other service channels and information
retrieval platforms to ensure the efficient communication with
customers. Upon receipt of customer complaints, the customer
service centre guarantees timely response and continuous follow-
up to ensure that issues raised by consumers are be properly
resolved through returned visits and other methods. For common
issues, the customer service team will discuss and draw conclusion
to reach for optimised solutions. Master Kong identifies
deficiencies in its service via consumer satisfaction surveys and
make improvements and adjustments. Meanwhile, we strengthen
the training of customer service staff to improve service quality
and efficiency on constant basis. During the year, Master Kong's
overall settlement rate of customer satisfaction reached 98.8%.
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While providing customers with satisfactory services, we have
formulated a strict consumer privacy protection system. Prior to
obtaining and using consumers’ information, we must seek their
consent and enter into confidentiality agreements when necessary.
In cooperation with external research companies, the Company
will include confidentiality items and requirements into the
contract to ensure that consumer information is kept confidential.
For consumers’ information that has been acquired and saved, an
internal access right system and conditions for proper use are set
to fully protect consumer privacy.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

When dealing with advertising and product labels, Master Kong
strictly complied with the laws and regulations of the Advertising
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Trademark Law of
the People’s Republic of China to ensure that the advertisement
and label contents were true and legal, and there exists no
exaggerated, false or misleading contents. At the same time, the
Company strictly controls brand promotion and marketing and
promotes the integrous undertaking of contracts among partners
or other advertising publishers and operators.

During the year, Master Kong consolidated and promoted
intellectual property management and protection measures.
The Company cooperates with professional institutions to
comprehensively protect intellectual property, including patents
and trademarks; conducts customs filing application for key
intellectual property and sets up line of defense for customs
intellectual property monitoring, combats infringing products
and protects brand image. Before launching a new product,
Master Kong will comprehensive analyze the intellectual property
involved; while protecting our intellectual property, we avoid
infringing the intellectual property of other parties; in cooperation
with our partners, we respect and legally adopt the intellectual
property of others, and strike to protect our own intellectual
property.
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Anti-corruption Management and Protessional Ethics

Master Kong complies with the law and regulation requirements
such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China. The Company establishes and regularly assesses the anti-
corruption management systems, and avoids any direct or indirect
forms of bribery and other illegal commerical conducts. Master
Kong strictly controls the Company funds and cash flow to
prevent money laundering. The Company requires its employees
to strictly abide by business ethics, and sign Commitment
Letter on Anti-Corruption with staff and suppliers to resolutely
prevent violations of professional conduct, including bribery and
solicitation in business transactions. The Company has set up
reporting hotline and email to encourage employees and external
personnels to report improper conducts such as bribery. An
internal investigation department has been set up to strictly review
and deal with possible commercial violations.

As a leading enterprise in Chinese food industry, Master Kong is
well aware of the impact of its operations on the environment
and resources, and actively takes responsibility for protecting
the environment. We strictly abide by environmental protection
laws and regulations, actively respond to the nation's call for
energy conservation and emission reduction initiatives, improve
the internal energy conservation and environmental protection
management system, continue to increase investment, and actively
promote the implementation of various energy conservation and
emission reduction projects in various business sectors.

In 2019, Master Kong continued to improve efficiency of resource
and energy use by obsoleting low energy efficiency equipments,
installing intelligent control systems for water, electricity and gas,
and reusing reclaimed water and condensate water. We also
control pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions by installing
advanced exhaust gas treatment systems, low-nitrogen emission
reconstructing of boilers, introducing outer-net steam, and
packaging with less plastic.
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Master Kong beverage business factory in
Guangzhou initiated a special improvement on

the bottle drying blowers in production lines. By
applying the high-speed blowers and customised
air blade system, impressive results on energy
conservation has been achieved. In 2019, 235,000
kwh was saved in total.
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Energy Conservation Management

This year, Master Kong continued to implement internal energy
conservation management systems, namely, “Energy Management
Standards” and “Energy Consumption Assessment and Evaluation
Methods"”. Master Kong also carried out delicacy management for
energy conservation, actively explored segments and opportunities
for energy conservation in production processes, and continued
to promote and launch a number of key energy-conservation
projects, executed energy-conservation management, to realize
the reasonable utilization of energy. In 2019, Master Kong's
overall energy consumption per 10,000 cartons of products has
decreased by approximately 5%, compared with 2018. After
being assessed by the China Beverage Industry Association, 15
factories for Master Kong beverage business and 19 factories for
Pepsi beverage business earned the title of “Excellent Energy-
Saving Company”.

17.6% &
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At Hangzhou factory for instant food business,
press regulating valves of the main steam line
were reconstructed. After re-modelling, the
situation of long-time small flow pressure
regulation under large valves has been avoided,
and the steam consumption is scientifically
controlled according to the different steam
consumption level in summer and winter in the
factory. In 2019, annual steam consumption was
17.6% lower than in 2018 in the factory.
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Master Kong carries out water-conservation management
in compliance with internal regulations such as “Energy
Consumption Management Standards” and “Water Conservation
Management Systems”. Several factories have incorporated water
consumption indicators into their performance evaluation systems
and actively promoted water-conservation reconstruction projects.
In 2019, Master Kong ‘s water consumption per 10,000 cartons
of products has decreased by approximately 13%, compared
with 2018. After being assessed by the China Beverage Industry
Association, 12 factories for Master Kong beverage business
and 18 factories for Pepsi beverage business earned the title of
“Excellent Water Conservation Company”.

106E M 1.06million tons ¥
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The factories of instant noodle business have
recycled and reused condensate water, which
means storing condensate water produced in

manufacturing shops in a condensate recovery

tank for daily routine cleaning and for water
used in boiler, reducing waste water discharge.
In 2019, the factories of instant noodle business
saved about 1.06 million tons of water.

Mg

At Zhenzhou factory for Pepsi beverage business,
standardized treated wastewater collected from
the sewage treatment station will be conveyed to
reclaimed water treatment system, where it will
be upgraded to meet mixed water standard for
greening irrigation and pavement cleaning in the
factory, and providing free water sources for the
local government for road surface cleaning. The
system saved approximately 48 thousand tons of
water use annually.
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At Zhengzhou factory for instant noodle business,

the low nitrogen emission reconstruction of
biomass boilers has completed. The actual
emission value outperformed corresponding
. The
emissions of air pollutants in 2019 reduced by

period in previous year by more than 5

37.75 tons, as compared to 2018.
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Low Carbon and Emission Management

Master Kong strictly abides by the laws and regulations of the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Water Pollution Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control on Environmental
Protection by Solid Wastes. Master Kong has exercised focused
management and controls on waste water, waste gas, general
waste and hazardous waste, to ensure operation compliance and
reduce the environmental impact resulted from its production
operations. At the same time, the Company is acutely conscious
of the increasing awareness on carbon emission management of
various parties from domestic and abroad. Through optimising
production processes and introducing advanced environmental
protection facilities and technologies, the Company has
reduced its carbon emission level. In 2019, the total amount of
greenhouse gas emissions generated by Master Kong decreased
by approximately 7%, compared with 2018.

2.60MEtons ‘
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At Zhengzhou factory for Master Kong's beverage

business, 4 sets of Volatile Organic Compounds
(VOC) exhaust gas treatment systems were
applied in bottle-embryo production and bottle
blowing process. The operation remains stable;
removal rate during production process reaches
71%, with 2.60 tons non—-methane hydrocarbons
reduced annually
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At the Beijing factory for Pepsi beverage business,

since out-dated fume exhaust equipments were
replaced, fume removal rate increased from 75%
to 96%; fume emission index decreased from
2.0mg/m? to 1.0mg/m?, and the dechemicalization
function of particulate matters and non-methane

15% §
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At Hangzhou factory for instant food business,

we actively responded to the initiative for garbage

sorting, and appointed a specialist to sort garbage.
The recyclable waste is gathered for centralised
collection by qualified recyclers. The amount of
waste discharged in 2019 is approximately 15%

hydrocarbons has been added.
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lower than the same period of the previous year.

Reduce the Use of Packaging Materials

Master Kong is committed to reducing the use of packaging
materials, as well as to strengthening internal management in
all aspects of product manufacture, sale and delivery. Master
Kong continues to seek after opportunities to reduce the use
of packaging materials and search for disposable packaging
alternatives, to reduce the environmental impact brought by the
production and operation of the Company.

This year, the instant noodles business has fine-tuned the packing
machines of the production line to reduce the amount of cartons
loss caused by the facilities’ current setting, and replaced the
starch packaging bags for bulk container package bags to reduce
the amount of packaging bags. Master Kong beverage business
removed side seals for some carton boxes to reduce packaging
paper used; Pepsi beverage business reduced the thickness of
aluminium cans by 0.01 mm and replaced the packaging method
from stack-packed protective wrapping films to packing tape,
which reduced the use of metal aluminium and plastic wrapping
films. As for instant food sector, to reduce the use of packaging
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bags for raw materials, purchased bulk raw materials, including
flour and oil has been delivered via tanker trucks.

Meanwhile, at internal level, Master Kong promoted various less
plastic packaging projects, with the prime aim to reduce plastic
use through various management measures and optimised
production processes. In 2019, based on the premise of ensuring
product quality, Master Kong's beverage business and Pepsi

HER T & BHRE

YRR S o beverage business have completed their plastic reduction

measures respectively.
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Master Kong's beverage business: the weight
for 330 ml empty bottle-embryo reduced from
Pepsi beverage business: the weight
for 300ml PET bottle reduced from
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Deal with Climate Change

Master Kong ‘s routine risk assessment applied to its supply
chain systems has counted in the business continuity risks, and
incorporated physical risks caused by climate change, including the
occurrence of catastrophic weather. Through analysis of possible
climate change risks on various business sectors, Master Kong will
be able to formulate effective countermeasures to ensure stable
supply of products in the event of an emergency. Meanwhile, as
Master Kong's factories are located wide across China, every kind
of raw materials of each business sector is supplied by a number
of qualified suppliers located across the country, which can
effectively reduce the risk of interruption of material supply due to
adverse weather condition in local areas.
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In addition, Master Kong's procurement divisions in various
businesses are highly alert of to the dynamic supply and demand
market conditions for those raw material sensitive to weather
changes. For example, the instant noodles business always
concerns with palm oil, while beverage business is mindful of
sugar, juice and smoked plum. The procurement departments
concern on the weather conditions of the origin of those sensitive
raw materials and forecast the market trend based on the latest
development of forthcoming weather conditions. If abnormal price
movements are identified, Master Kong will exercise measures to
lock prices in advance, to maximize gains of the Company.

The Environmental Key Performance Indicators

The environmental key performance indicators for the year 2019
were listed below. Unless otherwise specified, the environmental
data™ covers the Shanghai Master Kong Headquarters and all
domestic factories directly managed® by each business. Overseas
offices are not included in the statistics due to their small
operation scale. While in the future, we will collect and disclose
their data timely, based on the actual situation.

Total greenhouse gas emission® 99.5
(Scope 1 and Scope 2) ® (10,000 tonnes)

Greenhouse gas emission 6.2
(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)

Comprehensive energy consumption® (MWh) 5,367,300.9

Comprehensive energy consumption 333
(MWh/10,000 boxes of products)

Electricity 1,323,188.6

Electricity consumption 8.2
(MWH/10,000 boxes of products)

Gasoline/diesel 6,938.9

Natural gas/coal 764,789.8

Steam purchased 3,272,383.6

Total water consumption® (m?) 41,567,966.3

Water consumption 258.0
(m3/10,000 boxes of products)

Total use of product packaging 1,068,397.6
materials? (tonne)

Use of product packaging materials 6.6
(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)

Total COD Emissions® (tonne) 128.5

Total hazardous waste (tonne) 983.9

Discharge of hazardous waste 0.006
(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)

Total non-hazardous waste (tonne) 168,784.5

Discharge of non-hazardous waste 1.05
(tonne/10,000 boxes of products)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong, in 2019, its major emissions
are greenhouse gases, sulphur dioxide (SO2) and nitrogen oxides
(NOx), which are mainly from the use of fossil fuel-converted
electricity and fuels. As compared with 2018, with further reduction
of use of fossil fuels, including natural gas and coal, thereby,
emissions of sulphur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxide (NOx) further
lowered and thus, were not disclosed as major gaseous emissions
for the year.

The domestic factories directly managed by Master Kong include
all the domestic instant noodle Master Kong beverage, and instant
food factories located inside the country, as well as all the domestic
Pepsi beverage factories except 7 factories in Shanghai , Wuhan,
Nanjing, Hangzhou, Guilin, Tianjing and Fuzhou. Pepsi beverage's 4
factories in Shanghai, Wuhan, Nanjing and Hangzhou are managed
directly by PepsiCo International. Factories in Guilin, Tianjin, Jinan
and Fuzhou were closed during the year, and are therefore not
included in this statistics.

The scope of Master Kong's greenhouse gas calculation mainly
covers carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse
gas emission data is presented in CO2 equivalent and is calculated
based on the 2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(IPCC) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories (revised
edition in 2019).

Scope 1: covering the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company's operations; Scope 2: “Indirect energy”
greenhouse gas emissions resulted from the Company's internal
consumption (electricity, either purchased or obtained); the gas
emissions caused by "indirect energy" purchased heat will be
calculated after the promulgation of the national unified calculation
standard.

Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated based on
energy consumption (direct and indirect), according to the
General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008), the State Standard of the People's
Republic of China.

Water consumption refers to production water within the statistical
range together with employee’s consumption of water in the office.

Amount of product packaging materials is the sum of the total
amount of packaging materials used by all Master Kong products.

Total COD emission is the sum of COD emission of all factories
within the statistical range.
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Master Kong is deeply convinced that employees are the
cornerstone that the company depends on for our booming
development, and that every employee who is “Diligence,
Integrity, Expertised” are definitely the core asset that the
Company counts on.” We believe that the growth and
development of every employee is just as important as the success
of the company. Master Kong endeavours to create a comfortable
and harmonious working environment, stands firm to safeguard
the legitimate rights and interests of our employees, pays attention
to our employee's health and safety, provide our employee's
with training programs, that we aim to build a caring corporate
culture, facilitating the mutual growth of both employees and the
Company.

Safeguard Employees' Rights, Interests and Benefits

Master Kong makes every effort to ensure that the legitimate
rights and interests of each employee are not infringed. We
strictly abide by the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law on the Protection of Women's Rights, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of the Disabled,
the Regulation on the Employment of the Disabled and other
relevant laws and regulations, apply various measures to provide
employees with fair and equitable compensation and benefits.
The Company is committed to build a diversed and diversified
workforce, providing all employees with open and equal
employment and promotion opportunities, all employees are
treated equally regardless of their genders, ages, ethnicities, races
or religious beliefs, and will not succumb to discrimination against
special employee groups, actively research for new measures to
support the work of physically challenged employees and ensure
that no child labour and forced labour incidents taken place.

EeEER 55

2019 Annual Report ¥



RIR - @ MEARE

RAMBEEETHRE  ABHE% -
EA HBEIEAEE T AN
EEHE - TEEBFE - KiE-
EHREHERBERBRBETEHK
FEMCERNIBERIE - L E
REBERBEIEEERE  BEA
% wf%%%@%méion
20195 RAIRBBAEERBRL B
EEERIEMITASE Ffﬁm
BETEFEEERE MEABHN
AT EE T AT o FRANE RS &
BEBEEEREIEEIIE - &
W FREBEHFEETRN L BB
EEMABEIREAEHRF NN
BHRPE - WIERZNETITIE &
miakg—=l - RREFEEIRD
W HEF  BMEEINIER
CRBREBSHEITHTE  WRIE
Tﬂﬁiﬁmalﬁw%ﬁmmﬁ
g EHER - FMEIEETH
B -UEBEAARBEIEE R -
FEEITCIHERKSRE  BRK
BRE o ko BMERE TRM
FEKRE - £HE® BEFED -
B A& mE MR R I E R EE
B BEEBRAMAXLERE
LEH BEBABTARZRUYNT
ESE BLEISLER B
HEIRZIREAFINEE -

56 EMEERERAH
Master Kong (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Master Kong has developed detailed management systems in
employee recruitment, probation assessment, promotion and
dimission, etc. Master Kong strictly abides by national laws and
internal management measures in the act of signing, renewing,
terminating and dissolving employment contracts, thereby ensuring
all employment actions are in compliance to laws and regulations,
so that the legitimate rights and interests of employees are also
protected. In 2019, in accordance with the actual situation, the
company expanded and revised various management measures,
continued optimising management processes for employment
towards a more effective talents acquisition practice. Master Kong
complies strictly with relevant laws and regulations to develop a
management system for salary, performance, and year-end bonus.
The company scientifically and reasonably provides competitive
compensation for employees, makes punctual payment to
employees, and contributes to five mandatory insurance schemes
(pension fund, medical insurance, injury insurance, unemployment
insurance, and maternity insurance) plus a housing provident
fund (only applicable to Chinese employees). In order to protect
the right of employees to have sufficient rest, we agree on
employees' working hours, vacation management and so on, and
adopt diversified attendance management according to different
employment groups. Master Kong attaches great importance to
the care of employees, and provides them with various forms
of welfare, so that they can find happiness in their work and
experience the feeling of home. In addition, we also provide
employees with non-cash benefits such as annual travel, birthday
gift, marriage gift, and holiday gift, and regularly carry out
activities such as team building, health checkup and humanistic
psychological care to actively create a good working atmosphere
for employees, care for their physical and mental development,
and strive to make employees feel the care from the company.
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The company encourages employees to workout actively to
ensure overall health and fitness. We have set up KSF CLUB in
the Master Kong Building, which has served about 25,000 people
since its operation. The fitness facilities in KSF CLUB are equipped
with international first-class setups such as rock climbing, boxing,
strength-training equipments, treadmills, etc., and has professional
coaches for on-site guidance, so that employees can workout with
no worry. The entertainment area of KSF CLUB is equipped with
billiards, table tennis, darts, etc. We regularly hold various events
in KSF CLUB, so that employees can enjoy some competitive
entertainment after work to release pressure. The group-based
gymnastics classes are available for both morning and afternoon
to provide self-refreshment and recovery, while evening classes
focus on fat-burning and body shaping to help employees stay
in shape. We regularly revise and swap the class schedules for
group-based gymnastics exercises to keep employee's feeling of
freshness. Meanwhile, in order to enhance sports experience, we
installed the smart controlled constant ventilation system, which
can filter and purify the outdoor fresh air and send into the room.
This system can filter 99% of nanoparticles (PM,) and more than
230 kinds of toxic and harmful gases, thus indoor air will remain
fresh and healthy, a fresh-new experience like walking in the rain
forest.
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Sports, recreational and gym facilities at Master Kong Building
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Create Healthy and Safe Working Environment

Master Kong stands firm to provide employees with a healthy
and safe working environment, and strive to build a workplace
in compliance with national safety production standards, Master
Kong strictly abides by the Work Safety Law of the People's
Republic of China , The Law on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Disease of the People’s Republic of China , and The
Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China and other
health and safety-related laws and regulations, and introduces
a series of management measures and procedures for the
prevention, control and responsibility compliance, to apply an
multi-facet approach to ensure employees’ health and safety.
The company conducts regular activities and education sessions
on safety for employees, actively arranges fire safety drills and
fire equipment drills, to enhance awareness of fire safety, and
improves basic skills in handling events at contingency among
employees. In addition, the Company continues investing to
promote safety and health for our employees, and regularly
distributes protective supplies to employees. Meanwhile, at
all factories, environment, health and safety (EHS) related
requirements and concepts are painstakingly followed and
implemented. Besides, Master Kong will continue carrying forth
in-depth EHS management activities, strictly undertaking annual
EHS audits, and regularly giving feedback on safety production.
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Promote Growth and Development of Employees

Adhering to the philosophy of caring for employees, Master Kong
organically combines training and education of employees with
their career development, actively creates learning opportunities
for them, and shapes excellent talents in all aspects. Master Kong
has established a comprehensive staff training framework and
system. We conduct customized training sessions for employees
at different levels to ensure both the relevance and effectiveness
of training. In 2019, the Company introduced a variety of training
sessions and projects, with an accumulated training time of more
than 5.7975 million hours and an average of 109.83 hours of
training per person. In order to adapt to the continuous update
of training technologies and methods in the internet era, Master
Kong timely launched the "KSF-Cloud" online learning platform
for mobile devices, provides employees with abundant learning
resources under the trend of fragmented learning, let each staff
watch training video clips pushed by the Company anytime and
anywhere, so that to accelerate individual growth. In addition,
we encourage employees to learn to use different online training
approaches, such as all-time voice, Skype videos, WeChat groups
to form a learning group, so as to improve learning efficiency, and
make up for any capability limitation.

2R ABHIRE FEE
Specific Training Sessions on All-national
Human Resource Trainers

In order to implement the values of "Diligence, Integrity,
Expertise" and to make the anti-corruption concept popular,
Master Kong followed the Reward and Punishment Management
Measures to conduct anti-corruption trainings for new employees
and released a course series, “Away from Negative Energy” in
"KSF-Cloud”. The series on anti-corruption are presented in
animated characters via mobile devices. In 2019, approximately
95% of employees have completed anti-corruption training on
“KSF-Cloud”.
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Move Forward with The Times, Continue to Construct
Corporate Culture

Master Kong embraced the corporate vision of “Being a
Respected Company”, undertook the corporate mission of
"Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture”, adhere to the
business philosophy of "Integriey, Pragmatic and Innovative", and
always committed to provide consumers with safe, delicious, and
worthy-for-money products. Facing the drastic changes in the
consumption demand with regards to both quality and quantity in
the China food and beverage markets, Master Kong people have
adopted to the changing times. While maintaining the core values
on which the company has achieved outstanding results over the
past 27 years, Master Kong committed to explore a cultural path
to sustainable success. In 2019, CIS (Corporate Identity System)
corporate culture follows the trend and refines its connotation.
We have drawn up a new explanation pursued by our Company
at the present stage, including "Science, Harmony, Win-win
cooperation, Performance”, which is based on the founder's
philosophy, the wisdom of middle and senior management, and
the experience of outstanding front-line employees. The process
took us 10 months, from the perspective of external consultants,
8 sessions of workshops for middle and senior executives, one-on-
one interviews with 374 employees and visits to 10 cities.

BRHEE M RANE DX UERER

Move Forward with The Times, Master Kong's Corporate Culture Construction
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A successful application of corporate culture depends on business
management as its facilitator, and it also has to be testified via
management practices. In line with the guiding principle of
serving for frontlines, each business sectors act in accordance with
their respective operating environment and organizational status,
and grounded on enhancing customer service to create a valued
supply chain, in collaboration with upstream and downstream
partners, and join hand with working partners to innovate and
reap harvest from the voyage of culture promotion. A Promotion
Committee for CIS was founded for each sector to ensure the
effective operation of the overall cultural system. A promotional
ambassador for each division within each business sector was
selected to facilitate regular communication and provide guidance
on public opinion. Local sales companies and factories set up
CIS commissioner position, to cooperate with the business
department, to create a top-down atmosphere of "all staff to
know the strategy, to participate in performance competition and
skill improvement".

To pursue growth and achieve results, an enterprise absolutely
needs the overall strength of the team. It must abandon the
appearance of harmony and pursue the consistent goal. Each
unit of the Group, based on its current business status and
job responsibility, actively responds on the way they integrate
culture into daily work. In the six major cities led by the regional
offices, over 30 training sessions and seminars with the theme
" Achieve a win-win solution through harmony” were conducted
among middle and senior executives. General managers, factory
managers and their immediate subordinate executives from
different businesses applied the “challenge is the coin-flip of
opportunities” mindset, to discuss the cooperation within Group,
apply ample conscience undertakings of obligations, stimulate
internal incentive to press forward, to lead the teams comprised
of new generation to exploring on infinite possibilities, for the
greater benefits for the Group.

Corporate culture is deemed as a consensus that unifies
thinking and establishes a common language. In the process
of transformation, management must adopt a new mindset
before any upgrades could happen; moreover, to catering to the
new generation requries innovation. To effectively convey the
management consensus of the post-60s and post-70s, and to
interestingly present the excellent conducts of post-80s and post-
90s, we tried to use the form of comic story records, and through
various communication channels within each sector, to regulate
and synchronize the minds and actions of four generations.
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Local cross-business general managers, factory managers and
their immediate subordinate executives attended
“Achieve a win-win solution through harmony”
themed training session and seminar
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An ideal Master Kong member and Master Kong team must have
the ability to maintain mindfulness at all times, release positive
energy, work hard on the right path, and strong enough to
deal with any expected or unexpected challenges and changes.
Therefore, we need to implant the proper DNA in every Master
Kong members. We are thankful to excellent pioneering
entrepreneurs and forerunners with their benchmarking conducts
and practice that have led to our success today. Each businesses
continues to appoint its CIS exemplar employees to join in the
evaluation assessment of "I am the able-body for performance"
and "Annual win-win Award". Subsequently, nominees and
attendees gathered on the stage at the headquarters, delivering
brief talks on their learning experience in frontline of sales and
factories. The six "Heroes with Thousand Faces" who have all
proved their sophisticated abilities in problem-solving, showed to
Master Kong members their most extraordinary resilience applied
to the daily routine tasks and that they never get tired of learning.
Their inspiring stories have earned respect and made their family
members proud. The mission and passion shared by Master
Kong members are inherited from the original inspiration since
its inception, among which include the all-embracing values to
make a better society. We expect to pass forward the values and
improve the well-being of our employees themselves, their families
and even the society and the world.

ERAMEFTHARER - EHFE—RalHRE
Master Kong's new generation team
is creating win-win situation with youth
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Community Investment Key Performance Indicators

0195 ETEMEEDRR :
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2019:

(,} 2238/

223,000 hours

Master Kong constantly pays attention to community needs,
actively contributes to community development, and is committed
to the enterprise-society synergic development. In 2019,
leveraging its industrial leadership, Master Kong continued
community investment activities such as employment support for
the disabled, food safety science popularization, education on
water, sports-related public welfare, disaster relief, and support
for the development of agriculture, rural areas and farmers, and
was well recognized by the society. Meanwhile, the Company

continued to reinforce college-enterprise cooperation and help
promote the development of education.

Empower People with Disabilities to Realize Their Dream;
Work Together to Build a Harmonious Society

China, as a developing country, with the largest population in the
world, has tens of millions of disabled people. Many of them are
deprived of opportunities to obtain a decent job and income to
lead an ordinary lives because of physical disabilities. As a result,
their quality of living is seriously impaired. In addition to physical
disabilities, the disabled also bear great suffering from life due to
unequal work opportunities.
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Master Kong regards people with disabilities as equal members of
our society, as well as a significant driver for the development of
modern civilization. In recent years, we adhere to the operation
motif of “Sustainable Operation and Contribution to Society”,
and actively seek for new initiatives to help employment for the
disabled. The Company launched precision marketing strategies
and smart access systems that based on big data and artificial
intelligence, and applied the latest internet-based technology and
retail models to enable phyiscally challenged employees to achieve
“internet plus work at home”. The disabled staff members are
no longer restricted by time and space during work. This enables
them to blend into society and achieve self-value better. As of the
end of 2019, Master Kong had 193 employees with disabilities,
including 72 new-hire this year. Master Kong honoured with the
title of “2019 Caring Enterprise in Poverty Alleviation Project for
Promoting Disabled Employment in Inner Mongolia” due to its
impressive contribution to support employment for the disabled.

FEAME I 2019 F AR E AR AR ERE TIZE O IR
Master Kong honoured with the title, "2019 Caring Enterprise

EREVE R A E A RER AR T
Executives from China Disabled Persons’ Federation and Master
Kong representatives were visiting
our disabled staff

in Poverty Alleviation Project for Promoting Disabled
Employment in Inner Mongolian"
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In the fourth quarter of 2019, we enlisted employees to launch
the charitable event, named “Dream Comes True”, to increase
awareness in office of the concern and care for the disabled.
Staffs were encouraged to join the online relay activity, “Light
up Love”, with 10,000 hearts gathered in couple of days. We
had also lightened the tree of love located in Art + Garden
at W Square, Shanghai and organized staff to write cards for
disabled employees offline. All the lighted hearts in this event
were exchanged into consolation gifts for the winter seasons of
2019. Gifts and more than 200 best-wishes cards, were delivered
to disabled employees by the executives from China Disabled
Persons’ Federation and Master Kong representatives. Master
Kong members with physical challenge were deeply moved by the
sincere message of love and care from Master Kong, although
they are thousands of miles away from headquarter.

Food Safety and Aerospace Science Popularization

Master Kong actively responds to the national food safety
strategic, and is committed to promote food safety awareness and
knowledge to society to achieve a food safety compliance society
via food safety science popularization.

ZFPER2 BRI P E TS

Children joined in Food Safety Science and Technology Exhibition of Aerospace Spirit of China
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Served as a partner in China's space industry, Master Kong
constantly carried out the “Aerospace Spirit China Tour and
Food Safety Science Popularisation Exhibition” within the year to
incorporate aerospace knowledge into the food safety science
popularisation exhibition. As of the end of 2019, these exhibitions
had been held in ten cities such as Xi‘an, Chengdu, Jinan, Lhasa,
and Shenzhen. They are particularly targeted at teenagers,
and are divided into 9 segments, including China Aerospace
Memorabilia and Long March Carrier Rocket, with a total of more
than 50 contents. Children can observe the spacecraft on site,
assemble satellites by themselves, and experience space travel
via VR technology. Meanwhile, Master Kong specially invited
experienced teachers in aerospace science to deliver lessons on
food knowledge in space environment through the application
of "interdisciplinary knowledge fusion" and "creation through
practices" approach, teachers managed to unlock the aerospace
knowledge by applying popular food science. Master Kong wishes
that through the science popularisation exhibitions, knowledge on
food safety would be passed along. The Company also wish to see
“"Dream Come True"” for younger generation with a passion for
aerospace science and contribute to the aerospace industry of the
motherland

Besides, during the themed seasonal event on food safety of
"Ethical and Law-abiding; Join to Build a Food Safety Culture”,
Master Kong conducted school and community visits on food
safety science popularisation, hosted thematic activities on food
safety, such as “Challenge Games for Food Safety Connoisseurs”
and “Speak for Food Safety” short video contest nationwide.
Master Kong aims to increase knowledge and awareness on food
safety among the public, via various activities on food safety.
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Education on Water into School

In 2019, "Education on Water"”, co-hosted by Master Kong
beverage business and the China Beverage Industry Association
has been carried out for five years. Master Kong bears upon
its shoulder the indispensable responsibility as "Water Expert”
who genuinely uses water cherished, is all ready to help young
generation to “learn water, value water, and conserve water”.
During the year, we based our water education activities on the
themed “Safe Water with Every Bottle” and visited 11 schools in
10 cities, such as Shanghai, Beijing, and Zhengzhou, and delivered
water science to nearly 2,000 students.

To encourage students to participate in the activities and enjoy
the games, Master Kong, adhering to the “interest-based
popularisation” concept, hosted for various fun and interactive
games, such as “Water Quiz Show"”, “Tiny laboratory”, “Super
Flying Chess for Water Conservation” and “Three-level Water
Source Protection”. By applying an immersive experimental
teaching and learning approach, children are able to access to the
secrets of water recycling process, which definitely help to raise
their awareness on water conservation, so that they will develop
rational habit in water consumption, and become a “green”
devotee to promote the conservation of water resources in the
future.

KEHB RTIEE

Charitable activities on water education
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Support Sports Charity Events

For years, Master Kong has been seriously engaged with the sports
sector in China, and continued to press ahead in supporting sports
welfare. By supporting all kinds of sports events, Master Kong
promotes the combination of exercise and healthy diet, we convey
the healthy concept of “balance between food and exercise”.
This year, Master Kong became a sports nutrition catering
partner of the Winter Sports Management Centre of the General
Administration of Sport of China. Besides, we strongly supported
marathon events in different cities, carried out the "Master Kong
Burning Dream Public Welfare Activity" and continued the Tiny
Volleyball Training Camp project jointly with the Chinese Women's
Volleyball Team.

Master Kong worked with experts from the Winter Sports
Management Centre of the General Administration of Sport to
develop a safe and healthy sports nutrition diet to safeguard the
health of athletes. In 2019, Master Kong successfully delivered
the "Express for snow athletes” to Winter Sports Management
Centre. Athletes, despite training hard abroad, were able to enjoy
the taste of gourmet cuisine from homeland, and the vacancy of
sports nutrition in China was also filled.

BB RKSEERRKEHERER
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Master Kong custom-made nutrition diet for national teams of winter games
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Served as sport catering collaborative partner of marathon, Master
Kong has been keen on supporting marathon games nationwide
for years. We promote a scientific approach to serve catering,
that we particularly focus on runners, and ensure that they are
provided with sufficient energy for the event. Since 2016, Master
Kong has served millions of Marathon runners. In the future,
Master Kong will continue to support Marathon events with safe
and reliable sports catering services.

In 2019, Master Kong continued to support the Tiny Volleyball
Training Camp projects, provided free and high-standard learning
opportunities for children who are passionate for volleyball. We
worked with Ms. Lang Ping to help local volleyball game for the
children. During the event, Master Kong invited head coach Ms.
Lang Ping and the star players in women's volleyball team to share
their skills and play with children so that children would enjoy
volleyball games by playing and practice. After the event, Master
Kong prepared healthy and nutritious food for children to give
them energy, and also conveyed to them the concept that exercise
and diet should be combined scientifically. Leverage on the hot
topics of Women's Volleyball World Championships, Master Kong
launched “Assist Lang Ping, Speed up Energy” activity. During the
activity, netizens sent greetings to the Chinese National Women's
Volleyball Team during World Cup and purchased souvenirs for
the opportunity to receive volleyballs or other gifts signed by
Lang Ping, and the total sales revenue from this activity was used
to support Master Kong's Tiny Volleyball Training Camp project.
When the Chinese Women's Volleyball Team won the Osaka
Women's Volleyball World Cup in 2019, Master Kong held a
ceremony to celebrate the success and the 70th birthday of the
People’s Republic of China. The 70th anniversary special edition
of the Express Chef's Noodles was presented to Lang Ping and
other attendees. The Express Chef's Noodles contains real “large
chunk of meat” and a variety of fresh vegetables and were used
to celebrate the most memorable moment.
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Lang Ping and Zhu Ting came to Master Kong Tiny Volleyball
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Master Kong supports Chinese Women's Volleyball Team and
Training Camp - “Volleyball plus Delicacy” to empower celebrates the 70th anniversary of the founding of the PRC

children who like volleyball games

019 ERIBEFEE2EAGE In 2019, Master Kong joined hands with the Adream Charitable
PERESEMKSEH L RAHE Foundation to invest RMB 1 million in 5 Dream Centres. At the
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end of 2019, 7 basketball dream centres in four provinces of
Henan, Xinjiang, Jiangxi and Fujian have been built. We have
also donated basketball facilities for 75 schools. Master Kong will
continue with its effort to support junior basketball education
in the following 6 years to inspire more children to achieve their
dreams while keeping fit. At the same time, in Shanghai Adream
Charitable Foundation-Master Kong Dream Center Special Fund
cooperative schools across the country, the champion team of
Burning Team gave on-the-spot basketball skills guidance to the
children, helping the school to create an atmosphere of "everyone
can play basketball, everyone loves basketball", to encourage
more basketball lovers.

RIS IN )

Master Kong hosted basketball public welfare activities
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Focus on Social Services

Master Kong is convinced that the development of an enterprise
is closely related to the overwhelmingly support from the society.
The Company strives to serve with its best endeavour to those in
need across a broad spectrum within community and does its best
to offer care via charitable undertakings. In 2019, Master Kong
conducted condolence visits to nursing homes, kindergartens,
schools, police stations, military units and remote areas. We also
actively delivered care and warmth to the front-line workers under
adverse working environment across the country, such as traffic
policemen and sanitation workers, through various means and
campaigns including “cool and refreshing stations"and "warm
winter campaigns”. At the same time, Master Kong pays a lot of
attention to the growth and development of the youth, it initiated
the charitable school projects for leftover children here, organized
charitable events for disabled and autistic children.

As a member of an excellent state enterprise, after enduring
years of learning through disaster experiences, Master Kong has
established a system of rapid response for disaster relief. When
a disaster happens, Master Kong will swiftly show on the front
line at the scene of catastrophe, coming into the immediate aid
of the victims. In April 2019, a fire from Russian border broke
out in Huleyetu, Chenbalhu Banner, Hulunbuir city of Inner
Mongolia, Master Kong promptly brought to the scene 3,000
cases of water to come to the aid of the firefighters, testified to its
whole-hearted support for the fire rescue. When an unexpected
fire broke out near Qipan Mountain in Shenyang, Master Kong
instantly despatched 2,000 cases supplies to scene of calamity. In
June, an earthquake of magnitude 6.0 happened in Changning
County, Yibin City of Sichuan Province. Master Kong quickly
arranged vehicles to distribute 1,200 boxes of instant noodles and
3,000 boxes of drinking water to the disaster area. In July, a huge
landslide disaster took place in Shuicheng County, Liupanshui
City of Guizhou Province. Master Kong donates 1,100 boxes of
drinking water to mitigate water shortage at the scene. In August,
Typhoon Ligima close-in Zhejiang, Taizhou and Wenzhou and the
neighbouring provinces were severely wrecked. Master Kong’s
local sales company joined with volunteers to aid in the relief
actions, despatching 20 assault boats and more than 2,200 cases
of Master Kong's drinking water to the scene of calamity. In mid-
August, rain storm dwelled in Heilongjiang, and floods occurred
in Jiejinkou Hezhe of Tongjiang City, Master Kong delivered
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3,600 bowls of instant noodles, 11,000 bottles of Master Kong's
packaged water, 6,000 bottles of Pepsi-Cola Aquafina, 2,400
bottles of other beverages to flood control supportive personnels.
On account of the timely relief, this had been identified as
“the well-timed rescue” by local flood control personnels. The
disastrous rainstorm at Wenchuan on 20th of August triggered a
torrential landslide. To help mitigate shortage of drinking water
for the affected victims, Master Kong donated 36,000 bottles of
drinking water.

Besides, in 2019, Master Kong continued to support and
contribute to various foundations and to participate in charity
events, such as the 2019 Winter Poverty Alleviation Project
conducted in Tongren of Qinghai; Guanghe of Gansu; Datong of
Shanxi, Liaocheng of Shandong and Chongqing, provided care to
financially challenged families. In education sector, we contributed
to scholarship funding to poverty-stricken students across the
country to provide them financial sponsorship to complete
their university learning. Master Kong sponsored the campus
construction works at schools in Anhui, Fujian, Tianjin, Chongging
and Sichuan, which included the maintenance and repairs of
teaching buildings, the replacement of worn-out desks and chairs,
the construction of modern playgrounds, dormitories for students,
and improvement of environment on campus. Master Kong is in
regular contact with more than 20 sponsored schools, and take
care with the difficulties and problems them have. We continue
to conduct with the Master Kong Library Program. We sponsored
construction works of 92 libraries across the country, and donated
more than 1 million books. We helped Ya'an to build a total of 52
library rooms subsequent to the Ya'an earthquake, and continue
to show our concern in education proceeding in the affected area.
Meanwhile, we continued to volunteer in the care and education
projects for left-behind children in Chongging area. In 2019, we
paid on-site visits to distant cities and counties in Chongging,
spanning over 16 schools of elementary, middle and vocational
levels. For the past ten years since its launching, more than RMB40
million has been injected into the project funding, with relief-
related activities took place in 68 schools, aiding almost 200,000
students.
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Libraries at elementary schools funded by Master Kong
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Benefit the "Agriculture, Rural Areas and Farmers"

As a leading enterprise in the field of deep processing of
agricultural products, Master Kong actively responds to the
national initiative on targeted poverty alleviation, by taking
advantage of food manufacture industry, so as to enable higher
earnings for farmers. Every year, Master Kong purchases several
millions of tones of bulk agricultural products, benefiting more
than 40 million farmers.

In addition, Master Kong has also continuously explored a new
innovative method to benefit the "Agriculture, Rural Areas, and
Famers". For instance, the "Eco-friendly Vegetable Base" founded
by Master Kong in Kongba Noel, Kangbao County in Hebei,
has proved to be a benchmarking outcome of Master Kong's
strategic poverty alleviation effort. Master Kong joined hands with
universities to undertake research on the "Active Crop Protection
System" that spanned over 4 years, which involved deployment of
its own technicians to start investigation on the local environment,
as well as applying its proprietary technology and scale
advantages. This enabled the creation of an updated industrial
chain model featured, “Enterprise plus base plus farmers”. We
help local farmers create a new ecological agriculture by educating
farmers in planting, strictly controlling product quality with
appropriate testing and monitoring measures. In 2019, Master
Kong helped constructed 200,000 acres of vegetable bases in the
Kongba Noel grassland and neighbouring areas, and acquired
for about 500,000 tons of agricultural products, providing
employment opportunities for 150,000 farmers.
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"Eco-friendly Vegetable Base" project at Kongba Noel actively
promoted the upgrading of agricultural technology, enhanced
capabilities in market supply nationwide, promoted the
development of local recycling economy in agriculture, and
effectively ensured farmers' income and their employment
opportunities, relieved them from poverty.

Reinforced School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kang resolutely carried out the policy of "production-
education integration" of the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China that it joined hands with 36 universities
and 42 vocational schools nationwide to commence on intensified
cooperation, to conduct research on food safety-related topics,
and support innovative research outcome and core technology
Industrialization. These endeavours also served to nurture excellent
and pragmatic talents to serve company, as well as feet-on-
ground think-tank talents in the industry contributing to the well-
being for the society at large.

Based on the principle of “Cultivate talents, Benefit each other”,
Master Kong signed a cooperation agreement with Yuanpei
College of Peking University to carry out research on the traditional
retail industry and new retail in Shanghai, using Master Kong's
operation centre as their basis of study. In October 2019, Master
Kong contributed RMB20 million to support the teaching and
research and talent training at Peking University in fields of health
and medical big data, to promote the development of medical and
health undertakings and the improvement of health awareness
in China. The fund will be used to the project “Big data support
massive health” in the School of Medicine in Peking University.
The project focuses on training of talents and scientific research
related to big data of healthcare, and to carry researches on food
and nutrition science, big data on healthcare, artificial intelligence,
preventive medicine, sports medicine and so on. In addition, the
project also includes arranging for academic exchange sessions in
healthcare and big data, as well as promotion events on health
science publicization.
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Discussion event about social practice organized by Yuanpei College of
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"Master Kong Dream Come True Scholarship” visit

to Food Safety Centre
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The Signing Ceremony of project "Big data support
massive health" between Master Kong and Peking

University

This year, the Company continued to fund the "Dream Come True
Scholarship" project. As of the end of 2019, Master Kong has
sponsored a total of 115 excellent undergraduates from top five
local universities, including Peking University, Tsinghua University,
Fudan University, Shanghai Jiaotong University and Zhejiang
University, on exchange programs with prestigious universities
overseas. Meanwhile, we continue to intensify cooperation effort
with Schwarzman College of Tsinghua University. Students from
colleges would lodge in the research base in Master Kong's
Operation Centre to proceed with the Practice Training Program
(PTP) enterprise internship program. Besides earning corporate
experience, interns also brainstormed new ideas and perspectives.

BERBHERERPTPIER
BERATBEAY
PTP project students from Schwarzman College of
Tsinghua University and senior executives of
Master Kong
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pLoh - FREMEFS R g2 E 2 IKIE Moreover, Master Kong endeavours to form partnerships with
RERHEIERRIR © 20194 - FH top universities around the globe. In 2019, we sponsored online
IREERMERASZHERNHKE learning project of Stanford University for rural children, as part of
77 &) 5+ £ (Rural Education Action the Rural Education Action Programs (REAP), to solve the shortage
Program * REAP) 2 —HIB TR E4 of education resources in rural areas. At the same time, Master
F2EEEE  AXHBTREH Kong signed an agreement with Business School of Harvard
BEX ZEREBNHEERMD University to reinforce the cooperation and communications.
TR-BAR - AAHEKRHABHE We will continuously focus on global development issues, global
sl e et - RMEBFHEER leadership development and high-potential talent training, etc.
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T35 RIFEE
Serial No. Awards
1 2009 FEHERMLEFELEEETHLERE

Top Ten Enterprises in Safety Management at China Food Safety
Annual Meeting 2019

2 209 FERERMENEXSER
China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award
2019

3 2019 FEHHAMEELSEETSRE
China Food Corporate Social Responsibility Golden Tripod Awards
2019

4 2019 ERMEERRRER
China Food Enterprise Environmental Protection Award 2019

5 2019 EEEHREPER
Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) 2019

6 2019 B R B E 7 eI T 42
"Promoting China” Influential Brands Awards 2019

7 2019 BEBITHE - FEBMEBRITRER
Responsibility Practice List of 2019 “Annual Responsibility Practice
Enterprise Award”

8 2019 S EB MR ERE T 2
2019 Golden Flag Award - Brand Communication Gold Award
9 PRI TREEESEE
China's Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Energy Saving
10 B BREH TR EIKIBE R B
China's Outstanding Beverage Enterprises in Water Saving
11 09FEARERAARERETRREOLE
Caring Companies in Poverty Alleviation Project in Inner Mongolia in
2019
12 2019 R EFHEMBFERE L OBE
Interface New Consumer Forum Annual Reassurance Enterprise 2019
13 I 360 L iHEE RS R
Media 360 Marketing Communication Gold Award
14 2019 REFHBAKBRS SiHiFSE

Bronze Prize in Media Integrated Marketing by ROI Festival Media
Group of 2019

15 20182019 FEHE T ERBITESERIFERE
Best Instant Food Innovation Grand Award 2018-2019
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.
The reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

Code Provision A.4.2

According to code provision A.4.2, each director (including those with
a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the Company’s articles
of association, the chairman of the Board is not subject to retirement
by rotation. He is not included in the number of directors who are
required to retire each year. The Board believes that the continuity of
the leadership of the chairman of the Board is critical to the stability
of the Group’s development and the planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. Accordingly,
the Board considers that although the provisions of the above rules
deviate from Code Provision A.4.2, it is in the best interests of the
Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

o Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

o Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

° Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
o Supervise the management of the Company;
. Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose
biographical details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages
97 to 99 of this report.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(©)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company's
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2019, seven Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2019 is
summarised below:
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HE BRTEESSERY
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 7/7

Mr. Junichiro Ida 717

Mr. Teruo Nagano a/7
(resigned on 9 August, 2019)

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang 7/7
(resigned on 31 December, 2019)

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 7/7

Mr. Koji Shinohara 7/7

Mr. Yuko Takahashi 3/7
(appointed on 9 August, 2019)

Ms. Tseng Chien EA N/A
(appointed on 31 December, 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 717

Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7/7

Mr. Hiromu Fukada 717

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group's business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company's auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 129 to 131.
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Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on responsibilities, expenses paid by the company.
To ensure that the directors have deepened their understanding of
the Group, senior management of the Company has conducted a
continuing professional development plan for the directors during the
year.

Summary for 2019 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@) visit the management team in different locals, and learn about
China's various regional channels operating conditions;

(b)  visit factories in different locations to understand the production
and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems.
As well as maintaining good corporate governance standards and
practices. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties and will meet regularly with management, internal auditors and
external auditors, as well as review their reports. Eight meetings were
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2019. Details of the
attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 8/8
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 8/8
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 8/8

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. This Committee now comprises four Directors, Mr. Hsu
Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and Mr.Wei Hong-
Ming. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee. Two
meetings was held during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Hold
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 2/2
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 2/2
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 2/2
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 2/2
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The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles.

The company’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b) a director must not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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The emoluments paid to the fourteen senior management individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

EEAH™
SRESMSAR Emoluments band Number of individuals
2,203,501 ARMZE 2,644,200 AR RMB2,203,501 to RMB2,644,200
(2,500,001 7L 2 3,000,000 7 7T) (HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000) 2
2,644,201 ARM % 3,084,900 AR ¥ RMB2,644,201to RMB3,084,900
(3,000,001 7L E 3,500,000 7T) (HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000) 1
3,084,901 AR %= 3,525,600 A R# RMB3,084,901 to RMB3,525,600
(3,500,001 7T 2 4,000,000 7T) (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000) 1
3,525,601 AR % 3,966,300 A R RMB3,525,601 to RMB3,966,300
(4,000,001 872 4,500,000 7T) (HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000) 1
3,966,301 AR ZE 4,407,000 A R RMB3,966,301 to RMB4,407,000
(4,500,001 87T £ 5,000,000 7T) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000) 1
4,407,001 AR¥ % 4,847,700 AR RMB4,407,001 to RMB4,847,700
(5,000,001 87T Z 5,500,000%87T) (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 3
6,610,501 AR®ZE 7,051,200 A R# RMB6,610,501 to RMB7,051,200
(7,500,001 7T = 8,000,000/87T) (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000) 1
8,814,001 AR¥ % 9,254,700 A R# RMB8,814,001 to RMB9,254,700
(10,000,001 % 7C= 10,500,000 7 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2
9,695,401 ARM = 10,136,100 AR ¥ RMB9,695,401 to RMB10,136,100
(11,000,001 & CZ 11,500,000 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
27,323,401 AR¥EZE 27,764,100 AREE RMB27,323,401 to RMB27,764,100
(31,000,001 & 7C2 31,500,000 78 7T) (HK$31,000,001 to HK$31,500,000) 1
14

A& B AT WA R BE &HK“*}%L—ET
mzﬁiﬁ%kﬁcmo EERTE
pallpsd =g s ERC #¢\§ﬂ&
B \Wﬂ ﬁ RBEEBZEEEER
BERMRIESETEIOKENRN - BF
&= IEL%“E& B R AFEG - FRERE
LR R AERR AR RE L LUR T & B R BUERK
&@¢&~\%&§E§%'ﬁﬁ%$ﬁ
EURE  FERRERERZHE

The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment, control
activities, information and communication, and monitoring. The goal
of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group within
acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s long-
term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of defining
the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.
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Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2019, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control including finance, information and operation. At the
same time, according to operational needs, the Group sorted out core
restriction of authority again, announced and published it within the
Group. Besides, the Group has also been prompting the implementating
regulations and monitoring other work. According to the internal audit
of the internal control inspection and audit department, we have not
identified any material deficiency in risk management and internal
control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the
Group's risk management and internal control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to- long term vision and
strategic objective.
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According to the full discussion of the management of the Group and

taking into account the model of external standard enterprises, the

Group proposes countermeasures against the top three risks as detailed

below:

1.1

1.2

Definitions:

Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

Employee awareness of information protection is
weak, there is the risk of information leakage.

Coping strategies:

Clearly define the division of responsibilities for trade
secret protection, improve the operation procedures
and raise the awareness of employees on the risk
protection of business secrets. Effectively reduce
the risks of the Group’s core technology, strategic
planning, operation and management, human
resources, financial reports, and company-related
information, thereby avoiding company losses and
safeguarding shareholders’ rights and interests.
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Improve the information security management system
based on PDCA:

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected security controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on safety
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration.

Promote staff training to raise awareness of
information security management. The Information
Department and the Internal Control Department
work together to carry out information security
training through the online system and offline
teaching activities.

Definitions:

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.
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At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation.

2.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks.

Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system
of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, and pay
attention to process traceability management and
inspection;

Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

3.1 Definition

Traditional channel access to modernization upgrades,
traditional retail store service models will be upgraded
from low frequency/high volume/multi-suppliers to
high frequency/low/less suppliers. The labor/expense
costs required by brand owners continue to rise, and
it is still necessary to effectively cover out-of-control/
uncontrolled retail stores.
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o With the rise of urbanization, there is a huge business
opportunity for entertainment consumption, and it is
yet to be improved.

. Rapid development of channels, and the cost control
measures are not adjusted accordingly, which may
lead to a decrease in profitability.

o Business decision-making should be driven by big
data and digitalized/smart establishment. However,
the current mobile access system and dealer invoicing
system cannot serve retail outlets better due to the
single function/data difference.

3.2 Coping strategies:

e Channel intensive/deep tillage division is more clear.
Make good use of the Master Kong system to upgrade
the services of millions of high-quality stores, and
make use of eB2B to cover more terminals indirectly.

e  Focus on the development of chain store or special
access to enter the EC channel. Strengthen OP
operation and develop indoor beverage to increase
utilization rate: turnover rate from hotel/restaurant/
cinema/milk station continued to improve.

* Intensively digitize the channel and implement Smart
GTM to achieve accurate matching of “people, goods,
shop and timing”.

° Go To Market Innovation Center is utilized, to
understand consumer needs through scientific data
analysis. Strengthen cooperation with channel partners
and pursue mutual benefits and win-win results.

To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through support from external
professional independent consultant, adhering to the operating idea
and CIS spirit of the Group, the 2020 guidance of optimization of risk
management and internal control system is specified and formulated.
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Point 1: Initial promotion of the Group’s Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM)

The Group uses information systems to identify, assess, measure and
monitor group-level risks. In addition, an annual risk management report
will be produced based on the information of risk assessment, so as to
assist the management in increasing the risk management standards.
Based on the effectiveness and efficiency of risk management, it will be
subsequently applied step-by-step throughout the Group.

Point 2: Initial activation of the system authorization management

The Group designs and sets up a multi-system interactive authorization
management platform according to the control requirements of different
businesses. The approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures
operational safety, the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and
the efficiency and compliance of business operations, thus meeting
corporate governance and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Improvement of frontline self-assessment mechanism

The Group assists sales companies and factories to check post
construction operation program. By organizing seminars, professional
trainings and on-site inspections, we can enhance staff professional
skills. We also regularly implement risk alerts and construct a refined
self-management system through cross-business collaboration

The Company's internal audit department is an independent unit directly
under the Board. It is responsible for conducting the Group's internal
audits, reports and investigations, as well as reporting them to the Audit
Committee and the Chairman on a regular basis or when necessary.
The internal audit department conducts independent risk-oriented
internal audits of the Group's significant operational risks and its related
monitoring systems, so as to assess their effectiveness. Investigation
results and recommendations on internal control inadequacy from each
audit projects will be put into detailed discussion with the management,
and the management will formulate improvement plans to improve
the internal control inadequacy within reasonable time, in order to
continuously strengthen risk management and internal control.

The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The internal audit
department has set up a reporting mailbox and hotline and has
announced the above reporting channels in the Company’s website,
thus enabling employees and business partners to give confidential
reporting.
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2020 will be the third year of the Group in promoting self-assessment
of internal control. The ultimate goal is to establish a normal and
stable internal control assessment system combining both reward and
punishment. All these are established based on tools such as time
series analysis, trend analysis, structure analysis, decision tree analysis,
regression analysis and compliance analysis. Through the automated
analysis and continuous monitoring of risk data, we can achieve the
goal of positioning and management from the source of risk. Through
the steady implementation of the above steps, we can effectively ensure
the Company's corporate reputation and brand image maintenance,
value creation and risk management mechanism are in line with the
expectations of stakeholders.

In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

o The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

° The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

. The Group has established the internal confidential rules, which
directing against the senior management and general staff who
can access insider information due to their rankings or duties,
providing education and training of confidential regulations,
requiring the aforesaid staff to sign the confidential commitment.
In respect of result announcement or material transaction, strictly
controlling and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing
information, the material sensitive information is concealed by
confidential code (including electronic, written and verbal), and
giving a written notice about the lock-up period and other matters
required for special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB8,961,000 and RMB Nil respectively.
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Mr. lp Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is

Mr. Liu Kuo Wei, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

knowledge.

below:

Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Teruo Nagano

(resigned on 9 August, 2019)
Mr. Lin Chin-Tang

(resigned on 31 December, 2019)
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Yuko Takahashi

(appointed on 9 August, 2019)
Ms. Tseng Chien

(appointed on 31 December, 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 30 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company convened and
held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) and one
extraordinary general meeting (”Extraordinary General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out

HE/BITERRE
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held

RREFAE BRRBBIAE
Annual General Extraordinary
Meeting General Meeting

171 0N
on on
171 0N
on on
171 0N
on on
0N 0N
TER NA TEA NA
171 171
171 171
on on
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Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, quarterly, interim and annual reports.
Moreover, additional information is also available to shareholders
through the Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The
Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or
management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company'’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.
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The following changes were made to Article 57 of the Company's
articles of association according to the special resolution of the annual
general meeting held on 3 June 2019: The Board may, whenever they
think fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. An extraordinary
general meeting shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any one or more members holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition in aggregate not less than 10 per cent of such of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. Such requisition must state
the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the office. If the Board do not within 21 days from
the date of the deposit of such requisition proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting, the requisitionists themselves may
convene the extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such a meeting shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Apart from the above Article 57, there were no other changes to the
Company's articles of association for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company's dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group's liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.
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The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2019, the Group
conducted more than 230 meetings with approximately 1,200 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. The Group is currently covered by 25 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 42, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019, elder brother of Mr.Wei Hong-Chen. Mr. Wei holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's College,
the University of London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics
from Brunel University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree
in Management from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford
University in the USA. He had Worked as an asset allocation analyst at
Makena Capital, a US-based co-founder of Paul Allen. Mr. Wei joined
the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006, and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr. Wei had
led many projects such as the development blueprint of the MIS Group
management system promoted by a number of international consulting
companies, and made long-term effective planning for the digital
transformation and supply chain layout of the future group system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 58, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the
Group on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
After graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji
Bank, Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo
Foods Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in
June 1998. Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of
America as well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package
foods business between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd in Africa). He is also the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Scholarship Foundation, the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods
Culture and Sports Foundation, the President of Japan Convenience
Foods Industry Association and the Chairman of the Board of Save the
Children Japan.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 37, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 1 January 2019, younger brother of Mr Wei Hong-Ming.
Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial College London,
Master’s degree from Waseda University, and MBA from Harvard
Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group’s New York office
and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed as a Director of KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Tingyi-Asahi Beverages
Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr.Wei has accumulated
many years of experience working in the Group,and during which has
contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships with international
corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.
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Koji SHINOHARA, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co.,
Ltd. in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing.
After graduating from Keio University of Economics in 1990, he
worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales and business
management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand marketing
of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior Director of
ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-Cola Atlanta
headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice President
of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than 20 years
working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 57, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 61, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group’s Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 80, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 90, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had worked as
counselor of America Bureau, ambassador in OECD, Singapore and
Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada had been the
Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006 to 2016, and
he is currently the Advisor of the same company.
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IP Pui-Sum, aged 60, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in
1996. Mr. Ip has over 20 years of experience in public accounting and
company secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant
(practicing) in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 62, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed as CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager of
Great China, overseeing the company'’s health and beauty care business
in that region. Mr. Wei built P&G Pantene PRO-V and SK | business
model with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, and based on Taiwan's
success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University
and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
in USA.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 49, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College, University of London and an
M.B.A. from Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During
his study in Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship,
Mr. Felix Chang’s Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship,
Wharton MBA Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 59, Chief Human Resources Officer. He graduated from
the Institute of Human Resource Management, National San Yat Sen
University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November 2005 as the
Senior Assistant Vice President and Senior Vice President of Beverages
Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO office in September 2014
and in November 2014 was appointed as the Chief of Human Resources.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Twinhead International Corp.
as an Assistant Manager of Human Resources, Tsrc Corporation and
The Home World Group as an Vice President of Human Resources.
Mr. Wu has 28 years of experience in human resources management,
with expertise in strategic human resource management, human
development. He endeavors to build the sustainable development talent
team, to promote organizational change and make full advantage of
human resources benefits, realizing the organizational transformation.

Richard CHEN, aged 57, Chief R&D Officer, joined the Group
in February 2013. He graduated from the Chemical Engineering
Department, National Taiwan University. Prior to joining the Group, he
had 25 years of global R&D experience in Procter & Gamble. Mr. Chen
is trilingual and worked in Taiwan, US, Japan and China for leading
Consumer Product Innovation and R&D Capability Building.
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Frank Wang, aged 49, is the Executive Vice President of CEO Office
and the Board Secretary of the company. He joined the group in 2008,
has been the Head of Strategic Management dept. of Instant Noodle
BU, Head of Strategic Management dept. of Master Kong Beverage
BU and Pepsi Beverage BU, Head of Chairman’s Office and Head of
Corporate Development dept. Mr. Wang is responsible for corporate
strategy, organization restructure, information technology, legal and
public affairs in the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served
as Associate Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer
Associates’ JV, where he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He
has years of experience in company transformation and value chain
integration. Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental
Systems Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree
in Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communication Technology and Management from New York
University.

Joey CHEN,aged 56, Chief Customer and Marketing Officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group in 2015, he was a Sales General
Manager of Modern Retailer Channel in P&G China. He started his
P&G career in 1993 and had 22 years of management experience in
P&G. In P&G, Joey experienced different roles in IT, Marketing, Sales
and had accumulated professional trophy in areas of multifunctional
team management, Talent Recruiting, Demand Management, and Sales
Planning. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor degree of Electrical Engineering of
National Taiwan University of Science and Technology and an M.B.A.
from University of lowa in USA.

Max HUANG, aged 56, is the Executive President of the Group’s Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.
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TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 59, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was the President of the Group’s Beverage Business in
November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for Fukeyule
Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly familiar in
sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the China market.
And especially skilled in management and strong executive force.

Vincent LIU, aged 60, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000
and has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of
Chong Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou
Tingjin. Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading
Company TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar management in sales
and marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.

Bob CHEN, aged 61, is the Executive Vice President of the Group’s
Instant Food Business. Mr. Chen holds a BBA from Fu Jen Catholic
University and an EMBA from National Taiwan University. He joined the
Group in August 2014. Mr. Chen has an intensive experience of more
than 30 years in the field of marketing and strategic management. He
worked for NamChow Chemical Industrial Co., Modern Home Products
(@ JV of P&G and NamChow), P&G Singapore/Malaysia, P&G Taiwan,
Great Wall Co., Hwa Wei & Grey Advertising Agency (a subsidiary of
WPP group), Nirvana Brand Consulting Group and DaChan Foods (Asia)
Limited.

TK WANG, aged 53, bachelor of Taiwan University, and graduated
in Corporate Management from Soochow University, is the Vice
Executive President of the Group’s Beverage Business. With 28 years’
professional experience of FMCG, he joined the Group in May 2001 as
Head of Marketing Department of the Group’s Instant Noodle Business,
General Manager of Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co. Ltd., Head
of Brand Department of the Group's Beverage Business, and was the
Vice President of the Group’s Beverage Business in October 2017. Mr.
Wang is particularly familiar in integrating brand marketing resources,
organizationally enabling and marketing planning. An active and
creative team player with good analytical capability, and has planned
many key brand marketing campaigns.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR R BB R
Profit
g attributable to
Revenue owners Of the Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

AR¥EFr AR BTFr AR¥For ARMTFr

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

(#c&E31) (4 &E51)

(Restated) (Restated)

PaRiil Instant noodles 25,300,422 23,916,674 2,199,709 1,708,581
R Beverages 35,599,621 35,312,931 945,939 548,715
Hitb Others 1,078,115 1,456,040 185,333 206,025
A&t Total 61,978,158 60,685,645 3,330,981 2,463,321
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A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group's future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2019 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 24, the section headed “Prospects” on pages 25 to 27
and in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 85 to 92 of this annual
report.
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An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2019 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 24 of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 132.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US4.24
cents per ordinary share, and a special dividend of US4.24 cents per
ordinary share, totalling US$477 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,331 million).

The final dividend and special divided will be paid on or before 15 July
2020. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 16 June 2020 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 137 to 138.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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(a) 2008 FHERRAERTE

NEZE2019F12A318 1F+ = 1@
B AAREERE 2008 FERK
R AEFUR K BB AR AE -

2008 FF & B i 5T &I MV IR KT &
MARAFIT7TENG BREAR
A1 2008 FIEHERT 8l 2 T HERF I T
51

BlZ=A

RHRE
& A E Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2008 F3 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
2009 F4 A22 B 26,688,000
22 April 2009
2010 F4 A1 H 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 F4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012 %4 AH26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
2013 5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014 %4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015 F6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
2016 7 A4 B 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017 F4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
BRMEERERAT
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At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of
ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term
of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the
terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table A
1TEE

Exercise price
1T1EH (BT)
Exercisable period (HK$)
2013 %£3 A21 BHZE2018 43 A20 H(1) $9.28
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 %4 A23 BHE2019 F4 A22 HQ) $9.38
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2015 F4 A1 BZE2020 %3 A31 HQR) $18.57
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2016 F4 A12 HZ=2021 F4 A11 B4) $19.96
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2017 F4 A26 BHZE2022 4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2018 45 A27 BHZE2023 %5 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2019 4 A17 BZE2024 F4 A16 B(7) $22.38
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2020 %6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(8) $16.22
5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2021 7 A4 BE2026 7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2022 %4 A21 BE2027 %4 A20 H(10) $10.20

21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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Name Date of grant

HfEs

Executive Director

Bf 201054718

Tseng Chien 1 April 2010
WNE4R128
12 April 2011
012547268
26 April 2012
W01355A4278
27 May 201
014545178
17 April 2014
01556758
5 June 2015

g% WI4E4A17R

Lin Chin-Tang 17 April 2014
201556858
5 June 2015

v 017544218

WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017

RARR WI7TE4AAA

WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017

TRas

Chief Executive Officer

258 W013E58278

James 27 May 2013

Chun-Hsien Wei 201454 A 17H

17 April 2014
01556758
5 June 2015
201657548
4July 2016
017548218
21 April 2017

BxB

g
Exercise
price
B
HKS

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22
2238
16.22
10.20

10.20

20.16
238
16.22

754

10.20

b=l
BimE
Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant

g

HKS$

1842
19.96
19.88
20.05
22.35
15.92
2235
15.92
10.20

10.20

20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share

options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2019 pursuant

to the Share Option Scheme:

R2019%
1818
it

Balance as at
1 January 2019

176,000
206,000
112,000
140,000
164,000
232,000
224,000
334,000
1,000,000

1,000,000

904,000
1,148,000
2,006,000
4,300,000

4,000,000

EhgL
Granted
during
the period

Table B
i

Number of share option
R FREEH
BiTfE gs:
Exercised Cancelled/
during  lapsed during
the period the period
- 224,000

120198
12A318
28

Balance as

at 31 December
2019

176,000

206,000

112,000

140,000

164,000

232,000

334,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

904,000

1,148,000

2,006,000

4,300,000

4,000,000

SRR
i
TIRmE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately  HE
before exercise  Note
)
HKS$

- BA3)
Table A(3)
- BA®
Table A(4)
— BAp)
Table A(5)
— EAb)
Table A (6)
- BAD
Table A(7)
- EA®
Table A (8)
- BAD
Table A(7)
— BAB)
Table A(8)
— EA10)
Table A(10)
— EA10)
Table A (10)

— EAb
Table A (6)
- BAD)
Table A(7)
— EA®
Table A(8)
- EA9
Table A(9)
— BAM0)
Table A (10)
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BB

ft# RFEA

Name Date of grant

IZRR

Substantial shareholder

REM# 20954/ 228

Wei Ing-Chou 22 April 2009
W01054A18
1 April 2010
01E45128
12 April 2011
012547268
26 April 2012
W13E58278
27 May 2013
014545178
17 April 2014
201556858
5 June 2015

2thER 2009548228

Other employees 22 April 2009
201054518
1 April 2010
WHELANA
12 April 2011
012547268
26 April 2012
2013858278
27 May 2013
14545178
21 Apil 2017
156750
21 April 2017
201657 F4H
41uly 2016
WI7TE4A21A
21 Apil 2017

it
Total

108 EMEERERAHE

i

iR

Exercise

price
B
HKS

9.38
18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
2238

16.22

9.38
18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22

7.54

10.20

BFAH2
RRmE
(Closing price
of the shares
on the date

20195
1A1R
&h

Balance as at

ofgrant 1 January 2019

B
HKS

9.37

18.42

19.96

19.88

20.05

2235

15.92

937

18.42

19.96

19.88

20.05

2235

15.92

7.54

10.20

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

2,816,000

2,200,000

2,264,000

1,368,000

1,390,000

1,486,000

1,726,000

2,428,000

6,952,000

8,958,000

5,756,000

6,368,000

8,190,000

10,683,000

4,723,000

4,770,000

88,024,000

Fhii
Granted
during
the period

Table B (Continued)
EhREHE
Number of share option

20195
£ FREHEH 12831R
B gs: P33
Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as
during  lapsed during  at 31 December
the period the period 2019
2,816,000 - -
- - 2,200,000
- - 2,264,000
- - 1,368,000
- - 1,390,000
- - 1,486,000
- - 1,726,000
2,452,000 (24,000) -
- 691,000 6,261,000
- 1,136,000 7,822,000
- 570,000 5,186,000
- 612,000 5,756,000
- 1,533,000 6,657,000
- 289,000 10,394,000
550,000 81,000 4,092,000
- - 4,770,000
5,818,000 5,112,000 77,094,000

RBAREA
i3
THKmE
Weighted
average
dlosing price
immediately
before exercise
ER

HKS

12.13

12.21

iF
Note

8AQ)
Table A(2)
BA(3)
Table A(3)
EAW)
Table A (4)
EAG)
Table A (5)
BA()
Table A (6)
BAD)
Table A(7)
AB)
Table A (8)

AQ)
Table A(2)
A3)
Table A(3)
Ald)
Table A (4)
A5)
Table A(5)
Alb)
Table A (6)
A7)
Table A(7)
AB)
Table A(8)
A©9)
Table A(9)
A(10)
Table A (10)



(b)

HZE2019F12831H1E+=1@R
M AEBEEBIRHRETE
5,818,000f& %1 - M FI91TEE
£9.217% 7T - 171 B Z BIAY hE 15
WER12.20/87T o« FFAERFHR
GRE IS IRERMIFES2 o

# BEMNASARBNAMESTEEREM
ATES - tEMEETENHNX
@A Z W E{EFE D B A Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25%
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited MEF B EFH(F S5 )E
B& B PR A B 75.064% B € % - 1
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEFSERFIFEE)ERER
AF17.835% Kt o JRFT (=
BIERERAGDEEFAALARF
1,882,927,866 x5 °

2018 F B IR #E 5T 2

2018 F R RERT B IR & LR
AIE17EHIRN - BEARF2018%F
FBIRERT 8 2 LR TG

(b)

BlxC

RHRH
®mEAH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
201844 H27 H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
2018 4 H27 H 5,626,000
27 April 2018
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2019,

5,818,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share

Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$9.21

and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$12.20. For details, please refer to note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a

former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which

holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings

Limited is indirectly interested in 75.064% of Ting Hsin (Cayman

Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds

1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance

with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed

arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:

Table C

1T
Exercisable period

202144 A30HZE 202844 A26H(1a)
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)
2021 F4 A30BZE2024F 4 A26 H(1b)
30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)

TEE
Exercise price
(#7T)
(HKS)

$16.18

$16.18
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ATHEHIEZ2019F12H31H The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
IE+ = A BRIE2018F BT 2 Fr options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2019
R BREE B pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:
EE) Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
SIETRAN
BFER pons RONE  RTHUHE
ZBBEHE 1818 FREE/ 128318 Weighted
Closing 28 XM pd 3] average
price of Balance EREL EREAE Cancelled/ Balance  closing price
iid] the shares asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat  immediately
B R¥RH Exercise on the 1 January during during during  31December before i
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2019 the period the period the period 2019 exercise  Note
AR AR AR
HKS HKS HKS
#fEs
Executive Director
ARd 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
01847278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1b)
Y 018547278 16.18 1502 385,000 - - - 385,000 - Ec(a)
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
Thes
Chief Executive Officer
B 018547278 16.18 15.02 1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000 - B
James Chun-Hsien Wei 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018%4A278 16.18 15.02 797,000 - - - 797,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
IERR
Substantial Shareholder
HEN 201847278 16.18 15.02 470,000 - - - 470,000 - B(()
Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018 Table C (10)
RthESSAH 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 4,127,000 - - 1,805,000 2,322,000 - B
Other employees 27 hpril 2018 Table C (1h)
in aggregate
it 8,068,000 - - 1,805,000 6,263,000 -

Total
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2019, no share
options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 44.825% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming

Mr. Junichiro Ida

Mr. Teruo Nagano (resigned on 9 August 2019)

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang (resigned on 31 December 2019)
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen (appointed on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Yuko Takahashi (appointed on 9 August 2019)

Ms. Tseng Chien (appointed on 31 December 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.
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HE Name

55 Directors
BERH Wei Hong-Ming
WIBE Lin Chin-Tang
BRI Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 97 to 103.

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE IR 4 2
Number of Shares BaLt
BARER EERER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
674,000 - 0.01%
5,000,000 — 0.09%
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HE Name

55 Directors

BARE Wei Hong-Ming

wE Lin Chin-Tang

BRIK Wei Hong-Chen

E Tseng Chien

THHER Chief Executive Officer
EERE James Chun-Hsien Wei

% 55 1,882,927,866 i i 1) B TR #1 (B 2
E)ERBRARTER DIFE RIAES
EEL BHAMEAR(E]) EEE
B#44.825% - BB IRERAR(NE
4 1)#754930.239% - Rich Gold Capital
Inc. ([Rich Gold )#%57%517.835% * 1A%
B AR R & 4t 2 [ B 2 F China Foods
Investment Corp. 575 6.482% [ 18 37 2
ZERFAEBRN0619% - MERE4T)
FA Profit Surplus Holdings Limited ([ Profit
Surplus]) 100% %% ° Profit Surplus&—
BB AE7EMZREA - AT E 7R A
PUME RS E LIRS A o Lutpa(E
BB EEARIARBBZZANT

- BEKERLMES—ERBER
BRI - %m%%%m%%@%
RN BBIBEREA
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FXSZA %%%*%u%%ﬁ&%
X REIEZHA
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BRI » LB EREARIT AR

ERERBBERREA + R
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(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

MR EE
Bok
SR RERMTE RBEE Percentage
Capacity and Number of of the issued
nature of interest shares share capital
EREAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
EREAA 334,000 0.01%
Beneficial owner
EmaA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner
EREAA 1,030,000 0.02%
Beneficial owner
BExBEAA 14,863,000 0.26%

Beneficial owner

Note:

1.

These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.825% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold Capital
Inc. (“Rich Gold"), as to approximately 6.482% by China Foods Investment
Corp., a subsidiary of Asahi Group Holdings, Ltd., and as to the remaining
0.619% by unrelated third party. Ho Te and Rich Cheer are owned as to
100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus”). Profit Surplus
is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four discretionary
trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary objects of the
four trusts are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

— Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
and
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Trustee Limited is the trustee of each of the
discretionary trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 10,904,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 107 and 110 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2019 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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FERRRE

Interest of Substantial Shareholders

TR (1)

Ting Hsin (see Note 14

MEBRB(ZHE1)4

Ho Te Investments Limited (see Note 1)*
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So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

HE T
B
ZBADE %
% of the
21 BERNHEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Beneficial owner
REAT R 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
R YNETY: 5 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BRUEAXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BUEEXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of a unit trusts
R YNETY: 5 1,910,589,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
SN RER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 113 to 114

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2019.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Changes of Directors’ information which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr. Teruo Nagano has resigned as Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 9 August 2019.

Mr. Yuko Takahashi has been appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group with effect from 9 August 2019.

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang has resigned as Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 31 December 2019.

Ms. Tseng Chien has been appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB13.777
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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On 15 November 2016, the Company entered into: (1) a supply
agreement (the "Ting Zheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng
(Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Zheng”), pursuant to which, Ting
Zheng and its subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging
materials and plastic products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019; (2) a supply
agreement (the “Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung
Starch Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting
Fung agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavor products to the Group for a term of three financial
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. Both Ting Zheng and
Ting Fung are beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director
of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an executive Director of
the Company. The ordinary resolutions in relation to the continuing
connected transactions above have been approved at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 29 December 2016.
Details of these transactions above may be found in the Company’s
announcements and circular dated 15 November 2016, 8 December
2016 and 29 December 2016, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases from Ting
Zheng and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,272.729 million, and
the purchases from Ting Fung amounted to RMB281.666 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
of the Company and were continuing connected transactions of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Ting Zheng Supply Agreement was due to expire
on 31 December 2019, on 21 November 2019, the Company entered
into a new supply agreement with Ting Zheng to continue the supply of
flexible plastic packaging materials and plastic products by Ting Zheng
and its subsidiaries to the Group for a term of three financial years from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Details of the transactions above
may be found in the Company’s announcements and circular dated 21
November 2019 and 16 December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16
January 2020, respectively.
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As the term of the Ting Fung Supply Agreement was due to expire
on 31 December 2019, on 16 December 2019, the Company entered
into a new supply agreement with Ting Fung to continue the supply of
modified potato starch, modified cassava starch and seasoning flavor
products by Ting Fung to the Group for a term of three financial years
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 16
December 2019.

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Ting Chuan operates
the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and held approximately 33.58% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan Agreement. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB187.236 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

On 27 December 2018, KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. ("KSF
Beverage”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a logistics agreement (the “Ting Tong Logistics Agreement”) with
Ting Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong"”) under which
Ting Tong and its subsidiaries agreed to provide logistics services to KSF
Beverage and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending
31 December 2021. Approximately 77.9% of the equity interest in KSF
Beverage was controlled by the Company, and approximately 22.1% of
the equity interest in KSF Beverage was directly held by Ting Hsin as at
the date of the Ting Tong Logistics Agreement. Ting Hsin is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and held approximately 33.52% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the Ting Tong
Logistics Agreement. Details of the transactions above may be found in
the Company’s announcement dated 27 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the transactions between
Ting Tong and its subsidiaries and KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries
amounted to RMB522.382 million.
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On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
("Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years ending 31 December 2020. Weizhen Investment is owned as to
75% by Great System Holdings Limtied (“Great System”), a company
which is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an executive Director of the
Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 14 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB415.217 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

On 12 May 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement (the
“Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment Inc.
(“Marine Vision”) in relation to the Group's purchase of carton boxes
from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years ending 31 December 2019. On 10 November 2017, the Company
and Marine Vision entered into a supplemental agreement to revise
the annual caps for the transactions under the Marine Vision Supply
Agreement for the three financial years of 2017, 2018 and 2019.
Marine vision is beneficially owned by family members and relatives
of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an executive
Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an executive
Director of the Company. Details of the transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2017, 10
November 2017 and 14 December 2017, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,051.229 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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As the term of the Marine Vision Supply Agreement was due to expire
on 31 December 2019, on 18 October 2019, the Company entered
into a new supply agreement with Marine Vision to continue the supply
of carton boxes by Marine Vision and its subsidiaries to the Group for
a term of three financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Details of the transactions above may be found in the Company'’s
announcement dated 18 October 2019.

On 15 May 2018, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending
31 December 2020. Nature Investment is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 15 May
2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB215.169 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

On 20 December 2019, the Company and Ting Hsin entered into an
agreement under which the Company agreed to acquire 52,637 shares
in KSF Beverage (representing approximately 5% of the issued share
capital of KSF Beverage) from Ting Hsin for a consideration of US$203
million. The transaction was completed on 31 December 2019 and the
equity interest in KSF Beverage that the Company is able to control
increased from approximately 77.9% to approximately 82.9%. Details of
the transaction above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 20 December 2019.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@ have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the cap.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 24
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on pages 25 to 27
under “Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 132 to 301, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB23,014 million at 31 December 2019. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2019 was RMB13,218 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. An impairment loss of RMB152 million has been recognised
for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2019.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment

of property, plant and equipment included:

a)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and a contractual
arrangement in September 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity
interest in HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over
HZPS. Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management
concluded that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to
use its power over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial
statements of HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in September 2017. Management performs an annual impairment
test on goodwill. The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the
recoverable amount of CGU will be determined by management based
on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations
involved significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash
flows, discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and carrying amount of goodwill
as key audit matters because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the judgment and estimation involved in
determination of control over HZPS and accounting for any impairment
on goodwill which involves significant degree of management judgment
in determining key assumptions applied in estimating recoverable
amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

a)  Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS;,

b)  Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

¢)  Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement;

d)  Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer to ascertain
the legal enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC;
and

e)  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
lawyer.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
goodwill included:

a)  Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

b)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used,;
and

d)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2019 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities and business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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BMAZEEIERE | Independent Auditor’s Report

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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mEWER
Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2019F 12 B31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
it AR¥Fr AR FIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Uk & Revenue 6 61,978,158 60,685,645
Fizk=J DN Cost of sales (42,218,703) (41,958,429)
EF Gross profit 19,759,455 18,727,216
H e Other revenue 7 541,222 348,388
H b g A Other net income 1,544,223 803,974
Pal =1 %N Distribution costs (13,258,980) (11,817,315)
THER Administrative expenses (2,375,436) (2,267,636)
Hibiea & A Other operating expenses (619,395) (1,465,191)
758 R Finance costs 9 (413,652) (421,682)
JE(GEE A ERBFEE Share of results of an associate 21,22
and joint ventures 234,159 71,580
BR B ATE R Profit before taxation 9 5,411,596 3,979,334
AL Taxation 11 (1,693,374) (1,250,565)
R Ea F Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
PIN/NE) L §3 Owners of the Company 3,330,981 2,463,321
DR R ELS Non-controlling interests 387,241 265,448
EEERF Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
FRER Earnings per share 13
FHA Basic RMB59.25 cents RMB43.85 cents
BE Diluted RMB59.20 cents  RMB43.77 cents
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AeZERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZ=2019F 12 A31 BLEFE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
76 B a F Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
Ha2mE(EFE) W - Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TE2ELEE Items that will not be reclassified to
B Ay IH A profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (74,877) (40,003)
B A BB R RE Fair value changes in equity instruments
E th 2 [ U 5 R B 722 Y designated as at fair value through
EmTARAEEZE other comprehensive income 3,199 (16,265)
(71,678) (56,268)
BALAEARESTIRE Items that are or may be reclassified
Bz R iy IE H subsequently to profit or loss:
fEHZ=% Exchange differences on consolidation (131,046) (379,686)
(131,046) (379,686)
AEEHMEZEER Other comprehensive loss for the year (202,724) (435,954)
AEEZTHEHKZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,515,498 2,292,815
EiEEEKE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ViN/NET 323 Owners of the Company 3,135,740 2,061,011
DERE R AE Non-controlling interests 379,758 231,804
3,515,498 2,292,815
BRAREER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
st AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
KEMEEME Investment properties 14 1,771,500 1,119,000
W - R REE Property, plant and equipment 15 23,013,991 24,927,630
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 4,025,124 —
TH A RE Prepaid lease payments 17 — 3,570,367
| EE Intangible assets 18 183,409 186,458
Bk Goodwill 19 97,910 97,910
BN A s Interest in an associate 21 139,537 127,725
B ENR)ER Interest in joint ventures 22 889,065 698,743
BRARBEYERE Financial assets at fair value through
BRREENeRmEE profit or loss 23 1,153,541 448,121
BERAABEYRLE  Equity instruments designated as at fair value
Hth 2 WS BR AR 12 through other comprehensive income
Rt T A 23 115,614 114,018
Hi3Eme&EE Other non-current assets 24 — 375,964
BRI IAE E Deferred tax assets 36 407,171 429,262
REGEEGER Long-term time deposits 28 725,000 —
32,521,862 32,095,198
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 3,445,075 2,651,740
JE U BR K Trade receivables 26 1,669,525 1,715,471
Al U B F7 18 Tax recoverable 40,349 30,150
FE B R A EUFRTE  Prepayments and other receivables 27 2,852,469 2,669,689
HEIRIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 28 32,830 32,458
RITHEBNIE S Bank balances and cash 28 17,397,557 13,807,963
25,437,805 20,907,471
REE Total assets 57,959,667 53,002,669
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LA BIFEAORZ | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HZE2019%12 A31 BILEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
ok=3 AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRREZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
BEITIRAR Issued capital 29 235,401 235,204
& 17 5 B Share premium 30 724,384 664,400
fE Reserves 31 18,618,789 18,753,872
AR BRREEBREIR Total capital and reserves attributable
iR to owners of the Company 19,578,574 19,653,476
DEBRRER Non-controlling interests 20 3,467,533 3,958,955
IRRERBE Total equity 23,046,107 23,612,431
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
WARBEYRKEEEZ  Financial liabilities at fair value
FREMNS/RAE through profit or loss 33 9,674 9,862
REIBEEREE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 34 4,920,078 4,372,723
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 287,892 —
HEMIEmBEE Other non-current liabilities 41 40,000 40,000
ETREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 35 157,066 115,436
BEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 36 1,191,422 967,682
6,606,132 5,505,703
BRAREER
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T BEARE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HZ2019F12 A31 HILEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
it AR FT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RBEE Current liabilities
FETBRFR Trade payables 37 7,678,035 6,953,961
HEEMAZIERE YIRS Other payables and deposits received 38 10,761,450 8,522,996
BEEEZEVEEHD Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 34 7,454,381 6,461,785
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 199,664 —
EPMENFHIE Advance payments from customers 42 1,809,935 1,678,782
TIE Taxation 403,963 267,011
28,307,428 23,884,535
waes Total liabilities 34,913,560 29,390,238
BREZREEHASE Total equity and liabilities 57,959,667 53,002,669
FRBEE(EE) Net current assets (liabilities) (2,869,623) (2,977,064)
BEERRBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 29,652,239 29,118,134

FINEINEZHAVERREAES
EMN2020F3A3AMER RS
THUATALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 301 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by

H A% —EB Junichiro Ida
3 Director

$i% % WEI Hong-Ming
B Director
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MERREREHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2019F 12 A31BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2019

KRERRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FAREE JukEER e
kA R Total Non- EalE
lssued Share B aptland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFL
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R20185 1816 At 1 January 2018 235,053 611,736 17,565,290 18412079 3,881,965 22,294,044
KERER Profit for the year - - e33 24633 265448 2,728,769
B2 ERE Other comprehensive loss
REBHNELZEME Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - (37,562) (37,562) (2.441) (40,003)
EERLABERR Fair value changes in equity instruments
A2 ENERRE designated as at fair value through other
MESTAZS comprehensive income - - (16,265) (16,265) — (16,265)
ERER Exchange differences on consolidation - - (348,483) (348,483) (31,03) (379,686
2 AERLE Total other comprehensive loss - - (4023100 (402310) (33644)  (43595)
FEER2ENEAR Total comprehensive income for the year - — 2,061,011 2,061,011 B1804 2,292,815
HANRRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contributions and distribution
ERfEROTHZZE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 32,799 32,799 - 32,799
REBRESERT2RG  Sharesissued under share option scheme 151 52,664 (13,025) 39,790 — 39,790
2017 ERERE 2017 fina dhidend approved - —09539)  (009539) (167478 (1077,017)
151 52,664 (889,765) (836,950) (167.478)  (1,004,428)
BHEE Changes in ownership interests
EEYNSIHIENNELR  Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary
hERE without change in control - - 17,336 17,336 12,664 30,000
- - 17336 17336 12,664 30,000
BALNARRZRSEH Total transactions with owners of the Company 151 52,664 (872,429) (819,614) (154,814) (974,428)
R2018E12 8318 At 31 December 2018 235,204 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
BRAEER
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IRARREREZEEE)IXR | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EZE 2019512 A31 HIEHE Year ended 31 December 2019

ARTIRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BrREs HURRER B&
Yika Riva® Total Non- BRAE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves eserves interests equity

ABBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ
RMB0O)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  AMBUOD

R19E1518 At 1 January 2019 235,204 664,400 18,753,812 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
RERRT Profit for the year = = 3,330,981 3,330,981 387,241 318
A2 E(5E) s Other comprehensive (loss) income
REBHEMZEREWHZ35)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Mot 35 - - (65,490) (65,490) (9,387) (14.877)
KERDABESIBRELM2E  Fairvalue changes in equity instruments
WEERENERIA designated as at fai value through other
ArEBEZERW250) comprehensive income (Aote 23(2) = = 3,199 3,199 = 3,199
EiZE Bichange differences on consolidation = = (132,950) (132,950) 1,904 (131,046)
Ht2EFRAR Total other comprehensive loss = = (195,241) (195,241) (7.483) (202,724)
REERENEAE Total comprehensive income for the year = = 3,135,740 3,135,740 379,758 3,515,498
BANRRRZRA Transactions with owners of the Company:
REETT Contrbutions and distrbution
EREERNIN IR Equity settled share-based transactions = = 24,504 24,504 = 20,504
RERRETSETZRD Shares issued under share option scheme Mote 29)
(#iit29) 197 59,984 (14,080) 46,101 = 46,101
BHERIEE 2018 REARIERIRE 2018 final and special dividend approved and paid
UGl Note 12) - - (2,463,321) (2,463,321) (123,646) (2,586,967)
197 59,984 (2,452,897) (2,392,716) (123,646) (2,516,362
#EEE Changes in ownershyp iterests
HE-FE2ENBLAFZ43) Disposal of anon-wholly owned subsidiary (Mot 43) = = - - (8,601) (8,601)
EERHBAHRONELT  Changein ownership interest in subsidiaries
BEERR(2N) without change in control ot 20) - - (817.926) (817.926) (738933)  (1,556,859)

- - (817,926) (817,926) (747534)  (1,565,460)

HANARRZRH4E Total transactions with owners of the Company 197 59,984 (327083)  (3210642) (871,180  (4,081.822)

R2019E12A31R At 31 December 2019 235,401 124,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
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HERETMER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
i3 AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKFEESE Cash generated from operations 39 9,591,258 8,947,083
B BREMRET The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (1,343,821) (1,555,331)
EHEFE Interest paid (416,419) (423,863)
RETEBBESFEE Net cash from operating activities 7,831,018 6,967,889
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B U F 8 Interest received 541,222 348,388
iR ETE HFER Increase in long-term time deposits 28 (725,000) —
B E & R AIIRF Dividend received from a joint venture 22 32,025 17,232
BHIRAAEEIIRR Dividend received from financial assets at
=R IE M fair value through profit or loss
TR E E A 3,253 6,500
HE—EBEA Proceeds from disposal of an associate 15(d) 195,107 —
HE—MEER Proceed from disposal of a joint venture 20(a) 225,408 —
HERADEBETIRR Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
riE=RRIER at fair value through profit or loss
TREEZMF 82,262 79,443
HEETHAREENE  Proceeds from disposal of equity
DaEHMEERZEERIE  instruments designated as at fair value
REmMEE TS through other comprehensive income 23(c) 3,578 8,521
fERERRE Redemption of debt investment — 900,000
BARAAEBEIER Purchase of financial assets at
HIESERERIEMNEEEE  fair value through profit or loss 23(a)(b) (740,033) (48,735)
BAELEE Purchase of intangible assets 18 (158) —
BAKREMEE Purchase of investment properties 14 (241,733) —
BAWE  HEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,788,104) (1,358,638)
BASLREEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (42,386) —
W — Y E AT AT  Deposit paid for acquisition of a property 14 — (58,000)
BT T AH 895 B Prepaid lease payments — (23,706)
HEME, HERZER Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
FREEE MG equipment and right-of-use assets 280,439 42,263
HEWNBARBIESFE  Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 43 836,581 437,438
JENE R 2 F & Net movement of loan receivables 27(a) (67,000) (153,000)
FEWRIMTEARZ Net movement of amount due
FE )R from former subsidiaries — 1,347,253
FTEEEEE AR MAE AR Capital refunded upon deregistration of
Fri 2 & 7R associates and joint ventures — 9,575
REFTE(FTA) B Net cash (used in) from investing
REeFE activities (1,404,539) 1,554,534
BRAREER
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TR ERER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZ2019%12 A31 BILHFE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
i3 AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
& EE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BARARRRIE Z S Dividends paid to owners of the Company (2,485,015) (928,370)
ENLEEEREEZRS ZKE  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (115,827) (141,619)
BRI 2 Issue of shares under share option scheme
BT 2Rt 29 46,101 39,790
YTRHEEAE Payments of lease liabilities 39 (181,253) —
FIGIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 5,848,166 3,548,339
EERITREMER Repayments of bank and other borrowings (6,473,583) (5,529,936)
HiCEEE Z# S5  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 2,052,129 (2,005,498)
TS D BAR SR e o Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests (1,539,523) —
e EE BT HIER  Proceeds from disposal of ownership
ME R AR 2 5 interests in a subsidiary that does not
result in a change of control — 15,000
RMETBHAREEE Net cash used in financing activities (2,848,805) (5,002,294)
REeRASEEYN Net increase in cash and
I8 0 cash equivalents 3,577,674 3,520,129
FNZ2EERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 13,840,421 10,284,889
ExEs 28 Effect on exchange rate changes 12,292 35,403
FRZESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 28 17,430,387 13,840,421
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F 12 A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2018 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

141



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

ERBEGEMBREE  REEHE In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
H ERAEERBHAEERRED directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
& EMHE ARK2869623,000T financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
(2018%F :+ N R %2977 064,000 as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
7T AnEEEEEFGAEEE RMB2,869,623,000 (2018: RMB2,977,064,000) at the end of the
ARARRCEEESRBMEFRK - reporting period.
EREANKEERBAEBAZRT Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
EENBRLT  REAEEHEAR the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
1R Rt B IR 5T 2 H 3 B B RS to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
ot HMAMBERRIUNFEKR foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
B2 ERRE - statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
(a) HwBEE (a) Basis of measurement
R E MoK AREBEE The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
BEEZE BRIZEALEET consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
B REUREHE BRAAE investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
BIEREEREREN SR profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
BE - BERAABEYERK through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
HEMEPERERREENES at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
TAREAAREBEIERKRERE fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
mREESRARUAAEAE below.
STERN . FBEERTIZE
FTIR ©
(b) #HREEE (b) Basis of consolidation
BEMBHREBPERARFARE The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
MBARZHMBHREK - BT statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
NEFBREN2WEFERK financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
NEAR - EFTBERTER— the same reporting year as that of the Company using
B o consistent accounting policies.
AEBRNBERA ZEETR All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
SIMBHMBLER X5 W expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
IREZEHEHEN - MEA transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
Al A B AR S B EUS G are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
< BERREG OF - WHEAE S O control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
BAREZEHIEKRIEAE - such control ceases.
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S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs”). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.
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(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.
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Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.
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(h)

Prepaid lease payments

Before 1 January 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. The premiums
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis. From 1 January
2019, those payments are accounted for as right-of-use
assets.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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@

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group’s interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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@

(k)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.

Mandatory FVOC]

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOCI/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI
include unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

—
=

acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds, listed equity securities, listed debt instruments
and unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other non-current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except
for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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£WMIE(E) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)

THEEFE) Financial liabilities (Continued)

DR E(E) Classification and measurement (Continued)

£okn EE\E?& FRAFBAER A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

%

() WEXTERAETHEEHNAN (i) incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it
EfEAB in the near term;

(il ZEEERERE BFERE (i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
ML BERERR that are managed together and for which there is
SRS TAESH— evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
BB Bk profit-taking on initial recognition; or

(i) TERMBEREGR - % (i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract
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or not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at

TERTIEEBIEFVPLATE ¢ FVPL only if:
() BT HERIKERDT (i)  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
HREFTEEERBE - =X measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
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(ii)

recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases; or

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or
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THEMEE) Financial liabilities (Continued)

DEREE(E) Classification and measurement (Continued)

(i) AEE—EZ @A (i) they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
APTETER - HEEER in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
T - BERS S AP e designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
IETEAEFVPLHFTE® the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
BEE - BRIFZRARDT the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
GSTETSEENNFHR embedded derivatives is prohibited.

SMEBHRALTE AR
BRI EBAR -

BAVBRELREREE Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
ATBREEMNEEBEIAR is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

0) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

° the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low crediit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
certain other receivables and related parties are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

163



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(k)

)

EWMIAE)

THMEERAMELZHE
(%)

EAKBERAAEEHTED
TREERMXITOEMEE
MAEKNRSRER  AEEFE
HZEMEE - AKERESR
B ER A Y BIE R &5 TE T
MBER EeMEEARIF
R HARMEARRE - AKEBEH
TetEHSBHRREEE -
B2 RIBEAKE R Y EFIEA
MWiZF SEHENEREEDY
BEX BT AR B FF1TE) Y
FE O OWEEERITEREA
RER - EFREKDNSER
DERERPHER o

Hio

B

REEED

MEAERERERMNS HE
FEYEEHNR R XK
BHRE - MERTE (W
B) o ERERBERER A
TeREnEe -  HEEEIPA
RAR °

164 EHEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(k)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due., taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.



LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(m) WKEmzER (m) Revenue recognition
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when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and delivery of instant noodles, beverages and
instant food products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
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(m) WEZ8RA(E) (m) Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) the Group’'s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles and beverages is recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group's performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.
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(m) WEZH8RA(E) (m) Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customers until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payment from
customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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(n)

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b) Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(©)  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;
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(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

(e)  On the partial disposal of the thee Group's interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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(p)

(q)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest
in an associate, and interest in joint ventures may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

Applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(¢) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 yearto 11 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold period
leasehold land

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c)  amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

177



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(s) WHEHE)
H2019E1 81 B8ER(E)

TERATN ()
HEEUTIER - AIKHEE R
RIABYHE AR

(a)

BRAERTE BB N —IAK
A EHRBEE 2 (MM
BAHERE : &

TRERE RN - FF A
STENRBARE 2B
B R ARBEEES
KR 2 (E B B
AR -

EHEEFTTABLIHEEAR
ZBERT  REEEBFTERA

HA
(a)

178 EEEERERAHE

AEBBEETEHZR
Rl uisEp VAL
HOREC

AEEEERETENZ
THES

ARE BB BN EIEFTHE
IR FT T IR R & (&
FIEEMNRITR - B
EMHERE -

HpmE N EEREZEE
ER] - NEEE B A E
FAME & E MR (B A R AR
B2 BN RERE I
HHE 2 #o kB EPAR L
MR E R E R EER
BaRAER - BHEAR
B2EMTEAR -

HRATBEMBERZET
AEBEF M ERREEE
EHAERAE - BHER
BZEHAEAR-

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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(s)

®

Leases (Continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.



(t)

ri'!
W

BEIRA(E)

SEREFIETZ) ()
BEREZAEDEREGFHEBE L
A EWREERMATERT BEALK AR
/i{/lzuujZi_E%éz © /?/l ;EZEI%'J,\

EZHW“EJZZIK&W,%&ZHHME

AR AR o B HIAR TSR AN DA
EfBREEHRE 2RER
MaBEzRERRAE  HMU
(EEEBR T ) FRERFE
BEREENER] ~ SR B
RIEEHFEFAERMAE
EATE - METRBERREN

BEZHEXREER ZBAE
FRHME - ZALLEZEERF

HMERFET cEBRMEF
Hi—% -

—+ Aty

mEBERERIMXNHR
ERMEMENRE EHb) A%
EEAER N RBERNEZEMN
AE e HBReEGEEET
B o

RERKRBAFEZERERE
H b 2 [ Y ot 7R 51 3 BN B =
RSN - EEEREREE
BE - FEIEEZ WS (T e
FARERNBE(EE)NF
MEFE) - UREBEE ERE(L
MWEAZE (T BRETARER
MaBE(EE)HNFENERA) -

S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(®)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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(u)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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(u)

(v)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(iii)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(¢)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8  Definition of Material "

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform "
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business !

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts !

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

( Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

@ Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

@ The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Annual Improvements Project - 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial
instruments classified as equity

The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the past transactions or
events that generated the distributable profits were originally
recognised and (b) these requirements apply to all income tax
consequences of dividends as defined in HKFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed specifically to obtain an
asset other than a qualifying asset are included as part of general
borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12 Income
Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder
of the reporting period after a change is made to a plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income instead of at FVPL
if specified conditions are met.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It significantly
changes, among others, the lessee accounting by replacing the
dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single model which requires a
lessee to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the
rights and obligations created by all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. For
lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. HKFRS 16
also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees and
lessors.
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BN /R E R E %L Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

(&)

BB RIREEBE165  HE () HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

WIER TR EERE 165808 In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
JEMEAE S - REER2019F1 A1 applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 January 2019 (i.e. the date
HEN¥ R ER B H ) FEAKIEEITH of initial application, the “DIA") using the modified retrospective
BRI FE S B RS iR & R approach in which comparative information has not been restated.
F16% LREMLBEES - M8 Instead, the Group recognised the cumulative effect of initially
R REBRVIXFERBBRAR applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of retained
R THXRERNEFTZEEAR profits or other component of equity, where appropriate, at the
BN R - DIA.

REBNMRKAERA{TER A The Group also elected to use the transition practical expedient
REHRTEHEEONVIRERBEZ not to reassess whether a contract was, or contained, a lease at
LTEEHAE BAEERYEAE the DIA and the Group applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
AERBHBREEBNETRELR were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and to
HEMNEHRNIAERB L2 contracts entered into or changed on or after the DIA that are
BIEREEERELELE 16585 identified as leases applying HKFRS 16.

VSR EMBELREENEL -

TERATAN As lessee

RERWE BT REERFE 165 Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were classified
Bl - MEASLRYRERHBHAR as operating or finance lease in accordance with the Group's
EAREEEANSTHRSWER accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

REEHENRMEHE -

B EERRE ERE 165 A Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for the leases
B AEBeREBEEEVBREE in accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16 and the
BII 25 16 5% /) 18 8 A& ST X 4700k e A Group's accounting policies applicable from the DIA.
HERAEEERN T HERT
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As lessee - leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases previously classified as operating leases at the DIA, except
for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, and the
Group applied the following practical expedients on a lease-by-
lease basis.

(@) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.

(b)  Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by the provision
for onerous leases recognised immediately before the DIA
by applying HKAS 37, as an alternative to performing an
impairment review at the DIA.

(c)  Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to
leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the DIA.

(d)  Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use assets at the DIA.

(e) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or will be
accounted for as investment property using the fair value model,
right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis, measured at
an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised immediately before the DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities at the
DIA is 4.82%.
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BANER] BT R BRI REER Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)
(&)
BB HEEREI65 HE(E) HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
TERAMA — R D BEREEHES As lessee - leases previously classified as operating leases
HE (&) (Continued)
TR -_ZFE-NF+Z-A Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed applying
=t HERABBGEIFE 7R HKAS 17 at 31 December 2018 and lease liabilities recognised at
BT EAE RN ER B B HE the DIA is as follows.
EQEEL 2 FABEER
AREFT
RMB’000
RZZ-NF+A=+—Hz Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018
HERERZ16) (Note 16) 841,810
R HEE R 2 A Less: Commitments exempt from capitalisation:
REEEENE THEER Leases of low value assets, short-term leases and
Hitngr THE R other leases with remaining lease term ending
RZBE-NF+=-A=+—H on or before 31 December 2019
A ZHE (289,473)
BERZZ—-N\F+=A Value-added tax including in operating lease
—t+—RzEEREREZ commitment at 31 December 2018
IEER (74,137)
m: BYIREABBEEITHEE Add: Liabilities for lease contracts signed subsequently to
SXHHMEENMG B DIA with the commencement date of the lease
REXERBH R - IR terms on or before the DIA which was not
RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H reflected in operating lease commitments at
ZHEAERBRZBE 31 December 2018 92,088
RZZE—NF—A—HZHBHEERME Gross lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 570,288
B RRFI BB A ERE Less: Total future interest expenses (61,697)
RZE-NF-RA—-—B¥ERZ Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019
HERE 508,591
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
As lessee

At the DIA, all right-of-use assets were presented within the
line item “right-of-use assets” on the consolidated statement of
financial position. Besides, lease liabilities were shown separately
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

As a result, transfer was made at the DIA to reflect the changes in
presentation:

BREE - BREE -
BZ2018%F BZ2019%
12A31H1E 1A1H L
EREEET ERERME
ERIZ175 BB BREEAF 165
Carrying amount Carrying amount
on 31 December on 1 January
2018 under 2019 under
HKAS 17 Adjustments HKFRS 16
AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EmEL)
Increase (Decrease)
HE Assets.
FREEE Right-of-use assets — 4,199,723 4,199,723
THELRE Prepaid lease payments 3,570,367 (3,570,367) —
FEAT R K E At TR IR Prepayments and
other receivables 2,669,689 (120,765) 2,548,924
6,240,056 508,591 6,748,647
g8 Liabilities
HERRE Lease liabilities — 508,591 508,591
TERHTA As lessor

EREBEAR  AEEEAHHEE

REBEETEMNRAE  M&xE

ERVIRERBMERTRBHH
EEAFE 165 °

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on transition
for leases in which it is a lessor and those leases are accounted for
by applying HKFRS 16 from the DIA.
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BEARKZEE RERZARHE T Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
HEREARREGEESVEMKREE are made by the management in the preparation of the
HeBEMar RERAGSH consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

NEBEHBKER BE - B of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

& WARRAZZ Eﬁiﬁ/j':\gﬁ LA K Ffr liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

EHCBRBEKRKEE  TEFHER assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

BB EAER=(2ERRERE relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

BRABATE 1é§/—\f¥2$1¢)%’$ are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

iy o RIBER - @thstziEgslg appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

wig uTHHFﬂ&EA%XHﬂFEﬁUW%} P the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

B A% M) MR o affects future periods.

() ERETBRNEZAMN (i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
INTAEARREZEENERS T The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
BEBEPMELH TG M involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
BHREkTERNESEAFEX made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
FEMNEZAECERERE policies and that have the most significant effect on
(RT3OBRIN) o the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or
termination options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.
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(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as
lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group’s revenue and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose, logistics and
supportive functions.

Starting from current year, the Group focuses on the operating
decisions and the performance evaluation of two reportable
segments which are Instant noodles and Beverages. Instant food
is no longer considered as a separate reportable segment and has
been included in others. As a result of the above re-alignment,
comparative figures presented have also been restated to conform
to current year's presentation.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
(expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI. Segment
liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of employee
benefit obligations.
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Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BEPHEMAE YIRS M & 3
Do REBZNI9% KEIIHEF

The geographical location of the Group's customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the

ZWEBFRRAEBEREEE-AAN
EFENER - B NEEMFR
BRFREDEE - BREEDIRFVPLAY
T R E E MR EFVOCI Z SME R0

i -

WER G E—IFEF WAL AR
EFEWE10% A F o

FVOCI, are located in the PRC.

more of the Group’s revenue.

revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or

DEEE Segment results:
2019
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARBFT ARETZ ARETT ARETH AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
I Revenue
BEPANEE N Revenue from contracts
with customers 25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
Eneylpd =2 Timing of revenue
recognition:
EE R Recognised at a point in time 25,295,434 35,580,490 703,287 — 61,759,211
BE R 1335 Recognised over time = = 312,775 = 312,775
25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
BEMIREE Z KA - Revenue from other sources:
REREURE Rental income from
ZHBWA investment properties = = 86,172 = 86,172
SRz e Inter-segment revenue 4,988 19,131 1515469  (1,539,588) —
7 EUEs Segment revenue 25,300,422 35,599,621 2,617,703  (1,539,588) 61,978,158
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DEHEE : (£) Segment results: (Continued)

2019
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles  Beverages Others  elimination Total
ABEFT ANREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

PBEE(CNRBBEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 3,364,881 1,549,877 247,413 (6,202) 5,155,969
[EEBENAIRAEDNAIEE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 483 242,752 (9,076) — 234,159
KAEZFWA Unallocated income, net = = 21,468 = 21,468
BB AR Profit before taxation 3,365,364 1,792,629 259,805 (6,202) 5,411,596
A Taxation (1,166,264) (453,607) (73,503) — (1,693,374)
A2 BR Profit for the year 2,199,100 1,339,022 186,302 (6,202) 3,718,222
BE Assets
DHEE Segment assets 22,790,688 29,095,483 4,010,878 (235,139) 55,661,910
BaNRER Interest in an associate = 139,537 — — 139,537
BERFER Interest in joint ventures 882 849,424 38,759 = 889,065
AOREE Unallocated assets 1,269,155
BEE Total assets 57,959,667
8 Liabilities
NHEE Segment liabilities 9,294,961 15805462 10,482,964 (826,893) 34,756,494
AAREE Unallocated liabilities 157,066
BEE Total liabilities 34,913,560
HtnER Other information
hEREH Depreciation and amortisation 777,990 2,324,077 211,848 (56,144) 3,257,771
BARY Capital expenditures 440,974 1,355,033 278,984 — 2,074,991
M Interest income 326,958 228,758 18,854 (33,348) 541,222
FESH Interest expenses 3,967 136,873 310,551 (37,739) 413,652
REEE Impairment loss of property,

plant and equipment 35,097 112,555 4,398 - 152,050
HEMBARFNE Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 372,208 94,537 162,144 = 628,889
HEAERAFlE Gain on disposal of a joint venture = = 223,150 = 223,150
HERE DA FlE Gain on disposal of an associate 119,593 11,460 = = 131,053
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DEEE : (B) Segment results: (Continued)
2018
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ABHTT ARKMTET ARETT ARETT ARKTT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

(4EE3)
(Restated)

= Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 23,915,946 35,311,108 1,380,136 — 60,607,190
eyl =2 Timing of revenue

recognition:
TEE—EERD Recognised at a point in time 23,915,946 35,311,108 779,457 — 60,006,511
BEE 3251 Recognised over time — — 600,679 — 600,679

23,915,946 35,311,108 1,380,136 — 60,607,190
REMIREE ZWA Revenue from other sources:
REREHEEHE Rental income from
ZHEHA investment properties — — 78,455 — 78,455

S EE 2 W Inter-segment revenue 728 1,823 1,495,680  (1,498,231) —
aR= ity Segment revenue 23,916,674 35,312,931 2,954,271 (1,498,231) 60,685,645
PREE(CMIRMEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,505,302 1,124,905 326,919 1,497 3,958,623
BHEE AT NAENFIEE  Share of results of associates

and joint ventures 212 71,021 347 — 71,580
ARz FTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (50,869) — (50,869)
BB AR Profit before taxation 2,505,514 1,195,926 276,397 1497 3,979,334
HIE Taxation (800,387)  (398,051) (52,127) —  (1,250,565)
RH 2 A Profit for the year 1,705,127 797,875 224,270 1,497 2,728,769
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Segment results: (Continued)

2018
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ABHTT ARMTET ARETT ARETT ARKTZT
RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

(4 E5)
(Restated)

BE Assets
THEE Segment assets 19,508,958 27,360,079 5,516,526 (771,501) 51,614,062
LNl Interest in associates — 127,725 — — 127,725
AELNARER Interest in joint ventures 399 650,509 47,835 — 698,743
AOEEE Unallocated assets 562,139
BEE Total assets 53,002,669
=4 Liabilities
AHEE Segment liabilities 8,181,378 14,704,521 7,749,539  (1,360,636) 29,274,802
*PE&aE Unallocated liabilities 115,436
BaE Total liabilities 29,390,238
Hipg Other information
MEREE Depreciation and amortisation 716,954 2,465,003 141,550 — 3,323,507
BERRZ Capital expenditures 370,086 978,848 96,858 — 1445792
FIBHA Interest income 201,172 158,004 19,590 (30,378) 348,388
FlEx Interest expenses — 180,131 271,929 (30,378) 421,682
REEE Impairment loss of property,

plant and equipment 280,274 340,672 4,900 — 625,846
HEMBRARFER)ME  Net (loss) gain on disposal

of subsidiaries — (3,225) 391,069 — 387,844
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FBHA Interest income 541,222 348,388
2019 2018
k3 AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
& R mn 2 W as Gain on sales of scrapped materials 160,451 154,535
BRAREEYERE Change in fair value of financial
EnREEeRMEEL assets at FVPL, net
NABEZEFER 20,774 (49,675)
WEEFEHEAALBELEE Change in fair value of
investment properties 14 3,674 13,000
RARBEYERE Change in fair value of financial
BRERENS/MBE.  labilites at FVPL, net
NREEZEFHE 33 188 40,115
BRAREBEYERE Dividend income from financial
EmRRESRMEEY assets at FVPL
PR AU A 3,253 6,500
HEMEB AR FR S Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43 628,889 387,844
e A QBRI Gain on disposal of an associate 15(d) 131,053 —
HEaEARF A Gain on disposal of a joint venture 20(a) 223,150 —
B 76 Bh Government grants 314,116 166,140
MEMZE, e R HE R Loss on disposal of property,
CREEEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (92,900) (86,607)
fE 5 e (182K ) 558 Exchange gain (loss), net 15,511 (46,922)
Hith Others 136,064 219,044
1,544,223 803,974
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This is stated after charging (crediting):

2019 2018
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E M Finance costs
AR S FNBHEE 2T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMERZFEZ T repayable within five years 363,850 392,570
AN 5 F DA _EBEEE 2 $R1T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMERZFEZ T repayable over five years 27,944 33,049
HEaBEEEZMEER  Finance costs on lease liabilities 24,625 —
416,419 425,619
B MESZHEARETIA  Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
VIZ - R REE property, plant and equipment at
EFHER XS weighted average capitalisation
3.71% (2018: 3.89%) rate of 3.71% (2018: 3.89%) (2,767) (3,937)
413,652 421,682
2019 2018
AR¥FT ABR®FT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HihE H Other items
ETHRA(BIEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e Ko Salaries and wages 6,347,895 6,026,909
R AE RGO I Equity-settled share-based
2 I8 payment expenses 24,504 32,799
RIRB A Pension costs:
REMKETE Defined contribution plans 648,730 686,986
AEBFIGTE Defined benefit plans 13,623 10,352
ZEEN £ - Auditor's remuneration:
=ZEH Audit fee 8,961 9,297
BEETFTEKRAN# Cost of inventories 42,218,703 41,958,429
E - Depreciation:
Wz - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 2,952,224 3,210,324
EAEEE Right-of-use assets 299,141 —
T AR A0 B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments — 103,693
B A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(BEBRFERDHEAA) (included in distribution costs) 6,406 9,490
M - WERRE Impairment loss of property, plant and
REEE(BEREM equipment (included in other operating
SEBRN) expenses) 152,050 625,846
# EEFERATEEHEE THA - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,822,750,000 (2018:

Y E - BESRBEREHREEES
WE MBEHGHEE KEEE
EMEM Ra#H+ AR (2018
FHETHE  WE - #EERR
BEZHE LA RE B
REZYEEHLGEE)Z ANRE
4,822,750,000 5T (20184 : A FEHE

RMB4,617,243,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and lease
expenses relating to short-term leases, low value assets and variable
lease payments (2018: staff costs, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, amortisation of prepaid lease payments and
operating lease charges of premises), which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

4,617,243,0007C) * Z & 2 BEIrAT
AU LB T EFEZ S FIAEFET -
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ARARREZERTHRAHE TR The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
[z BN BEEI T Company'’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2019
BIREXHR
ExMhEke
4R DRGXA STEMR
Hitie Z5E  Retirement
Ezhg Salaries AL Share- payments and
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  contribution fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments  to pension Total

ABRTE  ARRTZ  ARETr  ARRTZ  ARETZ  ARRTZ
RMBO00  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMBOO)  RMBUOO  RMBUO0

HIEZE: Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou = = = 473 23902 24,375
BEA Wei Hong-Ming 690 1,763 35 1,189 = 9,998
FRE—H Junichiro Ida 552 21 = = = m
REX Wei Hong-Chen 1,036 6,763 356 1,189 — 9,344
REER Koji Shinohara 345 m = = = 566
aERE Yuko Takahashi 144 138 — — — 282
REBIE Teruo Nagano 201 83 = = = 284
HEE Lin Chin-Tang 345 110 = = = 455
2 Tseng Chien - - - - = =
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
TRiER Hsu Shin-Chun 345 110 - = = 455
3 Lee Tiong-Hock 345 110 = = = 455
RER Hiromu Fukada 345 110 = = = 455
T4 - Chief executive officer;
B James Chun-Hsien Wei = 18,211 3,299 6,161 = 27,671

4,348 33,840 4011 9,012 23,902 5,113
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ZREM A R2019F1 A1 HE X
KRBITEEH -
b

JEIN %5 A A 201941 A1 B BHE
AEBEXE RB - BERBELLE
TEERNEEESF -

BEREEN2019FE1A1AES
TERABNITES °

MR2019F8H9H KRB EH L E
HIARBNITEEMSBEBEL
FTEZTAERRBRNTES -

MN2019%F12 8318 KiFE L4
BIEARBRTESMEELLE
TEERRATNITES -

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as the chairman of the Group on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Teruo Nagano resigned and Mr. Yuko Takahashi was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 9 August
2019.

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang resigned and Ms. Tseng Chien was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 31 December 2019.
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2018

BREEHR

EEEREKS

H2R PG ST

e ZFIE Retirement

208 Salaries bzl Share-  payments and
Directors' ~and other  Discretionary based  contribution =
fees  emoluments bonuses payments  to pension Total

ANBRTT  ABETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMB000

HITEE - Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou 1327 9,932 4,808 304 — 16,371
HBa— Junichiro Ida 531 M - - - 743
REELE Teruo Nagano 332 106 — — — 438
REA Wei Hong-Ming 332 1919 475 949 - 3,675
e Koji Shinohara 332 212 — — — 544
WEX Lin Chin-Tang 332 212 — — — 544
BUHHTEE - Independent non-executive directors:
rEE Hsu Shin-Chun 33 106 - — — 438
2RE Lee Tiong-Hock 332 80 — — — 412
REAE Hiromu Fukada 33 106 - - - 438
TR : Chief executive officer;
ZRE James Chun-Hsien Wej - 11,254 4,521 4,944 - 20,719
4,182 24139 9,804 6,197 — 44,322
FR20194F N 2018F 12 A31 HIEF No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
EWEEERSUEmHALRES emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2019 and
HE® o 2018.
REBREAYAESERSURSH No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
ATMAXREEMNME S EES and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
MAXREBEBN e AES K joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

ERLIFHERE -
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AEEBESMNESHFALTEE MR
2009F 1 ATHEBHANES W
UEE2018F - 1 EF)RITH
BE - EMeFBER EXRIMIA
(20184 - 3fi7) - E#r141(2018
F:3M)NTZ2MeFHBHOT -

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include one director who resigned on 1 January

2019, two directors (2018: one director) and the chief executive

officer whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above and one individual (2018 three). Details of the emoluments

of the remaining one individual (2078: three) are as follows:

2019 2018

AR¥FT AREFoT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FekEMNe Salaries and other emoluments 5,075 12,856

VAR5 32 1+ 2 5108 Share-based payments 1,850 7,766
BRI REESN Retirement payments and contribution

RIREET B to pension scheme — —

TE4L Discretionary bonuses 2,124 7,625

9,049 28,247

S (20184 < 317)ZEH AL
ZMSERIMT :

The emoluments were paid to the one (20178: three) highest paid

individuals as follows:

Number of individuals

£ 48 B Emoluments band 2019 2018
AR#7,051,201 TEARKE RMB7,051,201 to RMB7,491,900

7,491,900 7t.(8,000,001 % 7T (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

Z 8,500,000 7T) = 1
AR#8,373,301 T2 AR RMB8,373,301 to RMB8,814,000

8,814,0007t(9,500,001 7T (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000)

210,000,000/ 7T) = 1
AR#8,814,001 TE AR RMBS8,814,001 to RMB9,254,700

9,254,7007t(10,000,001 #7T (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

% 10,500,000/ 7T) 1 —
AR#11,898,901 TE AR RMB11,898,901 to RMB12,339,600

12,339,60075(13,500,00187c  (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000)

Z 14,000,000/ 7T) — 1

1 3
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2019 2018
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PECEMER
REZE Current year 1,245,211 1,196,356
LARTF B Z 51 e Over provision in prior year (17,587) (74)
1,227,624 1,196,282
ERERLIE (M £ 36) Deferred taxation (Note 36)
EAERERE 2 Origination and reversal of temporary
R ERFHE differences, net (18,286) (92,656)
BRAEERPEZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
Bt & A R AT 55 AL R R distributable earnings of the Group's
FRRZ AR PRC subsidiaries 484,036 146,939
465,750 54,283
REETIABER Total tax charge for the year 1,693,374 1,250,565

MEeERBSY M ARARAERZ

WA BT BLIA -

BHRAEEZARREZE2019F &
2018 4 A AT (7] & 78 FI) 15 i FE 25
BAHE BRI RAEEEFSH

A -

hEKREZHEBARAENRED
EMIEMEAERE B25% (2018
F:25%)  RIBMEE - BHEEE
BB R BB S B HOCERIR
A E e 7 50 A B % BLRE A B UK R
FERER (B BL[2011]585%) -

and the Group.

The Cayman lIslands levies no tax on the income of the Company

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (2078: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “Western Region”)

iz P& R B K BE 75 6 b [ ([ 78 30
EDMERSEEEENIFRE
T HBBEEEFERAGR
HEBIWART0% A ER - FE20114F
E2020FFE - WIL15% HEED
EHREEMER - Bt - A& H
RS E 2 B AR RER15%
(2018%F : 15%) »

with over 70% of principal revenue generated from the
encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the Western
Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2078 15%).

210 EEEZRRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



—
N

LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

NE [ 2 B B AT m F B AN [ AR I8 The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERNT - for the year as follows:
BlEB X 2 BIR Reconciliation of tax expense
2019 2018
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB BRI Profit before taxation 5,411,596 3,979,334
RHBUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
FIE(20184F - 25%) in the PRC (2018: 25%) 1,352,899 994,834
JEIREE A EARIELS  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (58,540) (17,895)
NE[ B Non-deductible expenses 186,145 245,861
EERBBA Tax exempt revenue (101,253) (43,458)
RIERTIAEE Unrecognised tax losses 105,055 115,220
RERERER Unrecognised temporary differences (12,107) 8,936
MR BE I ARFERFEERE R  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (179,407) (154,642)
WMAREERFREZHE AR Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
At BRI 2 TER profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
(Ki7#36) (note 36) 484,036 146,939
FA 78 B [ B R Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries in
BB A B2 BUUR % Western Region (28,761) (19,542)
AR E %5t Over provision in prior year (17,587) (74)
Hith Others (37.106) (25,614)
REFERIA Tax expense for the year 1,693,374 1,250,565
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RRABRRERRAFERESEZ K
g8

(a)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
the year:

2019 2018
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHAREIR 2 RARE Final dividend proposed after the end of
BRTEK4.24E the reporting period of US4.24 cents
(2018 : R EBK (2018: US3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 %) 1,665,491 1,231,661
EHAREIR IR E Special dividend proposed after the end of
BRTEK4.24E the reporting period of US4.24 cents
(2018 : R EBEK (2018: 3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 M) 1,665,490 1,231,660
3,330,981 2,463,321

M2020F3 823 M & =
EERARRERIREERE
BRA24FN R KRR BB
TR 424300 - LR
BEENEBRNEERRERS
B5EA - BRI AEZE 2020
FI2ANBEFERRHER
oo WEERFRIR B MR
BRGEMBIRRATRFTRA
JERIAR B ©

RAFRILERKERBN £
—HMRFETARABRR ZE

SRR

At meeting held on 23 March 2020, the directors
recommended the payment of a special dividend and a final
dividend of US4.24 cents and US4.24 cents per ordinary
share respectively. The proposed special and final dividend
will be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in
the year ending 31 December 2020 if it is approved at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend have not been recognised as dividends payable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AEBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PARERUENIRZEBER  Final dividend in respect of the previous
AIFERARER financial year, approved and paid
FE®R3.20 =L during the year, of US3.20 cents
(2018 %F : R ZEK (2018: US2.49 cents) per ordinary share
2.49 %) 1,231,661 909,539
PAFERHE MREBR Special dividend in respect of the previous
AIFEERNRER financial year, approved and paid
T EER3.20 AL during the year, of US3.20 cents
(20184 : f%) (2018: Nil) per ordinary share 1,231,660 —
2,463,321 909,539
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AT RERERRF TR % The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
MzstHE - follows:
(@) BREA&EF (a) Basic earnings per share
2019 2018
AR¥FT ARBTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
R RIRERF RIS Profit attributable to ordinary equity
wmA(ARETIT) shareholders (RMB’000) 3,330,981 2,463,321
EETE R Ik Weighted average number of
FHRE(TR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,622,019 5,617,202
FREEAH R (AR®ESD ) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 59.25 43.85
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2019 2018
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RARBEFAEMSEF  Profit attributable to ordinary equity

(AR%FT) shareholders (RMB'000) 3,330,981 2,463,321
ZiE AR IR T2 Weighted average number of ordinary
(#58) (TR shares (diluted) ('000)
BETEBERZ Weighted average number of ordinary
AN 15 2 shares 5,622,019 5,617,202
NAREREE ZFE  Effect of the Company's share option
scheme 4,831 10,129

BRTESR#E#EEF 2  Weighted average number of ordinary

TR N T 8 shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 5,626,850 5,627,331
BRHESF(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 59.20 43.77
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2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,119,000 1,106,000
RE-BEA Addition - purchases 24 648,826 —
NI = Change in fair value 3,674 13,000
REER At the end of the reporting period 1,771,500 1,119,000

(a)

REBZREEFRHERER
BEWEREHESBUEREZRL
HE AR RPEEETHEA
7RI 16785 K 1686 5F
LA Ko A B O 532 T A6 07 93¢ i R B
BB EHEFBARZIAAR
ﬁ o

AEENSEHELHEEST
REGFEME  FHEAR?2
E3F UEEREHERR
PAR IR A TR 2 IR 4 o

XELEHEZHEWAFT
A M MmRMEE3(m)

HEAAEBHENREFHERE
MR RESE  AKE-R
SRIVHEERE At T g
VEER - ERREREER
mRRRE - HARKIREZTEH
KRR EHEZ RAEET °
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(a)

The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1678
and No. 1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
the PRC and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada
Street and Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological
Development Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 2-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise and reduction in residual value at the
end of these leases. Expectations about the future residual
values are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(%) (@)  (Continued)
LT ABEREIREEREE Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
ME 2 RTBRBEERN K2 to be received from the leasing of investment properties.
=Ea% T
AR¥FT
7"2019F12A31H8 At 31 December 2019 RMB’000
15R Within one year 38,875
F2F In the second year 18,939
F3IF In the third year 6,437
FEAF In the fourth year 1,436
F54F In the fifth year 718
66,405
AAEBEFTEMFTHRRE (b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes
WEMEME 2 TR 2 The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under
HE IETZ*XE&EJEHNHi non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties
REBIT were as follows:
ARBTFr
A2018%12831H At 31 December 2018 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 47,365
ZEERFN(BIEERRSE) In the second to fifth years inclusive 54,812
102,177

HEREMEMENAAEBE
B - AREBMBREREE
AEBGHEMETHE - B12
BB IEEEERNIGERD
BYAE B EENGEER
MR AR g A SR - 1@
Az B ANMEEBH - RMEE
FEEDERBAMELEN
MTIBHEEH2E A E BN
ERWMAENA KT AUDE
BEMBERBERTERE - &
FETRAME RN R THE 2
HEMRZIEROBLUDES
RETBRWEEE - BERIERM
ERFTAB A FEY X B R
HERZARBEA - EFE
MEATEER  WENRS
MExERERAEBAAR -

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.
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(b) AAEEFEMTHREZGE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

REEZEREMNFHMENRD The fair value measurements for the Group's investment

BEEFESHEEANEENSE properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value

3R RAFERNREBIAE hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

BEZEHASBRFI3EL - There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

BREEHEwEBABATH The following table gives information on significant

BIRBAGENT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2019 2019

AUTENE L OB AR

DRBENEE

BEMEME HEFLTREEHA EXFTATHASHNEA Relationship of

Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

R EERKZE WHENE

B ERYEM Income capitalisation

FE5 approach

Commercial

properties and ERBA

car parks The key inputs are:

i Shangha FR31 B 3R ERBBMERAEAL  BENE FAOERENEEEES

and Tianjin REESREENARMEER i SSRENREHREN
OB ARAVEREESNE QATVEBEABEATHK RZ
SUWREXE BRI AR5.00% K TR
450% @ ERFA DB A55%F
6% K3% °

Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account An increase in the reversion

the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the fair value
with due allowance for reversionary of the investment properties,
rental potential of the commercial and vice versa.

properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.5% to 6% and 3% in Tianjin
respectively.
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N EEEMFGRIZE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

AABRE LB AR
DABENBE

REMEHE RERLDREEGA BERFABRAGHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

[RE A=k BAEYE

Daily market rent

ZRIEMHE MBEREREAME
BYEAFZEANERNEE - wh
MEFPE - EBRXEEAVES
AmSES ARALERETE
FARDRABEARBTOOITEA
RENMNITRARBEIITTEA
R#4667T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.07 to RMB11.16
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.17 to RMB4.66 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES
ZRIEME - B R ERYEEY
xR zHENENEE - WHRK
PR EBRREGEEEMNE
AmBEEEeD A AARE 2677
RARE16TT -

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB26.77 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FrANEEmEEEEA L
gt REUREHENDR
FTEEFERLA RZT

R o

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice

versa.
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(b) AARBEFFEMHEREGE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2018 2018
AABASE L@ AR
DREENERE
REMEWE EERGREIEHA ERFUBASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R EENERY WaERE
ENFES Income capitalisation
Commercial approach
properties and
car parks EEHA
in Shanghai The key inputs are:
RHEmOERE ZRIBMAERL BAVEREE HMANBRENEREEF LA

Reversion yield

5 B

Daily market rent

218 EEEZERERAR
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SRAERNSEMEEHSRR Hel
% A5.00% K4.50% ©

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively.

BEYE

ZERIGE HHERERIANEENE
KgzROERNERZ NrmRkFE - §
A5 e AR HAERT 8T A RS
ARB6.63TEARK .06 °
Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB6.63 to

RMB11.06 per square meter

per day on lettable area basis.

&
eoRENEHENLTEEE
BT% R2FA -

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in

a decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FRMERTSHEEERLI €
SRENFHENATEESEA
Et R

An increase in the daily
market rent used would
result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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(b) RAAEEFEMTHREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
RABRB L@ AR
DRAEENRE
REMEHE EERGREEHA EATABASHOEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE5
ZRINRE HERURNFANELRY
ZENENRRZ  mAmRFPE  BRARF
BuMEATSHEEIAARK 24827 -
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB24.82 per unit for
car park spaces.
H e
BERRE  Electrical
KAERLH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HEIR
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction gt
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABETE  AREFEZ  ARETT  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fiita) (fiith)
(Note a) (Note b)
BEERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
BZ20185128318  year ended 31 December 2018
LEE
RET At beginning of year 113987 8138049 17,451,705 70670 637,776 160259 28,014,779
HE Additions - 94,817 206,534 12,554 342,040 708,141 1,364,086
RESEWHE) Impairment loss (Vote ¢/ - —  (625846) - - —  (625846)
ERRER Transfer upon completion - 337489 1,009,709 641 285382 (1,633,221) -
e Disposals — (1,049) (37.369) (1.914) (87320) - (127,65)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals - disposal of subsiclaries —  (40681)  (208,106) (2,990) (12,330) (26849  (490956)
ik Depreciation — (4994 (377091 (26293 (309986) - (321034)
EREE Exchange differences 22% 1,206 36 5 - - 3543
REER Atend of the reporting period 116,283 7832817 15419572 52,673 855,562 650,603 24,927,630
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HEE
WERRE  Electrical
KAKELH Machinery  appliances ~ HEHRE  ARIR
Freehold BF and and Miscellaneous Construction &3t
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABRTE  AREFL  ARETT  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARRTZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(fta)  (KZb)
(Note a) (Note b)
BEERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
HE2019%12A31R  yearended 31 December 2019
LEE
RED At beginning of year 116,283 7832877 15419572 52,673 855,562 650663 24,927,630
hE Additions - 49,469 134,497 11,806 617,665 977,434 1,790,871
HEBRMW:L) Impairment loss (Mote ¢) - = (152,050) - - — (152,050
EhA e Transfer upon completion = 816,780 210,279 6,814 108,115 (1,141,988) =
e o) Disposals (Note ¢ —  (110308)  (169750)  (13622)  (131599) —  (425219)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(hit43) (Note 43) —  (154851) (24,495 (134) (2.961) - (182441)
ik Depreciation - (491,007 (2,200,512) (16,031) (244,584) — (2952224
ERZE Exchange differences 4,948 2532 2 2 = = 7484
REER At end of the reporting period 121231 7945402 13217543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
R201951518 At 1 January 2019
R Cost 116,283 12,202,567 33,922,275 266,691 5,070,447 650663 52,228,926
ZEMERMBERE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4369,690) (18502,703)  (214,018)  (4,214,885) —  (27,301,29)
RERE Net carrying amount 116,283 7,832877  15419,572 52,673 855,562 650,663 24,927,630
R201912A318 At 31 December 2019
R Cost 121231 12363247 32,108,916 208924 4,927,395 486,109 50,215,822
ZETEMAESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4817885) (18891373)  (167416) (3,725,197 —  (27201831)
RERE Net carrying amount 271,31 1945402 13,217,543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
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THRRA R B AN KA F A
Tt e
REER  AEEETHBENEE

BEREFANTICRBEERTZ
TSR ARES - REFE
58 A AR 47,659,000 75(2018
F AR B50,0640007T) EE
RE - ANEBAEEBEURERE
LE3Z EEY) o

EBEREERLFE - AEEE
BEEENEEBRDEERREE
FORBRRAREERA o Et - AR
REFEEE MBI BE - EE?&T
BEEE FL@EREERE
%@igﬁﬁ/\EMBZ,OS0,000E
(2018 %F - A & #625,846,000T )
E2ERE - AEERE NG EH
ERELEENERE MBEESE
BTUERE - EEEMREOERE
EETATEKX -

REALER  AEBERZRE
EEFER R2019F78 K
S EABREF{E AR 59,420,000
THME BERSEBRARE
15,632,000 o8y T H(F FRAELAE X
REEIEE—MBERR([H#HE
RAINDIABEHER  MAEE R
B E NAIMS53.91% B A
B o R AEBMURSKREA
R #216,198,000 T — B EH
PEHAEEREHE RN
M- &% HEBHEQRTHAR
#131,053,000 0 F W m B L ir &
Was KPR AEAFWA o

BRI

| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMBRMB47,659,000 (2078: RMB50,064,000)
have not been obtained due to application for the changes of
granted land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of
directors, the Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a new
rationalisation plan for both the instant noodle and beverage
segments under which the Group had devoted more efforts on
promoting asset-light through the optimisation of capacity allocation
so as to improve operational efficiency and reduce operational
costs. Accordingly, certain individual machinery and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB152,050,000 (2078: RMB625,846,000)
were fully impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence with comparably low production efficiency.
The Group decided not to re-use these machinery and equipment
and all those assets are prepared to be disposed of. The residual
values of these machinery and equipment were estimated to be
insignificant.

Among disposals during the year, pursuant to a contractual
agreement between the Group and another two investors, in July
2019, the Group injected certain property, plant and equipment and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC with the carrying
amounts of RMB59,420,000 and RMB 15,632,000 respectively at
their fair value as investment cost of paid-up capital of an associate
(the "Associate”) and the Group has 53.91% effective ownership
interest in the Associate. Subsequently, the Group disposed of
the entire equity interests of the Associate to an investor at a cash
consideration of RMB216,198,000. As a result, a gain on disposal of
an associate amounted to RMB131,053,000 was recorded in other
net income in the consolidated income statement.
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EREEE Right-of-use assets
BERUR
HEEEZ
T fE A
Land use AR
right in HiR 1
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other k]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EREE SR — Reconciliation of carrying

HZE2019F amount - year ended

12A31BLEFE 31 December 2019
REY)—HRIRMEBFT At beginning of the year -

WELERE 165 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 3,657,657 535,161 6,905 4,199,723
NE Additions 42,386 214,368 6,865 263,619

B E155] Lease modification = (56,623) (185) (56,808)
H& (H5E 15(d)) Disposal (Note 15(d) (17,126) — — (17,126)
HEME AT Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43)

(W1t 43) (65,143) — — (65,143)
e Depreciation (105,272) (190,507) (3.362) (299,141)
REEH At the end of the

reporting period 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
BEAMRK
HEEEZ
Tt R
Land use HEER
right in HitR1E
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other k|
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20195128318 At 31 December 2019

D% Cost 4,280,469 686,625 13,562 4,980,656
ZAMERRERE  Accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (767,967) (184,226) (3,339) (955,532)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
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AEFEAAFR2EMMEES T2
F oS REMEE HENTI1E
AZE114 -

PRI R E

Bt mEN KRB HE - K
FFRLEALE  BRIEAEEE
ERHAKEER MAKENT
HEREGHHREEE -

RYEHEHEMS AEEAKEH
MERFBETHRN - TREEE
WSS A R EAR KM ZE -

TEESAX

TR AR RLSAEE TR
AEGER - I EAEEEER
BAMREBIEN K -

ERRRILERERE

AEENIOEFZHEARES
REREIEEE - BERAER
EAREERBEIGITE Uik
FrEE LREM o

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 11 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
lease payments that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

HEAE Lease liabilities
2019 2018
ARET T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEE Lease liabilities

mBNE Current portion 199,664 —
EREE D Non-current portion 287,892 —
487,556 —
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HEeaEE) Lease liabilities (Continued)
REFAREEDHERATHIA - The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK Lease payments:
REIRE Short-term leases 185,607 —
KEEHE Low-value assets 3,063 —
LIBME K Operating lease payments — 432,140
RIERERERR X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 188,670 432,140
W IR TS FIR 2]  Variable lease payments that do not depend
HEMREAEBEA) on an index or a rate (as lessee)
HHEE under leases 31,783 —
N8 AR 2 BB FSZ Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 220,453 432,140
REEEEZEER Total cash outflow for leases 426,331 432,140
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HEARE

BR2019F 12 A31H » AEBEBE &
ERAMB s BRKSERBAE
XZHEGN - AT AERR
MREEERER Z2EEBEEN KA
AR¥8,011,0007T °

MR2019%F 12 A31H » N&EEB %
EARMEA2,448,000 T2 SGHATRE -

2018512 A31H

AEBEAAIMHEEHER TN ZR
RREENHEENTEENAT

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2019, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB8,011,000.

At 31 December 2019, the Group was committed to
RMB42,448,000 for short-term leases.

At 31 December 2018

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which are payable as follows:

ARBTFr

RMB’000

—FR Within one year 307,558
FEEFAFN(PEEEME) In the second to fifth years inclusive 447,470
iszhic ks Over five years 86,782
841,810

TR EERCRPEIRANE
BTN o GRS B R R M
FE16PTE  BRIA A B A
e MERMBTBYBRELRNF 16
SR - DA R (E 25 RE R E

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land in
the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments are presented
as land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC under right-
of-use assets as set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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KERFAIE
BERERE Water
Concession resource @gt
right license Total
AREFr AR ARHETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
IREEYE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-8 Z2018%12A31H - Year ended 31 December 2018
tEE
READ At beginning of the year 162,936 — 162,936
NE Addition — 23,867 23,867
5 Amortisation (4,999) (4,491) (9,490)
BE 5 55 B Exchange realignment 9,145 — 9,145
REEH At end of the reporting period 167,082 19,376 186,458
REEY R Reconciliation of carrying amount
-#HZ2019%F12A31A - Year ended 31 December 2019
LEE
REY] At beginning of the year 167,082 19,376 186,458
NE Addition — 158 158
i Amortisation (5.201) (1,205) (6,406)
BE S0 B Exchange realignment 3,199 = 3,199
N&EER At end of the reporting period 165,080 18,329 183,409
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

KE R AT &
BHREE Water
Concession resource ,‘.%@E“f
right license Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
®W2019F1H81H At 1 January 2019
AR Cost 202,062 23,867 225,929
2ty Accumulated amortisation (34,980) (4,491) (39,471)
167,082 19,376 186,458
201912 831H At 31 December 2019
D& Cost 206,030 24,025 230,056
REFTE Accumulated amortisation (40,950) (5,696) (46,647)
165,080 18,329 183,409

B EERRIEN2012F3 A%
BHREE 2T EE - 557
KERETAEENRE il
BE SERBEEABERBERL R
ERERBEER ARERFEK
BE 95 E PO AZ I U ER AR R - P AR
RIEEGHYIBZHI9FH - AEE
SERTIREESY -
KEBRFTAFEREBEETRHERAR
EERMERNBERKOERN - Z
TEFE 20 F N A B 4R A 38 -

BVEERBRAEAGTELEZR
BIERHBRRETRENHR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource license represents a right to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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AR¥FT
RMB’000
AR REHE Cost and carrying amount
M2018F 12 A31HK At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019
2019 12 A318 97,910

BEELANREAR  RKREBMNHH
REEFLERTHRRAEER K
KmEERMEBBEENAS S
BRI - EENE TR
BHRER BREMAITAARE
AEFLEENERTE - FBFAE
BT RSN

BAEREERBEXEBUEEIEER
SERELEN(REELE
2 DETRERR

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEnESEFIRE((ReRS
EAEMDIER 2017 FWERME
ErLHRERAR(HIIMEEA]
61)25% BB - 2019412 A 31
H AEEL2EMMNBEALNIR
enE  BAFGESRHEREES
MR E SR - FTERAENE
e ENAFHYEEENES
METEA - BBESFHNReRECK
LA2% (2018 : 2% )W) R Bi1E R K i
HHK - GEEEREZENBBAN
TEERER  WHHBBAMBITE
BFHREIERE -

FmBReELEMREEMREET
BRI m e REeEREE
SEREEIBRE -
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Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") in 2017. At
31 December 2019, the Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2078: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the
value-in-use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.
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Key assumptions and inputs used for the value-in-use calculation
are as follows:

2019 2018
ESHlES Gross profit margin 39% 38%
Fyig R & Average growth rate 8% 5%
RO RX Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
R x Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAEARANEETISH
EROEHETREENE  MEA
BT IR R AR - I SR B R 3R
TELBEMBBENSERR

BEaEERAReEEEM A
BBz BERIN RABEREY
TREBEMEMAIERTREE RE

BERZE

MR2019F 12 A31TH T EH B R A
2B A IR MIE 49 o

BEEAMBRARRAFERALE
HAREES -

BRI EMBER

R2017%F  ARRIF2ENMB R
AESE(FRE)EBREERAR(ES
BEDEEP—EMMNBEETLELN
BRR((EHF DI CEEHA(ESR
&l mMESRERMNE UL
25% Bk HE o AN EH A B FE
ERNEEE(EES]  BEZ
BHEEZ OEREBREZRESE
F([Rr s E ) =Rk B EATA
HE AT Bt =EAEH A
BH 25 % AN B B AT R R R
—IREF EFE RBEHKR &
B2 b aT B4R A BT S P IR A0 AR
EERECBRTIER 2021 F KA
TDﬁXO

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company’s
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are shown in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

In 2017, PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd. (“PICL"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA") with one of the shareholders (the
“Vendor") of HZPS to acquire 25% equity interest in HZPS from
the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also issued an authorisation
letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) to PICL under which PICL shall
be entitled irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid
25% equity interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a
period up to the completion date of the registration of the equity
transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the end of the reporting
period, the management estimated that the registration of the
Equity Transfer with the relevant government authority will be
completed not later than the end of 2021.
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BARWABHNBER(E) Significant judgements and assumptions (Continued)
BRPTEERSINEEEZ K& Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
EFAS0BMMBSI4RiE B Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
AEEFEMINE FUTLMNZHIE majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
ZE -mREMMNBEETLERE which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
BRZENMEBESAMMBEEA board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
LEZGUHESZHIRE - Ak management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
EEERAANEEHMME a4 and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.

BEEEGIE - Bt M BB
ERRAAEENMNE AR -

BEBERDHBRRESZ ZMEATN Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
Mg E R material non-controlling interest (“NCI")
TRINTAEEE —HEERIH The following table shows the information relating to KSF
PR M A E - RADE K @ Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary
ERAERRBIHNER - BB ER of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised
MERRALSQAIHEKHEI 22 financial information represents amounts before inter-company
o eliminations.
R12A31H

At 31 December

2019 2018
DY R Z BEAEL ] Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 27.09%
DEERER Z I ZRE LB Proportion of NCI's voting rights 33% 33%

ARE T AR TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE Current assets 12,260,392 9,895,072
FERBEE Non-current assets 17,824,052 18,243,241
mEBE Current liabilities (14,719,312) (13,193,273)
FEREEE Non-current liabilities (1,086,150) (1,511,249)
FEE Net assets 14,278,982 13,433,791
DRI R REEE Carrying amount of NC| 3,351,070 3,840,592
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Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

MgEER (&) material NCI (Continued)
H#ZE12831H
At 31 December
2019 2018
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
W= Revenue 35,599,621 35,312,931
RF S 5 A Profit for the year 1,339,022 797,875
Hih > mEE Other comprehensive loss (26,900) (119,422)
FHEWEBEE Total comprehensive income 1,312,122 678,453
DB R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 393,083 249,160
LHRREREE 2@ Total comprehensive income attributable to
NCI 385,795 216,805
BT D ERE R E IR Dividends paid to NCI (115,918) (127,518)
E(A)ReREFH Net cash flows from (used in):
LETES) Operating activities 5,258,978 4,060,590
L& RS Investing activities (1,086,765) 576,121
BEEE Financing activities (2,546,361) (2,522,008)
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FEERBEZHBARRREZEIES

B
(a)

MR2018F11H AEB 2 &
BEMBRARI(I2EHWB AR
FEFEZEMBAR(HRBA
al])) - EI B AR M IEIERAR
RTIEERRR ) st B &
NEMEBEA(XBER])
sl EAmE(ERmBZE])

MEARREMBAREZNK
EREVRRBES - EWE
B RIESEME KRIA
BRAI([EERAD - HWBA
AR AEEFEHERA]
MENRELEEREEERT
Hz - WiBEBHE A R100%
BE BEETWBRA KA
BATIERNIERDAMEARTT
XEPEBENMRRE - H
% MBRAAMEZEWERAF
KIEERBRERASBR T EERTA
M Bz AEBIFAEEE
NAEIEY50.01% HHER o

2019F 6 A+ BIEEARE -
2ENE AR T IEERRAR
BHEE RN B A F49.99% &
B RPBREBHARYE
35,978,0007T - |4 E -
M@ AR AR EER 2 E M
BAR - Al HRWERF
THIERSEE MR ELE S
B EEAEELHEREEE
T B4 AR ™ 40,180,000 7T -
HIHHEREZLANARE
4,202,000 7T Z FH a0 8% 4 B>
YRFEEIHHEEIA -
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Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

(a

In November 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
(the "Wholly-owned Subsidiary") and its non-wholly owned
subsidiary (the "Subsidiary"), entered into an agreement
in respect of the restructuring (the "“Restructuring”) of the
business of the Subsidiary (the “Restructuring Agreement”)
with the non-controlling shareholder of the Subsidiary (the
“Non-controlling Shareholder”).

The Subsidiary and its subsidiaries are engaged in provision
for logistics services. During the reporting period, pursuant
to the Restructuring Agreement, a new joint venture
company (the “JV") was established, through 100% equity
interests held by the Subsidiary, between the shareholders
of the Subsidiary in the same proportion of equity interests
as they held in the Subsidiary and took over the logistics
services related to the then non-food and beverage
industry customers from the Subsidiary and its subsidiaries.
Subsequently, the Subsidiary distributed the entire equity
interests in the JV to the Wholly-owned Subsidiary and the
Non-controlling Shareholder and the Group held ownership
interests in the JV as to 50.01%.

In June 2019, pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement,
the Wholly-owned Subsidiary acquired the 49.99%
equity interests in the Subsidiary held by the Non-
controlling Shareholder at a consideration of approximately
RMB35,978,000. Upon the completion of the Restructuring,
the Subsidiary became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. As a result, the NCI of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB40,180,000 in respective of the change
in ownership interest of the Subsidiary without change
in control together with the consideration received, the
difference of approximately RMB4,202,000 was recognised
in “Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve”
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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FREFACHBLAREERZERE
(&)

(a)

(&)

2B M E A F R IEE IR AR R
ETHEMNEENRNRS.01%
Mgz BREANARK
225,408,000T © E M & X
% AERRTBRASE
MEEBERA -BHEERER
AlEEEENREHARE
223,150,000 jT &2 8 N 4R & UK
PR EMFWAR o

M2019F 124 KEE
mERMESRmERSG—
LPEBRRNUNREREET
203,000,000 7C(# & N 4 A
R #1,417,123,000 70 ) Ye B BE
B8R IE R 5% BB 1T
A&7 - {5 7N & (B 7 B A 135 8K @
EROEBEERNLN72.91%
EMENTTIN% > Bt b
HREEZTATHARYE
633,383,000 * i 4 H kK
BmRbEBEALNTHNRS
HEZHNZEZEBANARK
783,740,000 7T 3 2 5T Al E2 2>
YR A B DFEEITERED
HEARR R A EZEA » 20194
128318 BaREE2HX
o

Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries (Continued)

(a

(Continued)

The Wholly-owned Subsidiary disposed the 50.01% equity
interests in the JV to the Non-controlling Shareholder at a
consideration of approximately RMB225,408,000. Upon the
completion of the Restructuring, the JV ceased to be a joint
venture of the Group. A gain on disposal of a joint venture
of approximately RMB223,150,000 was recorded in other
net income in the consolidated income statement.

In December 2019, the Group acquired additional
approximately 5% of the issued capital in KSF Beverage
from a non-controlling shareholder of KSF Beverage at
a cash consideration of US$203,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,417,123,000), resulting in an increase
in the Group's effective equity interests in KSF Beverage
from approximately 72.91% to approximately 77.91%.
As a result, the NCI was decreased by approximately
RMB633,383,000 and the difference of approximately
RMB783,740,000 between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests have decreased and the cash
consideration paid was recorded in “Transactions with
non-controlling interests reserve” within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The cash
consideration was fully settled as at 31 December 2019.
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2019 2018
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE LTS - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEIEW B A Share of post-acquisition results 73,028 61,216
B U BB 1% 1 B A% A Dividend received since acquisition (4,169) (4,169)
139,537 127,725
REE RIS R E) 2 RSN ¢ Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
ITBEE/
S
Principal rEEREZ
place of EREEERESLA
business HMBRA  Proportion of effective
YN and place of Registered ownership interest heldby FE#%
Name of associate incorporation capital the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
HRAENESHER LR HE US$16,000,000  38.96% 36.46%  HERHER®
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
LA EBE & QB Ty IR RS BRTE 4R The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
S BmES - the consolidated financial statements.
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ERIGFERBENR 2 HBER Financial information of individually immaterial associate
TRINTAE B IR EZRERY] 2@ The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
RIFEEREE N AN ST IREE K Group's share of results of an associate that are not individually
NEBBIEES - material and accounted for using the equity method.

M12A31H ®12A831H

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R AREE Carrying amount of interests 139,537 127,725

BZE12A31H #ZE12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REE I Group's share of:
NE i A Profit for the year 11,812 8,392
Hih 2 RS Other comprehensive income — —
EHER BT Total comprehensive income 11,812 8,392
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2019 2018

ARETT ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - FERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 452,832 452,832
JEMEW B R A Share of post-acquisition results 706,134 483,787
B U BB 1% 1 B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (269,901) (237,876)
889,065 698,743

REEREERRAZAMFIIMT

Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
TEEE/
b
Principal AEERELZ
place of ERBREERLA
operation/ FMBA  Proportion of effective
RENFEE Place of Registered ownership interestheld FE#£%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
BERYRmERLTA PE US$11,000000  31.82%  31.82% MIRKER%ERD
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FEEN RBAERAR i US$24,000,000 60% 60% MIKHENEER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of meat
products
LEBETERHERAA i US$28,120,000  38.96%  3646% HERHERE
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
ERAEUEHHBRAR(EREE)) " RMB150,000,000  6233%  5833% EUEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
("INPS") beverages
ETREAESERAT hE RMB400,000 25% 5%  Rit BERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

A EMABGERRNIRERETER
B PBRERT -

236 EEEZERERAF
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.
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EANABRRBR

AEEEB-HE2ENBRARRHAE
FEEMRMAERAR60%H K
R RAM REZZEWBRA
HE-—REEZBNGaRBGE 8
WEELREERTENHEBED
BREFBREE —BURE - At
AEERSEZERTHARGE
1B %A FL RIS -

AEEEA—HEERSEERERS
80% A= 2 EHEEMB LR
BMBABEEAE62.33% 2B E
BREED - AT REBEZIE2EHR
EMBAREEMIEER ZHNE
i HIREEBREEATED
RGeS ER B B 28k
BERARZESEHIAS0% MR RE
RR—B - BIBEELOERN  AEH
EEEEENSREENENTImL
HEF BEAPRHEEEAES L
BEEBEENT SRS A& ERE
BRIBZZIE2EHANBE RGN
HIREEDMB —BURTE  AEA
SERAENENEETUEREGE
FI R A R HIE -

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee’s return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BRFERSE DR ZHBER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures

TRINAAE B IREREZ BRI The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

ERGEATMETEEERES Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

B EREE - material and accounted for using the equity method.

Mm12H831H ®W12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EHREE Carrying amount of interests 889,065 698,743

HZ12H318 #H=12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFE Group's share of:
REZ W Profit for the year 222,347 63,188
Hh 2 Other comprehensive income — —
THENRETE Total comprehensive income 222,347 63,188
BEFERR AEEREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
BENFE] e material to the Group.
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2019 2018
it ARETT ARE T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BRFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—RERES — Investment funds (a) 1,134,392 447,496
— L RAEES — Equity securities, listed (b) 282 625
—EETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (0 18,867 —
1,153,541 448,121

5 FVOCI Designated FVOCI

—ELTRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (d) 115,614 114,018
1,269,155 562,139

KBiet - Note:

WEES BRNEC0ISFE - 1yfE])
BEezRE  DRAKIRFAES
WAERETEBLE BRI ER
WAERETEBEERKIARRE
BaES((EBREZES ) RMHE
R AR E AR RHERETA
Al LERERAEBEREESY
RAELERMEREN - REE
A BEESHANBERHERE
SIIBSEEBIRAME -

ETBRAEFN A EREREE
FRBFTNTISIMERETE -

ey

FETEARESZ AABETE

82
A RS 2 BEFEERETE ©

The investment funds represent investments in six (2018. four)
funds which were set up as limited partnerships in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey, a company with liability limited
by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and
two companies limited by shares incorporated in the PRC, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair values of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined with
reference to the net assets value of the underlying equity securities.

EEEER 239

2019 Annual Report ¥



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

izt : (&) Note: (Continued)
(d)  AEESAEE K E I Tk (d)  The Group irrevocably designated certain investments in unlisted
BHFIREETE R/IEEFVOC] equity securities as Designated FVOCI because these equity
RZERTBFZAREBR R securities represents that the Group intends to hold for long
BREBENNIRE - FFLEMRA term for strategic purposes. The fair values of the unlisted equity
BENAARBEEZASENREKL investments were mainly valued by the respective investment
BIEMESRMGE - AREZHA managers at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value
R #3,199,0007T & ;8 AR & E of RMB3,199,000 were credited to investment revaluation reserve
BERFE(TAIEL) - HEHEEES (non-recycling). The valuation techniques and significant inputs used
NAENMERERERE AR in the measurement of the fair values of the investment funds are
BRER A ISR M3 46 © set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
CRVEETIATIERSE The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
ARMTF T ARBFoT
RMB’000 RMB'000
eV us$ 541,312 561,514
AR RMB 727,561 —
Hity Others 282 625
1,269,155 562,139
72017928 K2019F 108 © & In February 2017 and October 2019, the Group entered into
EEHEFEF=FFEFITIMHE" agreements with a third party vendor pursuant to which the
B AEERENUNARE Group agreed to purchase a property and car parks located in
660,699,000 T AR S REEE Tianjin for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB660,699,000.
MRREHN—EDEREES - R In October 2019, the construction works of the property and car
2019F10R - W EREFEES 2 parks were completed and the Group obtained the control of the
BETREDTK MASBECDES property and car parks. The deposits paid of RMB629,570,000
MEZEHE  ROTHERRE - AR (2018: RMB375,964,000) was transferred to investment properties
¥ 629,570,000 7T(2018 F - AR upon the initial recognition. At the end of the reporting period,
375,964,0007T) 7 B E] & B R the remaining consideration payable of RMB31,129,000 included
ZEREMEME - REER - AR in other payables and will be paid upon the completion of the
#31,129,000 7L 09 T 2 B # 5% transfer of the legal title to the Group.
EXBEREAREE 2 FETHKE
XA e
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2019 2018
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRH K} Raw materials 1,077,257 1,018,807
8 m Work in progress 82,355 75,762
2K Finished goods 2,285,463 1,557,171
3,445,075 2,651,740
2019 2018
AR¥TT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE W BR =X Trade receivables
—%=% — From third parties 1,538,163 1,637,095
—ARRAFZEBREIES  — From companies controlled by
4L VNS a substantial shareholder of
the Company 40,230 12,302
—AEEEEN — From a company controlled by
KEERK B RSB the family members and relatives
7 —RIAa] of the Company'’s directors 1,684 —
- WNE] — From an associate 2,178 3,179
= E=WNC] — From joint ventures 87,270 62,895
1,669,525 1,715,471

AEBEZHERNBDREEIYER -
HRTHHEZEEHEEZR30E90
K o

BRAEBRRCNGR BIREE) N4
BAREZAHREZIRE DI

The majority of the Group's sales are cash-on-delivery. The

remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from

30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),

based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

RIOR follows:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90Xk 0 - 90 days 1,568,425 1,584,771
90 KA+ Over 90 days 101,100 130,700
1,669,525 1,715,471
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MR AR EZAARKIIE -

FRAEEREEREERRNE

PN AR B B B3R RE 45 -

statements.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 45 to the consolidated financial

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

2019 2018
baE ARETFT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 124,283 115,440
ENEGES Prepayments for purchase of equipment 22,008 8,418
TETHEER Prepaid value-added taxes 773,728 799,895
R EERY Prepaid operating expenses 1,058,752 1,059,726
T FA AR ERE I Current portion of prepaid lease
payments 17 — 87,290
e E Loan receivables 27(a) 280,000 213,000
FEW T & R B K Other receivables from sales
of equipment 27(b) 149,842 —
"e Deposits 114,490 123,395
il Others 329,366 262,525
2,852,469 2,669,689
27(a) EWER 27(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHMER
AERTEATEMBEER
REOHHEIEEERR X
Ho WERWERAEERR
AR —FRNEEENFEER
5.05% £ 6.15% (20718 % :
501%%26.15%)ME °

ARREEEHUZETHR
REBRT _EARZHEK
O tFEEREEEBZQR

EREEBREREERRN -

27(b) B HER B

FEd h & R BRI
REOEMEYK - L FEH
REEHF  TEMERARE
SKEFEE -
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Loan receivables represent the advances made by

subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials

suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their

operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable

within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and
bear interest ranging from 5.05% to 6.15% (2018. from

5.01% to 6.15%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the

next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting

period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

27(b) Other receivables from sales of equipment

Other receivables from sales of equipment arose from the

sales of machineries and equipment which are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.



LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018

ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

R EAE BT K Long-term time deposits 725,000 —
RITHBR LIRS Bank balances and cash 17,397,557 13,807,963
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 32,830 32,458
RITEREEEER Total cash at bank and on hand 18,155,387 13,840,421

RHTHEHARA3IF » WKEHE
BIEEFRFAREDRFE  FEX
5A3.70% E4.10% 24 -

RITERETER - FREHRLSSE
B—RIRTREHRE (BRERTTA
HREZ)NRITREZER®D -

REEREXRBOME - RITERX
kR BB EEY 2 HFROT

The long-term time deposits are made for periods of three years
and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest rate
ranging from 3.70% to 4.10% per annum.

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
bills, granted to the Group by banks.

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:

2019 2018

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RITEREES Cash at bank and on hand 18,155,387 13,840,421
B REE AR Less: long-term time deposits (725,000) —
ReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17,430,387 13,840,421

ST RI S A H AT 5 H 5

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

g : currencies:
2019 2018
ARET T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 17,818,874 13,438,077
ETT us$ 293,974 367,457
BT EUR 761 2,108
et NTD 25,309 23,562
H Others 16,469 9,217
18,155,387 13,840,421

BRAAKEZIVERR KEERRR
ERERE M IEIRARM 45 it -

Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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2019 2018
RER RER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

vt € FEn  AREFx Rir%A AT ARETT

No. of shares Usso0 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 AMB 000

R Authorised:
50005 Tz EEE  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
REY At the beginning of the year 5,617,968,360 28,091 235,204 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme
Epdivl 5,318,000 pL] 197 4,739,000 24 151
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,623,786,360 28,120 235401 5,617,968,360 28,091 235,204

PR R - 5,818,000 8 % & 17
& LA SR B8 KA A 5,818,000 T i A%
- BRERARY46,101,000
JC - Heh ARM 197,000 TEF A B 2
FTRR A - 45 88 A R & 45,904,000
T ABRMDGEER - 340 AR
14,080,000 THE R EFEERE
BRDBEER ZERERSHTEE
RERMNZEBRSEZ -

During the year, 5,818,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 5,818,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB46,101,000, of which RMB197,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB45,904,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB14,080,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.

2019 2018

AR¥FTT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG At beginning of the year 664,400 611,736
RIEEE IR £13877 Z %D  Shares issued under share option scheme 59,984 52,664
REER At the end of the reporting period 724,384 664,400

BERESESRAEN - ERFNE
F%ﬁhﬁ%’T%EMﬁ%TE
BT EEITROEMEN
EitaE ﬂL%iﬂXfﬂ/ﬁn{ﬁﬁg

BhaBERZERERERNSHS
NENRZITE e

E??E\’ATEE%EEZ’I%%T QN

TZH&T&??H&FT%&"M’E%H&%*
HEARR DIKRRAINBENEE
R %%WEP BB 2 (BT o
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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E0Y REER

e 5 BEE

X7 (Ruggm)

Bin Transactions SME - hvestment  WEEM
BOHE ERERE  withnon-  BEEE  revaluation BEE BhREEE
Capital ~ Remeasur-  controling  Exchange reserve Property  —MEE  Sharebased  (REEF

redemption ement interests  translation (non- revaluation General payment Retained 28
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

NEETR  ARKTT  ARETR  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 ANB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000

RWBE1A1E At 1 January 2018 400 89 (987,233) (171879 10458 9,869 4,159,527 o817 1415942 17,565,290

TERER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 2463301 2463321

Et2ENE(FR)SE  Other comprehensive
(loss) income
AERAETZEE  Remeasurement of defined

benefits obligations - (37,562) - - - - - - - (37,562)
KENOULAE Fair value changes in Designated
Va Fvocl - - - - (16,265) - - — - (16,265)
EXER Exchange difference on
consolidation — — - (348,483) — — - — — (348,483)
ERIHEETAVOCE  Redassification adjustment
ERERE relating to Designated FVOCI
disposed of during the year - - - - (2397) - - - 2,397 -
EM2E(BE)RBEE  Total other comprehensive (loss)
income - (37,562) - (348,483) (18,662) - - - 2,397 (402,310)
KER2E(ER) Total comprehensive (loss)
W% income for the year - (37,562) - (348,483) (18,662) - - - 2465718 2,061,011
HALNARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and dlstribution
EREEROIHZIE  Fouity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - 32,79 - 32,79
IRIEBRIETEETZRG  Shares issued under share option
scheme - — — - - — - (13,025) - (13,025)
BIRERT Shares option lapsed - - - - - - — (25,496) 254% -
BitEI7E 2017 final dividend
RERE approved - - - - - - - - (909,539) (909,539)
SRARBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 142,836 - (142,836) -
- - - - - - 142,836 (5722) (1,026,879) (889,765)
BEEIRY Changes in onmership iterests
EERYRIED Changes in ownership interests in
HEARRERES asubsidiary without change in
control - - 17336 - - - - - — 17336
HANARRZRAAE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - 17336 - - - 142,836 (5722) (1,026,879) (872,429
R2018%12531R At 31 December 2018 400 (37473) (969,897) (520,362) (8,204) 9,869 4,302,363 422,395 15,554,781 18,753,872
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0% REEf

BRER Bk

ZHRE (FA/EE)

Bt Transactions M Investment  MIEEf
BEGE EfEEHRE  withnon-  BERE  revaluation BRE BRERE
Capital  Remeasur- controlling  Exchange reserve  Property  —MRE Sharebased  REER

redemption ement interests translation (non-  revaluation General payment Retained Eet
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

ARBTL  AREFZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARRFA ARETT  ARETT ARRTA ARRTL ARETR
RMBO0  RMBYU0O  RMBUO)  RMBUM0  RMBYU0O  RMBUG)  RMBUW0  RMBYU00  RMBUR  RMBO0O

R019F1518 At 1 January 2019 400 (37413) (969,897) (520,362) (8,204) 9,869 4,302,363 42395 15554781 18753872

REEER Profitfor the year = = = = = = = = 3,330,981 3,330,981

Et2ERE(BB)RE  Other comprehensive
(loss) income
RERAETZEE  Remeasurement of defined

(Hi#35) benefits obligations ote 35) = (65,490) = = = = = = = (65,490)
EENOCIARE Fair value changes in Designated
b 4l ) FVOCI tote 23(2) - - - - 3,199 - - - = 3,199
EXEE Exchange difference on
consolidation = = = (132,950) = = = - - (132,950)

b 2H (B18)WEAE  Total other comprehensive (loss)

income - (65,490) - (132,950) 3199 - - - - (195,241)
FEERE(ER) Total comprehensive (loss)
g 2] income for the year = (65,490) = (132,950) 3,199 = = — 3330981 3,135,740
ARDARFLZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REESE Contributions and dlstribution
BREERNZAZIE  Fouity setled share-
based transactions - - - - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
REBRETEETZ  Sharesissued under
R ) share option scheme (Note 29) = = = = = = = (14,080) = (14,080)
BN Shares option lapsed = = = = = = = (40,574) 40,574 =
BHERRE 2018 2018 final and special dividend
REREAREWHE12)  approved and paid (Note 12) = = = = = = = — (2483321)  (2463321)
ERERBER Transfer from retained profits = = = = = — 359,976 — (359,976) —
- - - - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2782,13) (2,452,897
FEE2EY Changes in onnership iterests
BN EHIEY Changes in ownership interests
HEARERES in subsidiaries without change
(Wi 20) in control (Note 20) = = (817,926) = = = = = = (817,926)

ARDRAREZRSHEE  Total transactions with owners of

the Company = - ) = = — g GO D) (27083)
HO9E1A3NE A3 December 2019 0 02963 (1883 (653312) (5,005) 9869 4G 305 16103039 18618789
Ht2E(BE)KESHEKIER T No income tax effect arose from each component of other
20184 2019 98 E 5 & comprehensive (loss) income in 2018 and 2019.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI since the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
as set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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—RFRE General reserve

RIERBAEEG - K ERF In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
B —EPPORERBEENGZR subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
TEEHROGRERTBEMEL amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
AIZETERBAZ)10% 2 5K IE (as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
T —MREE W RREECE PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
HEA@APEMNBRAFEMREZ regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
50% K+ fZ A B A A BEE of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
o subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.
BRERE Share-based payment reserve
BRERBREETAEEEER Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
MARTEBRENKEBSRZA date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
REZES  WREGERFHE Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
ARGt B ERRE 2 N REE - 7F18 75 adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
TR G B mERMIEE 3(U) © consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 FEEMRAEE (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

B BB OfE B B BR R 5T & The Company’s share option scheme (the “2008 Share

([2008 F&HEl ) ZARREE Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution

M 2008F3H20H BB - Z passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme

20085t El 2 BE®y ek Eh 2 E is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise

(FEARAN T ) I fE SR P B 1 A< and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants

SEELMER © %2008 5 &l (as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The

2019 F£3H19HFE R F 2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and

BR 7 R TR HARR D AT 1T the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end

o of the respective exercisable period.

EEGARAZEERTUATA The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option

TREARHE - to:

(i)  ARESEAMRMNERF (i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
REME2BEBES - officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
TBRAESERES :

(i) AR FSHEAEMNE R (i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
AR E E(BIEIERR independent non-executive directors) of the Company
TEERBIIERTE or any of its subsidiaries; and
B2): Rk

(i) ARFHEFMAMERF (i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
B iE R - SEE - H agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

fER  BERARE -

248 EEEZRRERAF
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



(a)

ri'!
W

2008 FEE MR AERT 8l (&)

B 4 N A IR S B E - 522008
T8I R A AR R 2 H AR
B EIMBE T 2ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TS BB A A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H(A12008
FI3IA20B ) 2B BITRHOK
10% °

REER ERTHEEBRE
B LRER#E B 143,726,500
% (20184 : 143,726,500
B+ BB A RIRERMA AR
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(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2018 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2018: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders" approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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(a) 2008 FEEMEE(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
#2008 BEREETEIN - BEET Details of share options granted by the Company to
KAl REMBARI < EE R the employees and directors of the Company and its
EFEBEREFB LN 2019F subsidiaries pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme
&2018F 12 A3THEERNZ and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
RITEREARENT - 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
B®¥
BREHE
Number of  RITHENBEREZE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2019 2018 HK$
200843 H20H 11,760,000 _ — 9.28 2013%F3AH21H=ZE
20 March 2008 201843 A20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

200944 A 22 H 26,688,000 — 5,244,000 938 20145 4H23AZ%
22 April 2009 201954 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
201064 A1H 15,044,000 8,637,000 9,328,000 18.57 20154 A1 AZE
1 April 2010 202063 H31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

20114 A12H 17,702,000 10,292,000 11,428,000 19.96 2016547 12H=
12 April 2011 2021 4H118

12 April 2016 to

11 April 2021
2012F 4 A26 H 9,700,000 6,666,000 7,236,000 2054 2017F4H26H0%
26 April 2012 2022F 4 A25H

26 April 2017 to

25 April 2022
20135 A 27 H 11,492,000 8,190,000 8,802,000 20.16 2018F5H27AZE
27 May 2013 202345 A 26 H

27 May 2018 to

26 May 2023
2014 4 17 H 12,718,500 9,455,000 11,212,000 2238 2019F4H178%
17 April 2014 202454 H16H

17 April 2019 to

16 April 2024
20156 A5H 17,054,000 14,692,000 14,981,000 16.22 20206 H5H =
5 June 2015 20256 A4HR

5 June 2020 to

4 June 2025
2016%F7 348 10,148,000 8,392,000 9,023,000 754 2021 7H48%
4 July 2016 20267 A3AR

4 July 2021 to

3 July 2026
201764 A21H 11,420,000 10,770,000 10,770,000 1020 20224 A21H=
21 April 2017 202744 H20H

21 April 2022 to

20 April 2027
A% 143,726,500 77,094,000 88,024,000
Total
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) 2008 FEEMEFTEI(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
1E 2008 5T &I M ARTTE 2 FE AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EEREMEFHTERE L # weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
wmr Option Schemes are as follows:
2019 2018
InREFES NS
TEE 17128
Weighted Weighted
average BREZE average FEAREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At beginning of the year 16.45 88,024 16.20 96,885
RERTITEE Exercised during the year 9.21 (5,818) 10.26 (4,739)
R AE I Forfeited during the year 15.54 (436) 19.09 (279)
RERBUY, %k Cancelled / lapsed during
the year 20.78 (4,676) 17.42 (3,843)
REER At the end of the reporting
period 16.74 77,094 16.45 88,024

RITER FRITENBERERN
MEFE G E A12.208 L2018
F 15987 ) EEEHRA -
EREGEBRENERERSRE
13,161,000(2018 % : 5,066,000) °

20194128318 MARTHE
RENMEFTABRTAELOEAF4.05
F(2018F 4.71F) - WEEER -
RT3 & M 4 19 AR BUE 52,728,000
(20184F : 50,521,000) - 1 # &
B+ AI1T{E & B8 AR 4 A AN F 19 1T
& /19.32%8 Jt(20184F : 18.49
JBEIT) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$12.20
(2018: HK$15.98). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 13,161,000 (2078:
5,066,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.05 years
(2018: 4.71 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 52,728,000 (2078:
50,521,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$19.32 (2018: HK$18.49).
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(b)

2018 FREIRBEST &

RNRAIREER2018F48
26 HERITHREFRI RS LB
B AT AR REET S (12018 5T
2] FHHEMBHREE0

]

ESEEUREEERTUTA
TR

(i) ARRRIEEAHBER

CIPA=SCEN: 1 E 1=
8 THRABHSRA
8 (BREAUTES  3F
WITESE B IFNTE
g R

\

\

(i) ARERKEEFAMBEL
AIRERHEER - TP
A - IR R EERA -

PR N R RR AL & - 220185
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FTEIRE T CERES R 2R
MHEE TS BAAR T RN
tErElE B(B120184F 4 A 26
H)Z2BETRMAI10% o B
HER EBERETHEERES
B 48 FE I 4 /48,104,000 % -
RN N R ER AN Lt B3 AR 3R #%
F 20185818 A 2 EHITRMNDH
0.14% o

BHRLMEEZ 201851 &I E
ERENES TIZANRES
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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(b) 2018 FEEREEI(E) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

TEEHEFTENEFRE
miTEE KA DR () R £
P AE R T AR B P E A
B (DO EBRERT B
51 & % A R B X FT Y gL
mE: Ri)kOHOEES Z

REEE-

BERENTESHESER
E o MBREZITERIZR
BTERZ10F - BEESRE
THIFREE - FHBRESE
WETF 2 HBREZRBE
BERE¥ 1T - B—BRER
THRBEREE LBARF K
EERRER] -

£20185TEIRNE R TARF R
HMBRARIZEEREEZE
P& 4 515 KA 2019 4F 522018
FI1I2ANBFEERNZ RITHE

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are

HIERENT - as follows:
RTBREHE
Number of RITFENBRESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2019 2018 HK$

2018F4H27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20219F4H30H=E

27 April 2018 2028%4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028

2018F4H27H 5,626,000 3,785,000 5,590,000 16.18 2021F4H30H=

27 April 2018 20244 H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024

as 8,104,000 6,263,000 8,068,000

Total
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(b) 2018 FEERRAECHEI (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
RHE 2018 5T &M ARTTIE 2 B Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EEREMEFHTEREL# weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
s Option Scheme are as follows:
2019 2018
InREF NS
TEE TEME
Weighted Weighted
average HBREHA average HEARIEENE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 8,068 — —
REARAFL Granted during the year — — 16.18 8,104
RERNITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERE I Forfeited during the year — 16.18 (36)
MEREUY, 43 Cancelled / lapsed during
the year 16.18 (1,805) — —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 8,068
RFERLEERIEREE RT None of the options are vested and exercised during the
i o year.
M2019F 124318 @ K The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a
TEERENINETFART S weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.90 years
#)H) 5 5.904 (2018 4F < 6.55 (2018: 6.55 years). At the end of the reporting period, none
F) o NEER - R BIERRER of the options are exercisable.
178 -
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2018 FEEE R AERTBI ()

BRERTEBZANBETL
ERRZEFRMBNE - A=
BABRETEEAETE - B
SEFE R R ERRNRE M
KAGFEREAZRS - ARE
ZEATEREBEERTHETE -
HEBEREAAERERACE
BT

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at
the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-
based arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
the limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model
are as follows:

B¥HZ il =1
DR LG
sk/En SR/Br  OHEER SEARER
Fairvalue Sharepric ®K /B ZH% BHREE
at grant at grant Exercise  Risk-free ~ BHKIE FEHTHEH  Expected
RTAH date date price interest Expected Expected dividend
Grant date HK$/share  HKS$/share  HKS$/share rate volatility life yield
20184 A27H 4.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 106 2.3%
27 April 2018 10 years
20184 A27H 3.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 6F 2.3%
27 April 2018 6 years

TR B A < — 4 MO P
DA R B LR IE
SEL TS NN T LEL
BB R RE B E R b
ox

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
last one year of share option granted. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
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2019 2018
AR FTT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
tHEE-ENHERE  Financial liabilities - contingent
consideration payable 9,674 9,862

ZEEIERENMNE B4R
EEMSIARE  FEHNE
EHBMEMT20- BB
BIORBEEBRAPRENE
ERFHARAN B B A 208 AT
FRENE—TFDETH - &
NEREBEZARBEBARE
9,674,000 C(2018%F : A K
#9,862,000T ) - TEET K
EEETK BRI RE R
RIZFVPLETEN S RIBEZIE
RENEB D (20184F : FE B ES

) o

=
=

D

FR - HEREBEZAREE
Ik 5 B AR 188,000 L2 &f
AIBR(2018F « [FIEAN R
4,604,0007T) °
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The amount represents the contingent consideration payable
arose from the acquisition of HZPS as detailed in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements which was determined
based on a certain portion of projected net profits of HZPS
for specified period as defined in the SPA. The fair value of
the contingent consideration payable was RMB9,674,000
(2018: RMB9,862,000), which was expected to be due on
after the completion date of the registration of the Equity
Transfer and recorded in the non-current portion (2078:
non-current portion) of financial liabilities at FVPL.

During the year, gain on change in fair value of the
contingent consideration of RMB188,000 (2078 loss of
RMBA4,604,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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2019 2018
AR¥TFTT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITEK Bank loans:
1 17 Secured 532,528 650,525
IR Unsecured 11,841,931 10,183,983
12,374,459 10,834,508
BERE R BRI The maturity of the interest-bearing
HEZ EIHA DT borrowings and analysis of the amount
(I 72 B AT 4 22 K By due based on scheduled payment dates
EEBIOZE) set out in the loan agreements
(ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:
1FER Within one year 7,454,381 6,461,785
F29F In the second year 2,104,687 2,726,578
FIFEFSF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BREER2F) 2,509,470 1,250,729
HFELALE Over five years 305,921 395,416
12,374,459 10,834,508
WoEARBABES Y Portion classified as current liabilities (7,454,381) (6,461,785)
EREE D Non-current portion 4,920,078 4,372,723
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B EEEH AR 1,880,000,000 Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,880,000,000 (20718
TL(20184F « A FE #1,294,898,000 RMB1,294,898,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
T)BE—REERRGE TEEAR lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
MERBEIAAN DR+ A or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
BAHNBERT  ERKBERE- are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
BEEEUTEBAEEASTFEL not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
BEFEZREE HBEEBENTCDHE repayment.

RRBAILE -

hnE T F R R /B3.71% (2018 The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
F:375%) - bearing borrowings is 3.71% (2018: 3.75%) per annum.
BEEEEREHEKATR - Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
HRITEBRERTITNERY B E The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
KEUREME ME BER properties, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
HERTREEE 28D 8 with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,122,000,000,
B # A R %1,122,000,0007T RMB592,584,000 and RMB1,505,130,000 (2018: RMB1, 119,000,000,
A R #592,584,0000t & A R RMB625,770,000 and RMB1,549,398,000 respectively) respectively.
#1,505,130,0007t(2018 : % The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and certain of the
Bl B A K #1,119,000,0007T * unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee
A K& #625,770,000T &k A & arrangements amongst the Group's entities.

1,549,398,0007T ) » IR IR 1T &
A R IR 1T (5 R h
ZEAAEEER ZIXERLTHER

e
Z= o
==}

PRMENBEEERLHR - — & Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
WITEEEREAEBERETHRSE covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
BIFEAR L 3 o INRAREEFHE R P position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
S CEAMREBEREKEE financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
B o the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2078: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2019 2018
ARETFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

[&] 7E A1) & At fixed rates 1,732,811 2,568,939
FENF & At floating rates 10,641,648 8,265,569
12,374,459 10,834,508

BRIEEUATIEESIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

2019 2018

ARETT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 2,915,340 3,013,652
E us$ 9,459,119 7,820,856
12,374,459 10,834,508

BEHEEBEINERR M AR E RS E
— B RERE B RERMFE4S
EES I

ﬁE{I\TA—f%

AEEBRETE  EEREERE
E2Mo5lmtE BERAES
o707 BT A e S L RET & o B
HASEFEAMEEFERES
HEBMZETAOELRHERK - K
SEBN LA EAOERN - T
BEEXNTE FELRAERET
RIRE R ER 2BH) o

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly

contributions described above.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

259



75 ER R MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REBATE

rEENTAMBEREEEBRHAT
BAFE - AEBERERBEME
EIEEWAEFRAERNE 2 H
R R AREBBHMBEEE
BEEBEXMZE  REBEAAFAR
BT BN A REEZ REREF
EABRLESRSE THEMREAQR
A - BT E R AE B RBFH
REiE6EAARNTHEHERER - K
EEHATRERMFENEARHE
VIEEMEEEEERAE N AT
([EHBEEVDTE - B 2B
Bl hRBENEERNN2019F
12 A 31 BUATEET BALAA AN A
1 °

AEEBHERERANGFEMELELZ
BEWFEALRA PR KR ZFR

HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the
full cost of all the plan benefits. During the year, the Group has
mutually agreed with all eligible employees that the defined
benefit obligation originally borne by the Company and certain
overseas subsidiaries would be borne by certain PRC subsidiaries
thereafter. The benefits are calculated based on the length of
service and average monthly salary for the final six months of
employment. The Group’s obligation in respect of the defined
benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary, Messrs. Willis
Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers Watson”). The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis Towers Watson
as at 31 December 2019 using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

NMEBEZZHHNT defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2019 2018
ARETFT ABBFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 115,436 101,226
REE RIS A Current service cost 10,626 6,545
FLE A Interest expense 2,998 3,807
13,624 10,352
Bi4E Remeasurements:
MBREFAEREE S Actuarial loss arising from changes in
BEEE financial assumptions 2,679 3,643
KRRAREE Actuarial loss arising from experience
BEEE adjustments 72,198 36,360
74,877 40,003
EENEER Benefit payment (46,871) (34,660)
PE = %H Exchange differences = (1,485)
(46,871) (36,145)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 157,066 115,436
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REBFGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEAEENEERR/ The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2019 2018
% %
PrIRE Discount rate 2.80 3.10
T8 AR B - Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00
REER  SBEXERERRENE The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable

=1 TER
B gEeER TR E T8

possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
REBANELE REBMELE
Mt VEML
Change in Change in
R defined  REME/L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Frif Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.81%/ +/-0.5% -2.06%/
+2.98% +2.18%
T8 AR %7 B - 1@ Expected rate of salary +/-0.5% +3.13%/ +-0.5% +2.43%/
increases -2.98% -2.31%

tRBEESHERESEBEER
RNEEAIEEPRE  MEMR
RFRFAE - AIEERKR DA AL
BRI PR M - LR EY
AR ESEA - FBEHERA R
RAZRAREERERANIETLHR
BERAENE HIRE KA B ER
B AER) - BB HIENE
EBRRBLUEARNEEANE RATF
EV R E DA

AERAMNETHMEFHHRR
5.90F (20184 : 4.304) »

B It &
260 =

AEl aEEERERNE
BIRAEH) o

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 5.90 years (2018: 4.30 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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REBNE (&)

ARAERMABRERFAIE
EARETEIMNESTHERT
EHMHEZ A ER - B RITRME
RN IEA BB ST

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2019 2018
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FR Within 1 year 16,102 37,609
BB FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 27,123 6,970
HBE3FERSFNR More than 2 years but within 5 years 52,582 36,017
HBiE 5 F Over 5 years 154,762 95,593
250,569 176,189

AEBFELEHAREZINT

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

Htat 2019 2018

Note ARETTT ABREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

e =) At beginning of the year 538,420 762,016

HEMB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 43 154 —
WEBARFIESE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions of

BT earnings by subsidiaries (220,073) (277,879)

FFALZRAEWERA  Charge to consolidated income statement 11 465,750 54,283

R&EER At end of the reporting period 784,251 538,420
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REEH EHRRZELCHEEE
JNE=KE N

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

2019 2018
BE afE BE =L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MERBITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance = (594,330) — (611,456)
WERTBINE Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
DAEFE Fair value adjustment on:
—RAEEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - BELERE property, plant and
equipment = (61,268) — (68,083)
—-EBREE — Intangible asset — (40,975) — (42,275)
—REUEHE — Investment properties — (21,242) — (20,323)
ﬁﬁﬁiﬂé Impairment losses 77,033 — 147,594 —
REGHREY Uninvoiced accrual
%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ 226,134 — 176,527 —
HEME - HER Unrealised profit on property,
B RERFE plant and equipment 65,295 — 71,824 —
MEBARARDERNE  Withholding tax on undistributed
BRI earnings of subsidiaries — (440,200) — (176,237)
HIEE Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Htth Others 8,875 (33,407) 3,483 (49,308)
EEHBEEE(EMRE) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 407,171 (1,191,422) 429,262 (967,682)

BIBECEMGRE  IEKREER
RPEMIINEREDEFESRSY
B B BIE R 10% M) Fi & B IR
Bio 5% EN200841 81 H#EAE
B WA 2007F12A31 8% 1A
ZF A S EFDE o WP B BT R
ZHNE IR A PR B SR oMb (& B
RN ZEE - ERABERE -

AR S [ B9 1 B B 8 B B 58 AR AR R

B10% - ARERBEREELQAE

HAZE m] 5 2R oh 0 0% A] (R o3 BC )
Mt ELERIARE -

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 10%.
Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the undistributed
earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

263



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

fth 5 82 T F A OB T OF A The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
HONERNEEZAORARE earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
1,728,487,000 T(20184%F : A K RMB1,728,487,000 (2018: RMB1,648,467,000) which would
#1,648,467,000T ) - & H 9 become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the
HABMIIE EFERABER AL directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are
ZERTEFFNBEABIESEERF required for financing the continuing operations of these entities
LEBE WA RERTES and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.
B - B 3F MR RE AN E R 4R o Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation have
been made.
REEHR AEEEHEARE Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
111,128,000 0(20184%F : A K ¥ (2018: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
111,128,000 ) Bi i B HER BIE reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
ERIEE E o M E B R BEEH years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
HZEEBEELARITAXRAFRZ future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
Mz REER - RERET deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are
MIBEEHEBEIMFEHIT as follows:
2019 2018
BRI ARETFT ARBFIT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 — 522,641
2020 330,066 649,567
2021 431,724 573,409
2022 321,339 575,550
2023 238,015 460,878
2024 420,219 —
1,741,363 2,782,045
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2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE 1 BR X Trade payables
$£=h To third parties 6,258,861 5,626,698
R AT To related parties
—ARRAIZEE — A group of companies controlled by
SENZEI=PSE = the family members and relatives of
ZEHE—EAF] the Company'’s directors 1,402,880 —
—ARRRIZEEREHRE - Agroup of companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 —4E 1A the Company’s directors and their
dependents — 1,092,308
VNI == — Companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 A A the Company'’s directors — 226,199
i NE| To an associate 10,527 —
&N To joint ventures 5,767 8,756
7,678,035 6,953,961

ERNE=T BREBAL K

oy
RN

AMRARERAZENERSER
- 2B NMA30E 0 KERR -

period of 30 to 90 days.

The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
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ENRANEERRERERREL

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

R DITAT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90H 0 -90 days 6,789,795 6,075,099
90 HEA E Over 90 days 888,240 878,862
7,678,035 6,953,961

ERRFATIEESIE

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
AR#¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ RMB 7,670,078 6,949,212
e us$ 7,783 4,513
Hit Others 174 236
7,678,035 6,953,961
2019 2018
ARH¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AU 5 Deposits received in advance 2,649,443 1,751,395
B EERESEAR Accruals for transportation, promoting and
2 TE1R advertising expenses 4,869,538 3,915,327
THRERREMGEER  Accruals for administrative expenses and other
ZTER operating expenses 667,631 496,952
BRI TEMENE Salaries and welfare payables 1,155,403 988,455
FET 3R A SR Payables for purchase of equipment 104,831 64,553
FEAS H A TR IR Other tax payables 708,616 738,043
JEA D BRI SRR F Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 33,678 25,859
JERTAIE, Interest payable 43,383 48,744
BAKREMRE Consideration payable for acquisition of
FERTEIE investment properties 31,129 —
Hity Others 497,798 493,668
10,761,450 8,522,996
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2019 2018
AR¥FT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB B A Profit before taxation 5,411,596 3,979,334
FEER Interest expenses 413,652 421,682
B A Interest income (541,222) (348,388)
e Depreciation 3,251,365 3,210,324
WFVPLETEMEBEEZ  Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL
UL @N (3,253) (6,500)
T HE AR AR B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments — 103,693
B EE B Amortisation of intangible assets 6,406 9,490
HEWE  WENERER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
ERAREEZBE equipment and right-of-use assets 92,900 86,607
YEE - R RERIERE  Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment 152,050 625,846
BAREEYEREREEZER Change in fair value of financial liabilities at
RIENTHEE /&ﬁfﬁz FVPL, net
HE) (188) (40,115)
KEMEENEZEE Change in fair value of investment properties (3,674) (13,000)
LFVPLETEM S REE Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
NREZEE (20,774) 49,675
HEB 2 Rz zm Gain on disposal of an associate (131,053) —
HEAEEAR S Gain on disposal of a joint venture (223,150) —
HERBA 72%1@ Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (628,889) (387,844)
BERNAIMEER Gain on deregistration of associates and
FEEE 2z Was joint ventures — (436)
FEMME & N E) KA E /AR Share of results of an associate and
%Zi joint ventures (234,159) (71,580)
[EREE) 75 Effect on exchange rate changes (68,101) (23,842)
i §|J LM%&%%HXT% Recognition of equity-settled share-based
A 2 FIA payment 24,504 32,799
FE 28 Increase in inventories (793,335) (287,129)
JE AR TR 2 R > (3E0) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 45,946 (94,731)
BMFREREMEUTIE  Increase in prepayments and other receivables
Z 3B (210,977) (380,308)
FET BR 3R 2 38 00 Increase in trade payables 724,074 380,486
Hih et B KRB UWIFSE  Increase in other payables and deposits
Z 3B received 2,229,634 1,331,135
B P IR RIE 2 AN Increase in advance payments from customers 131,153 394,192
IEHFKE TRAME(MIRE 2 Decrease in present value of
RS unfunded employee benefit obligations (33,247) (24,307)
RELEFABRE Cash generated from operations 9,591,258 8,947,083
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39(a) MEEBELNABEHER

FRELARE RS BEED
MBERD  BERS RIS
2D WEFDELNAM
BREREARKRLTE -

activities

39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEREEFERSRERT will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
DERMEETHEENRER cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
E.
D
% R AR R
(Hat 38)
Dividend
HEas payable
(Bfst16) RITER to non-
Lease (Kfi#34)  controlling
liabilities  Banks loans interests Mt
(Note 16) (Note 34) (Note 38) Total
AREFT ANRETT AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019F181A At 1 January 2019 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367
RMBAVBRE Upon adoption of HKFRS 16
HERIZE 1657 508,591 — — 508,591
FRE Net cash flows
(B2 ), (), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (iii)) (205,878) 1,426,712 (115,827) 1,105,007
B#g Other changes
BMER B Amortised interest expenses 24,625 — — 24,625
g New leases 212,480 — — 212,480
HEBII < FE Effect on lease modification (52,262) — — (52,262)
B E A Dividend declared = = 123,646 123,646
b HER Exchange realignment — 113,239 — 113,239
720195128318 At 31 December 2019 487,556 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
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39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

JE D8

gl

(it 38)

Dividend

BEFRE payable

(Wit 34) RITER to non-

Unsecured (Ktit34)  controlling
notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 38) Total
ARETFIT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7A2018F181H At 1 January 2018 1,193,724 13,190,549 — 14,384,273
FRER Net cash flows (1,206,628)  (2,780,467) (141,619)  (4,128,714)

Bt 25 Other changes:

BIER B Amortised interest expenses 1,756 — — 1,756
B EMRA Dividend declared — — 167,478 167,478
b 3 ZE 5 Exchange realignment 11,148 424,426 — 435,574
742018512 A31H At 31 December 2018 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367

() HEHEMNIFHEEIREEFA
THHEEEE A RFEF

RITERPAERIA - RITRHE
B8RS R A5 B S
RFREE  BREERARE
RIRITEFEFRERE ©

(i)

%

N D BERROBRENFRE
B F AN D BUBCRE IR

B o
N

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the

payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.

The net cash flows from bank loans make up the net

amount of proceeds from bank borrowings, repayments

of bank and other borrowings and net movement of other

short-term borrowings.

The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling

interests during the year.
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BRARGERE HMEMIRE 2R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SNBEEAIN LR AEEBEAE the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
BEATETZEARZME It following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERXRGDIRARBZ AFEBTHE of the Group's business.
17 e
2019 2018
Hisz AR® T ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(@) FBBALZXZ (@) Related party transactions
mNHAREESR Sales of goods to:
ARE 2 EERE S Companies controlled by
A4 VNC] a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 174,809 146,761
N An associate 45,939 56,295
BERT Joint ventures 613,801 406,258
BTrIARBESR Purchases of goods from:
ARACEERERE A group of companies jointly
HEES 2 —BATF controlled by the Company's
directors and their dependents (i) = 5,065,192
iN/NG o4 A group of companies controlled by
RERKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives of
2 — 4N the Company's directors (i) 5,236,010 —
NG An associate 62,326 71,666
AERH Joint ventures 63,003 65,478
BTRAARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZ FERRIERZ Companies controlled by
E4dOVNG] a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 41,197 50,624
m A ARKBRKER Administrative expenses paid
THER: on behalf and received from:
CX=VN Joint ventures 2,935 5,230
@ 52 R R & 1 Rental income from investment
FEHERNE  BER properties and property, plant and
FE2HE equipment
AREZEFERRES 2 Companies controlled by
E4dOVNG] a substantial shareholder
of the Company 44,222 43,034
Zl»‘”ﬁZ%%&E%E% A company jointly controlled
HEES B2 by the Company's directors and
their dependents — 2,891
ARRIZEERY A company controlled by the family
FEER B AR IR members and relatives of the
—fEAA Company's directors 3,089 —
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BaE) WIBETRAE14AE - ZEH Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BHEAT 2 XS RFHERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
25 e Rules.

(b) BEREBEAESZHE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
REBHBHBEEABZHME Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BREGEMBERERME10F including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
BEMARARES  THAHK executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
XfNzHBERAETESHE as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
BX R zgm)wmT statements, is as follows:

2019 2018

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EEWe Directors’ fees 4,348 4,182

e hEMmIHE Salaries and other emoluments 83,138 48,341

VARR AR 2+ 2 k08 Share-based payments 22,266 15,284

TE4L Discretionary bonuses 16,048 22,538
BRE T RIEFEHR  Retirement payments and contributions to

RS FT SR pension scheme 23,902 —

149,702 90,345

ZEEER 2017 FREMMNEEN The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash

RERReUBENGRLY 5FEH consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as

RERE B R M 3520 - FBEAB R detailed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

TEER2021FFRLELSF AR which is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2021

2019F 12 A31 BRI BEAMIER and is therefore recognised in other non-current liabilities at 31

EN=RE R December 2019.
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FRRFERBMBEHREEAFE 155 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
MNEFPAEVNBE(TEERRFNIE decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
MEBPEENES) AT - liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during

the year are as follows:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 1,678,782 1,284,590
R AW A Recognised as revenue (1,678,782) (1,284,590)
WRIRZHEWHFENF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 1,809,935 1,678,782
REER At end of the reporting period 1,809,935 1,678,782
2019912 A31H k2018412 A At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the advance
318 KPBENFIBESER —FRE payments from customers are expected to be recognised as
RN - revenue within one year.
FAN - AEBEHE=FBFIE=FF During the year, the Group entered into six sales and purchase
YAMEERE HEMEZEN agreements with three independent third parties for the disposal
BRARAEWHEIEZEMNBRAAZ of the entire equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries
EPHBREARTERE2ENBE R and two non-wholly owned subsidiaries and partial disposal of the
RAlzBoBE HEFTHERF equity interests of two wholly-owned subsidiaries. These disposals
W e TR ERTHER - were completed during the year. Upon the completion of the
HEMBRARIFREZLEARE above six disposals, total net gain on the disposal of subsidiaries
615,309,000 L EfF AB&E K » K of RMB615,309,000 was recognised in profit or loss, and a gain
SEEAZ AR EERRS% RELH of RMB13,580,000 was resulted from recognition of 5% equity
BRI E R Az EmmERARE interests retained in two former subsidiaries at their fair value at
13,580,000t 2 Wz - BN =D the date when control are loss from the two partial disposal of
HARFEHEEEARGER CHM subsidiaries. The retained interests were recognised as financial
FUWAAN - MRBERDHWERE assets at FVPL as set out in note 23 of the consolidated financial
B 75 SRR MY sk 23 ATl 2 FVPLRE R & statements.
CRVEE °
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BATR Bt 78 s B (B e A 6 B AP The following summarises the aggregate consideration received
BERBENR@DAESR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
g
Total
AREFT
RMB’000
FHENREE(8E) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - e G Property, plant and equipment 182,441
FREEE Right-of-use asets 65,143
BLETIBEE Deferred tax assets 154
A BB I8 Tax recoverable 23,223
TS FRIE B B fh e M R IR Prepayments and other receivables 1,747
RITEHR MRS Bank balance and cash 23,548
H eI sERE KRS Other payables and deposit received (9,887)
Bi1E Taxation (347)
286,022
HEMBARMKR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 628,889
DERR R R Non-controlling interest (8,601)
REBERZAAEE Fair value on retained interests (18,867)
887,443
2R E Consideration received
RERE Cash consideration 860,129
FEURE K Consideration receivables 27,314
887,443
HEMBARZESRARE ! Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 860,129
EHECHEeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (23,548)
BELRSEEYZRATE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 836,581
HEHNB AT WS ZHER: Reconciliation of net gain on
disposal of subsidiaries:
IREBHER 2= Gain on retained interests 13,580
HERBARF S Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 615,309
628,889
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BEELENED  RRRREHEE

BRAEMBHEIRER % -

AEEFERREEHFEARAES

EReEBEBMNEEE)R

Hena

ERBLE(WERARAHR ARNE
BamitR)AEREEAR(BIEHR
BRI ) - MEMREHIAEL

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting

flamT period was as follows:
2019 2018
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 12,374,459 10,834,508
B BReMEeEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (17,430,387) (13,840,421)
FIRE Net cash (5,055,928) (3,005,913)

AN B R AL B 2 Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 19,578,574 19,653,476
FEREBRERLE Gearing ratio -25.82% -15.29 %

REBEBELEHME

\e o4y
A R

BERTEHREIMERBERERE I
REBEEERANECHBE NG

B ABKRERE

EERAE

B BITHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEEMNX
B RRERHMLERS -

PR2019F « REEME

% 822018

FHR BEKFEERETHE -
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2018, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.
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AEBEFEAOS T AEEINE
BB AIRER - FERR IR
BeRR- - RREFSESREA
% BEERRARTORBRERY
K-EFERIUFAERAZEAR
BRERMOT

SNER R

AEBENMBARETEEFEEK
2 ETEUARBIERZEE - K
£5 [ P 4 9 SN EE LR R BR A A A
HEMBRR ZHEEEEE AL - A
HMEBEXZHENERFX -
R RITHESR BREE A
REIEFEEEREENERME
E - BAREINREEERGDREE
ME R A E AR R AL -

ARBEEITNRIBBEETHEA
RIRTTHEM 2 HMNE B B 48 B K 1%
Bl- AREENHBEARMHEER
BREMMNIEEEET  KNE
FEELEIMNINERRTESEX
RBEL - REBARBMETE
FNEEBERAKEBSER
AEBEERABERE - BN+ E
MBARRAMMNARBEER
IR D INERE o MFERARE
B ARBETERE A AL I
PE LR

REBEMR20194F £ 20184 12 A 31
HUSNE(FEARB)GFHENE AR
BEINERECEZREENCRME
E -BehkBEeEEYM BEEE
REMBERFED B RGZE MBS
KM EE 23, 28, 34 ] 37 ©

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL, financial
liabilities at FVPL and related party balances that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company
or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of the
exchange rates between RMB and the US dollars and the Group
itself, the Group has adopted a financing strategy to increase the
PRC subsidiaries proportion of on shore financing and to reduce
their foreign currencies financing. During the year, the Group has
not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are set out in notes 23, 28, 34 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SMNERR ()

REEBR - WA EMEERET
B omMARBEBETL ARBX
MAaBRARBHEBE TS B A
& 8 1E2.4%  1.3% - K%2.3%
(20184 : 3 FB55% ~ 3.4% * K
53%) AEEEELNRRB R
g, m A AR 2,357,000
(20184 : ARME3,745,0007T) »

BREIMBRRINERBETRNEER
RHREHI EARAEERAR
ZEHEEZERTANEERR
- MATA E A2 B B2 A )
RIFTE - FIH 2 EHRREERE
AEIMNE R MERBAARNE T —FE
MERZARELRZES - kO

HAEH 2018 F 4R °

FEER

AEEIEmMENNERARZRE
RITERLBEEREESAEE@ Y
MR E R o FBHF R IRTT 4G BR S0F
BNEXBERRESASERHRS
mMEMERR BHRESMEE K
SENRBEEREBEEERELER
REEEREENIREBEERITHE

EE L) -

HR - REBEWRETEREHE
B AEAHARERERAAEEN
MERR - NEEH AEELEE
E R K ZERB14% (2018 -

24%) °
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
2.4%, 1.3% and 2.3% respectively (20718: 5.5%, 3.4% and
5.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB2,357,000 (2018: RMB3,745,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2018.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 14% (2018:
24%).
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 75 (20718: 100) and 30 (2018: 50) basis
point higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB20,897,000 (2018. decrease/
increase by RMB8,538,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the
year and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence
during the year. The 75 (2018: 100) and 30 (2018: 50) basis point
increase or decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings denominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2018.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalent and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.
The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of loss
allowance, represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.

EEEER 277

2019 Annual Report ¥



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)

FEW IR Trade receivables

REBZHERBOARSHEE - The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
AEBEBREBRUAEEHECZE basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
EEERMAERINEELSRIIES of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
HEd ERPERZEASER credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
B—MIEER  AETBUEERT periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
fth © customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
AEEMEERRIEXGRERP The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
BRFENTE FEPEENITE individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
MERAE LR b ERRR the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
EEFE AFEREER) - influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
AEBNEPHABRZEPAMN The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
EREFZARBREESE R and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
KEPBREBEAENBERIZNME IS characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
RIEWEL ) - AEBERABGI A E pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
STEEWRANECL - WIRIESER Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
EHEHMEETEBECLEREER receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
B WELTEREELERERX ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
KB BERR - WIREBH ALK that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
ERBEARAZRETTHAE  AE forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
EHEHEEBSENGEEARAD environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group's
TEHEAERBRBEARE=FHER estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
ERBXERFTERN  WIRIEER credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
MATEEZETRHE  URBRBE K current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
SR BB BB 2 economic conditions during the period over which the historical
FOER BEGRGREAEEYE data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
W B 3k T8 HA 45 BA 9 R SR ASOE AR R B9 estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
et - ERBERR  BEERRIR the receivables. The management considered that these factors
BRERERNEERBRRER2019F do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
} 20184 12 B 31 H &9 FE U BR 5k &Y allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 1 January and
BINEBEBREBEALTEKR - FRME 31 December 2019 and 2018 to be insignificant. There was no
Tk E R RER W EED) o change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions

made during the year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continued)
FEW R (2) Trade receivables (Continued)
R2019F % 2018412 A31H " A The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
B8 E 7 2 B iR L 0 IR R SR 12 trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
ERREECLHERMANT o 2019 and 2018 is summarised below.
7201912 831H As at 31 December 2019
HBERTEE EEEEE
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired
AR¥ T
RMB’000
REIH Not past due 1,447,557 No
BRI ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 85,398 No
31-90 X 31 -90 days 64,885 No
im0k Over 90 days 71,685 No
1,669,525
M20184 12 A31H As at 31 December 2018
BEREE EEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB'000
REH Not past due 1,461,566 No
SR HERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 94,915 No
31-90 K 31 - 90 days 107,352 No
#8318 90 X Over 90 days 51,638 No
1,715,471
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2019 (20178: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint venture and related
parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2019, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after
taking into account the financial position, credit quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 89.29% (2018: 85.92 %) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group's largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2018: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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REESRR Liquidity risk

TEEHERRBHESRREERE 2 The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
BEZRBEETHR S MBI NRER maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
A D ARFBEEREREE - I credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
B AEBFEHERAEREHR current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
mMEBELTR  THEERHAZ R relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
BEFREZITENEST R RN end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
EARAIBRORER  EFTEEHAR that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
SEITEABSESER - BRBIES Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
BreE C EARUEE «FBER a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
fRE BT ERMTEE2 o financial statements.

TEBZERBEREEREEY The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of
2 H THRAZGORTRER the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EMEBIRAT - is summarised below:

180 L 260 E

1A% BE2EFA BESER

BREREX  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5ELME

1 year or within less than Over CH)
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

M2019%12A318 At 31 December 2019

JET R R Trade payables 7,678,035 = = — 7,678,035
Hin B K Other payables and
[REveia deposits received 8,897,431 — — — 8,897,431
HEBR Lease liabilities 219,102 137,580 149,999 27,453 534,134
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,699,649 2,219,797 2,615,706 355,329 12,890,481
HinEnByam Other non-current liabilities = 40,000 = = 40,000
FENSARE Contingent consideration payable = 9,674 = = 9,674

24,494,217 2,407,051 2,765,705 382,782 30,049,755
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

REBELRARE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years
1 year or but within - but less than
on demand 2 years 5years  Over 5 years Total
ARETFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
#2018%12A31H  At31December 2018
FEITEER Trade payables 6,953,961 — — — 6,953,961
Hit R 5K Other payables and
[l etk deposits received 6,796,498 — — — 6,796,498
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,760,386 2,881,353 1,373,027 470,088 11,484,854
HihIERBERE Other non-current liabilities — — 40,000 — 40,000
JERSARE Contingent consideration
payable — — 9,862 — 9,862
20,510,845 2,881,353 1,422,889 470,088 25,285,175

EXmEeE —BE TERALE
BEER T EEAREREE R EE
HEER - HEAEEBRE LB ®
RHEAIRERENRIER -REE
EWTEHEEASITEAZRE
REEF) - AR 1,880,000,0007T
(2018 + NER¥1,294,8980007T )
REERER LR AANBE 25
BENKBRERBZERKERD
™~

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a

clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the

loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,880,000,000
(2018: RMB1,294,898,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect

that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment

and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the

following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2019 2018
AR F T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings
1FR Within 1 year 1,911,216 1,311,553
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(@) UDABEIRNEMEERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

T % 2 % R2019F 12 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and

A EAEeYBmELE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their

BI)E 13RI A BERZEIF fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a

ETNAABESHHEN= recurring basis at 31 December 2019 across the three levels

BAERTP > LMARBETTEN of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value

BTN B HREEBLANE Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised

EBEMeREERAE  ANE in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

STENSREETIERNE R significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

FERERAFEZH ANSK as follows:

ER - BERSHFHBOT -

— AN (&EEAH) K& - Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
BRI 5T 2 B IR R active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
MG EHEREEREEN Group can access at the measurement date;
MEBEOCRKEAE)

- B2 BREEEE—R —  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RIERESN - AT E B ok within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BR2EERBENRE liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

- A3 (HERR) - X —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BEvEERABENR or liability.

Ao
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(a) UAAEEIIENEBMEERAE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
2019 2018
i fian K At iGN g5l #Al3 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ABETL ARETL AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFr AREFT ARETL
RMBU0O  RMBDOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMBOOO  AMBUD  RMBOOO
BE Assets
FPLEESABEE  Fiancal assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds 708,694 — 5698 113439 - — MIM% 474%
-BxE%5 - k0 - Equity securitie, lsted 8 = = yif) 625 - - 625
ANl - Equity securites unlited — 1887 - 1887 - - - -
EER00 Desipnated FUOC
-BEE%5 Lw - Equity securites, unlited = — 15814 115614 - — 1408 114078
108,976 18,867 541,312 1,269,155 625 - 51,514 562,139
8 Liabilities
FALEEAER RS Fiancal labilties at FYPL
FEENZREE
- ENEERE - Contingent consideration payable = = 9674 9,674 - - 9,862 9,862
- - 9,674 9,674 - - 9,862 9,862

R2019F K 2018FEE R - 38
FHEHEERA1EFR2 2 M
% NS BEEREERT
3SR -

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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(@) UDABEIRNEMEERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
20194 & 2018 4F N T 7 & The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
EAREFENEREAN3IH measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
SEMEEN N - hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
are shown as follows:
2019 2018
§E af BE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFPLEE HRFVPLER
MemEE  REFVOC MeREE  EERod
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvocl FVPL FVoCl
A FEft L fEfy
REES RxES AERE RERES hEE% FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable
ARBFE  ARETR  AREFT ARSI ARETT  AEETT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
REA) At beginning of the year 447,49 114,018 (9,862) - - (5,.258)
RAEATHAREEN  Redassification upon
FIRENE adoption of HKFRS 9 = = = 504,359 132,693 —
BA Purchases/additions 20,033 - — 48735 — —
mE Disposal (76,762) (3,578) — (79,443) (8,521) -
BRI 28T (B%B)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
- - in profit or loss 26,938 — 188 (48,772) — (4,604)
-An2ElE ~ in other comprehensive
income - 3,199 - - (16,265) -
ERES Exchange difference 7,993 1,975 — 2617 6,111 —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 425,698 115,614 (9,674) 447 4% 114,018 (9,862)
REERKEZEER  Change in unreliased
BEFABENES gain or (losses) for
FRANEY (BR) the year included
228 in profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period 19,864 - 188 (50,601) - (4,604)
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N

URABEIRNEREERAR

(%)

ERERBI2RARIZ 2 ANEE
AEZAERMAERBA

()

KFVPLEEER & B EE -
REEE

BZE2019F12H318 -
AEBFLEZAEER
TIEREEREREEN S
BEEMREESTER
EWHBAERAABEER
BB RI3 (20184 - /1@
RFYI3) o

ERRI3EP —IgRER
THWAREREREKE
KEREERREES
MECKRERESEEF
AT - AR BI3EH=1E
(20184 : =) 2 1% &
Bz ARNERREES
FIREM AR AREE
fhst e FTEMRAI3 ZILE
A BiE EmREMIE
EFWEE ETERERN
RABEHFRLEMS
W®E MIELTIRED
AABEEHEBESKE
B 8 4% EBITDAE
A R TS AR A AR S
ERATERTE - FHEIE L
MARM AL ERRE—
LeJEER A B TS E AR 3k
LR HZBE BIE
FEEHEREEXRH-9%
E28% (20184 : -8%
22%) FHEBITDA
BRKNA LB AR ZF
BHHEEDBIASE 22
(2018 4.115%21.7
E)RB 140682 1.621F
(2018: 1.18%F 1.35(%) »

LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurement

()

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets
at FVPL mainly comprise four investment funds which
are categorised as Level 3 (2018: four Level 3) of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2078:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques including mainly average
earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITDA)
multiple model and price/sales (P/S) multiple model.
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds ranging from -9% to 8% (2018 -8%
to 2%), average EBIDTA multiple and average price/
sales (P/S) multiples of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries ranging from 5 to 22 times
(2018: from 4.1 to 21.7 times) and ranging from 1.40
to 1.62 times (2018: 1.18 to 1.35 times) respectively.
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER

(&)
(i)

(i)

(iv)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVPL: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is
determined with reference to the net assets value of
the underlying equity securities.

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price/sales (P/S) multiple model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates of 0% (20718 -1%) and
comparable companies’ average P/S multiples of 1.40
times (2018 1.18 times).

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.
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(@) U2ABEEFIENERMEERAE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TEFTBEERAHREZEH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
BRIBAREFEZETERT The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
R ABREZEZHNT : for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEERAEE
REEEMRE
haEng
Impact on fair
20198 value and
1283182 the Group's
ME total
Fair value FIRREARRRHLARENGAR comprehensive
at31 Decemher (ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ!i{%ﬁ$ﬁ) income for
w1y ERE Sensitvity of fair value to changes ABNTHER the year
i Aggrr  Vauation  FAEZHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEETT
Description AUBO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB 000
BRPLRENEREER
Financial assets at FVPL
RERS 125698 EBTDABY EEEHERX FERMARELR +-10% 49,084
EDMAEER R
Investrment funds EBITDA Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
multiple the fair value and vice versa;
HBRA TETRE  AHBARTYTARER  ARARAER R +-8% +/-7,884
b8
Average EBITDA of comparable - The higher average EBITDA of comparable companies,
companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
mEREY  EiERE ENABEER R H5% 42,528
PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAT HATEE  AHBAAZTETEE ERNAAEE RN +31% +-15,579
?)\i\ .
Average P/S ratio of The higher average PIS ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
fEE ol
Designated FVOCI
RAZE %5 115614 THERY ERREERE BEEENSRRPERTMS - +5% 44,362
ERABEES RN
Equity securites, unlisted PIS multiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
BRI HamHE +-36% +31,158

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

THRAFZ TETHE  ERNALEE R
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

(&) (Continued)
TEFTBEERAHREZLH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(&) inputs (Continued)
MEERERE
REEEMRE
hanyE
Impact on fair
R2018E value and the
1283182 Group's total
ME TUBRBANESELAEENGRE comprehensive
Fair value at (BREMRZRETE) income for
31 December 2018 f5fE5 Sensitivity of fair value to changes in ABNTHER the year
it AFEFT  Valuation  FAEZEA unobservable inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably NEETT
Description RIBO0  techniques  Unobservable input remain unchanged) possible range RUB 000
BRPLRBNEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEES 4% TRERE  ERRHERE EEREMARELR +-10% 41,259
EDAEES R2HA:
Investrent funds PEEmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TERTZTmER  ARALAZTETRRER ALABEMR R +4% 4512
T
Average PIE ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
TEREY  EAFERX ERABEER RS +5% +1,676
PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAA HamEE  AHBAAZTOREE EROAAEE RN +37% +-11,004
i
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
R ROC
Designated FVOCI
BEES 114018 TREEEY FREDERE BEEENERRRLRZER +1-5% 414,865
EDAEEAS R
Equity securites, unlisted PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAT TATEE BRI TETEE ERNAAEE k2K +42% 436,678
Average P/S ratio of The higher average PIS ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
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(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2019.
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BRRAARGETERREMIBOEE In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
ZEGE - RNEBEE THEE the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the

commitments as follow:

BT HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
BRI AV B REHE Contracted but not provided for: RMB'000 RMB'000

EEYHE  HER Expenditures on property, plant and

B3 equipment 650,104 1,052,032
"EHS Investment funds 12,296 30,212
662,400 1,082,244
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LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

LU Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2019 2018
btaz ARMTFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
VI - IR REE Property, plant and equipment 415 94
EREEE Right-of-use assets 530 —
M B A A RERS Interest in subsidiaries 12,691,224 11,505,969
RFVPLERIEN S RLE E Financial assets at FVPL 425,980 448,121
$ETE FVOCI Equity instruments designated
as at FVOCI 7,428 6,876
13,125,577 11,961,060
RBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIGIE  Prepayments and other receivables 10,868 18,901
HI /8~ 7l 2 FE WK IR Amount due from a subsidiary 3,037,521 2,949,907
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 154,929 98,312
3,203,318 3,067,120
WEE Total assets 16,328,895 15,028,180
REREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RA R #E Capital and reserves
BEARRAR Issued capital 235,401 235,204
Ptn s (8 Share premium 724,384 664,400
fE#m Reserves 48(a) 5,681,607 7,928,540
RERERAE Total equity 6,641,392 8,828,144
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2019 2018
et ARETFT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RHPBEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 4,363,063 3,224,388
HEAE Lease liabilities 213 —
BTEFEME Employee benefit obligations — 64,691
4,363,276 3,289,079
RENEE Current liabilities
H A fE K Other payables 78,929 72,609
BEEEEZRESIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 5,244,973 2,838,348
HEAE Lease liabilities 325 —
5,324,227 2,910,957
wnaE Total liabilities 9,687,503 6,200,036
REERMEREBHE  Total equity and liabilities 16,328,895 15,028,180
REEAR M KRN 2020F 3 A23 & The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
ZEHERKEREE YHATA for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2020 and signed
TREEE on its behalf by
% & Wei Hong-Ming FH H#i—EB Junichiro Ida
E HEDirector ZE HEDjrector
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) MHHEZED (a) Movements of the reserves
e}
EfiERE
ROBERE EfERE MCRERE (TTEE) EBRERE RO g
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Remeasur-  Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption ement translation (Non-  payment  Retained
reserve reserve reserve  recycing)  reserve Profits Total
AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL AREFZ AREFZ
RMB000  RMBU00  RMBU00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB0OO  RMB000
R2018F1A1H At 1 January 2018 400 (3899 177178 — 428117 5936646 6,538,442
RERER Profit for the year - - - - — 2051116 2,257,116
AEEEM2A(ER) Ya Other comprehensive (oss) income for the year — (32,635) 57,215 (4.230) - 2397 2,747
ERGERNN TR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - N - W
REBRET SR BR Shares issuied under share option scheme — - — — (13,09 — (13,09
BREXN Shares option lapsed - - - —  (549%)  254% -
BRERRE 2017 EX SRS 2017 final dividend approved and paid - - - - —  (909539)  (909,539)
R2018% 128318 At 31 December 2018 400 (36,534) 234393 (4,230) 422395 7312116 7,928540
R2019%1518 At 1 January 2019 400 (36,534) 234,393 42300 422395 7312116 7,928,540
RERER Profitfor the year - - - - — 17849 178494
TEEEMZANE(BR) Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year = 36534 (18,054) 4,037 - (36534)  (14017)
EREERHTI A Equity settled share-based transactions = = = = 24,504 = 24,504
SIRMEMREHRE Employee benefits obligations borne
WBRRARHZ35) by subsidiaries (7ote 35) - — - - 41,487 41,487
REBRET 2R RH Shares issuied under share option scheme = = = —  (14,080) —  (14,080)
EREXK Shares option lapsed = = = — (40578 4057 -
BHEREE018ERE 2018 final and special dividend
RERIRS approved and paid - - - - = (2463321) (2463321
#2019%128318 At 31 December 2019 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
MR2019F 12 4318 AAF A5 At 31 December 2019, the Company’s distributable reserves
B 2 & BB RE & T &Hﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ{% including retained profits and share premium amounted to

2 & %A ANRKS5797,200,0007C
(20184 : A K #7976,516,000

JL)°

RMB5,797,200,000 (2018: RMB7,976,516,000).
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

TIEREHARRERLEERSE
ZEEMBRAR EERE
ABAFEREEEANER - A
RAEEREENERED -EF
RRFINEMHMBRARNER S
RIETEK -

TN

The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
excess length.

e,/
£ EXuE &R/ ERfTRE FEfEREL Al TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
RAEARRGEVARAE ABRRES Uss2 100% —  REER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRRARAF P US$72,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BNEERRARLA i US$31,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* MEERMARAR HE US$151,500,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EBRERMARAA PE US$17,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERRRMARAT HE US$17,800,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BXERRRERAT R US$44,300,000 - 100% RERHEHER
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERERARARAR HE US$14,200,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EREERMERAR G US$4,500,000 - 100% BERHENEE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BREERBARLA hH US$14,000,000 - 100% SEREEHRE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* EBEA N ERRERAT ilei US$32,500,000 - 100% HERHENRE
* Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd. * noodles
* REE(ER) hRRAARAA G US$6,000,000 - 100% SEREEHRE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd.* noodles
BRMEERERAT
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L/
£ EXHE ifEs/ BRTRA JEfE RAELL Bl TERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TFRERRARLA PE US$29,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RAEERRARAR HE US$17,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* FERRRRARLA HE US$3,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
* XinJiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RHBER) N RRRERAT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
* Master Kong (Chongging) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* BARERMERAA PE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHERE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERRERRARLA & US$22,000,000 - 100% SHERHERE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
OB RERAFEERAT G US$227,500,000 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RAEESBVIERAR ABRAEE Us$1 100% — REBR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
BREFERARREAGE)ERAT % U5$98,900,000 — 100% REAER
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
REEERMARATF ilei US$37,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant food
REERRBVERAR RERLIES US$55,263 90.50% —  REZR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RABRGARERAT RERS US$10,527.37 30.4% 4751%  RERR
KSF Beverage Holding Co,, ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* RERRARARA e US$60,840,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMERRRAD G US$20,000,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Guangzhou ngun Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* MERR AN P US$38,100,000 - T191% HEREESRR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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FEBTBIREAMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

L/
£ EXHE ihEk/ ERfTRE JEft IR iELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
* REBHNERERAR G US$28,350,000 7191% BERHERR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co,, Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRRAN G US$73,500,000 71.91% SERHEESM
* Wuhan T|ngJ|n Food Co, Ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RZEZRRAN EF US$5,000,000 77191% BEREERD
Xi'an Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFFR2RmARAT i US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
Chongging Ting‘in Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EBRRRMARD G US$15,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERIEZARAD hE US$13,700,000 7191% BEREERR
Fujian Tingjin Food (o, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RRERERGARAT PE US$33,000,000 7191% SERHEERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* aEERRRAD G US$10,000,000 7191% BERHEESM
* Hefei Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. i PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EREZRMAD EF US$12,000,000 77191% BEREERD
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BNERRMARAT i US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRMARAR HE US$16,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EBERSGERAR HE US$41,000,000 7191% BEREERD
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ROBERHRERAT EF US$48,500,000 T191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RIBRRHRERAT EP US$31,800,000 T191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRRAD G US$36,500,000 71.91% RERHEERR
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EAERARARAR G US$59,300,000 7191% BEREERD
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REE (SEAESmERAT i US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Wulumugj) Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
* BYRRRRAD PE US$28,500,000 7191% SERHEELR
* Langfang ng in Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMEZRRAD e US$41,500,000 7191% SERHEELR
¥ Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
FOBRRRAGRBRLF P US$196,677,000 77191%  %ERR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Investment holding
hEER L (B BRLT Bk Us$2 7191%  REEK
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
BE(PE)REARAT PE US$358,216,517 7191%  RERR
PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd. PRC Investment holding
BEHH (EM) BRA hE US$197,800,000 7191% BEREERS
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBEARIRARLA e US$66,650,000 7191% SERHEERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
*ARAETERHARLA PE US$14,119,449 50.64% BERHELM
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERZTEHHARLA HE US$20,000,000 67.63% BEREERD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBENEHFHARLA HE RMB100,000,000 6856% BEREERD
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RBBERHARAR PE US$6,600,000 7191% BEREERE
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RMESHAARAA HE US$1,350,000 7191% BEREERS
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEREARHBHARLA e US$17,845,000 1354% BHERHEELM
* Chongaing Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Company Limited  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
M BETRFHARLA) PE US$12,250,000 7191% SERHEESR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N BETERHARLAE P US$10,400,000 3896% BEREERD
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBETEAHERAA HE US$28,000,000 7191% BEREERD
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ENEEDES Aer] N ke RMB19,764,000 7191% BEREERE
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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BaliAY
£ EXHH ifEx/ BRiTRE 3 Al IERHK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* BEHE (M8 ARLA G US$9,000,000 - 5454% RERHEERM
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEAEURHHARLA i US$5,000,000 - 6233% BEREERD
* Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
M EEHAARAA i US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERS
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverage Co., Ltd f PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
REERETRRHARLA HE US$35,000,000 - 77191% BEREERS
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
JEAEVIERAT RERLES US$1,000 100% —  REER
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
R(RES)ERERAR REES US$2,118,334 - 100%  BARR
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. Cayman Islands Investment holding
EREVIERERAT RERLES US$50,000 100% —  AREZRERE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales agent for
the Group
EHRERRAA ARRAES US$147,232,000 - 100%  BARR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
PERRERERAA REBRAES US§1 100% — REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRREARAT i US$135,000,000 - 100% REWFEERS
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co, ltd. * service
REREAAARLA G US$200,000 100% —  RUEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* SEWBARSEMATRIINEE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
{’ETE% companies.
# Eg g =t # English translation for identification purposes only.
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The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) disease
in China in early 2020, ongoing prevention and control measures
have been carried out by the Chinese government. The epidemic
will impact the overall economy in China as well as the Group, the
instant noodles and beverage sector will be affected to different
extent. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.
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Corporate Information

P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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P.O. Box 309 Ugland House
Grand Cayman KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG (Global Business)

Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2511-1911

Fax: (852) 2511-7911

E-mail: info@tingyi.com

PRC OFFICE

No.1688, Wuzhong Road
Minhang District
Shanghai City 201103
PRC

www.masterkong.com.cn
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/tingyi

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Security code: 0322

ADR Level 1 Programme
Symbol: TCYMY

Taiwan Depositary Receipts
Security Code: 910322
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Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre
P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands
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Mr. Wei Hong-Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Junichiro Ida (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen

Mr. Koji Shinohara

Mr. Yuko Takahashi

Ms. Tseng Chien

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Genesis Trust & Corporate Services Ltd.

2nd Floor, Compass Centre
P.O. Box 448, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong
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Agricultural Bank of China

ANZ Bank

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of Ningbo

MUFG Bank

China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

China Minsheng Bank

CITI Bank

Deutsche Bank

Development Bank of Japan Inc.
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Metrobank

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Rabobank

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (HSBC)
Westpac Banking Corporation

The above banks are arranged in alphabetical order

Sidley Austin

PRC principal legal advisers:
Baker McKenzie

Haiwen & Partners
AlIBright Law Offices
JUN&HENG Law Offices

as to Cayman Islands law:
Maples and Calder (Hong Kong) LLP

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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